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The Annual Report of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka provides a 

comprehensive summary of institutional overview of the academic activities 

and achievements. The information contained here is submitted by respective 

faculties/ departments/ divisions/units and compiled by the Information and 

Statistics Unit. 
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Vision 

An Internationally Renowned Center in South 

Asia for Higher Learning and Innovations in 

Sciences, Technologies and 

Humanities. 

 

Mission 

To Provide Expanded Opportunities for Higher 

Learning of International Standards through 

Generation and Dissemination of Knowledge 

and Innovations Focused on Regional and 

National Needs, Social Harmony and 

Stakeholders' Empowerment  

and Satisfaction. 
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Goals 

1. Excellence in Academic Quality. 

2. Excellence in Research, Innovation and 

Dissemination of Knowledge. 

 

3. Excellence in Addressing Social and Industrial 

Expectations. 

 

4. Excellence in Infrastructure and Human Resource 

Development. 

 

5. Excellence in National and International 

Collaboration. 

 

6. Excellence in Good Governance and Sustainabilty.  
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Vice Chancellor‟s Message         

 

Prof. M.M.M. Najim 

 

Overall achievements of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka based on 

the achievements of students, academic staff and non-academic staff members 

are highlighted in the Annual Report 2020. The report highlights the 

contributions made by the University in terms of social, cultural, regional and 

national development on par with the targets set out in the strategic plan of 

the University, which is in place from 2019-2024. In addition, it emphasizes 

the challenges and shortcomings encountered by the university with 

reasonable justifications. 

The University has been implementing the policies of the Government, which 

are aligned with the “Vistas of Prosperity and Splendor”. Moreover, with the 

support of treasury funding and AHEAD funding, the performance and the 

quality of services provided for the students were strengthened. As a result, 

several small construction works were undertaken to provide the necessary 

infrastructure facilities for the students that will eventually give a space for 

them to engage in skill development activities. The newly constructed 

building of the Faculty of Technology and the multi-purpose auditorium have 

been utilized for the benefit of the Students in particular and the University in 

general. Moreover, the academics of the University have remarkably 

contributed in further increasing the number of publications in indexed 
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journals that are indexed in well reputed databases such as Scopus, Scimago, 

and databases of Clarivate Analytics. The University is progressing by 

achieving increased webomatric world ranking. Further, the University leaves 

an indelible mark in its history by being ranked number one Sri Lankan 

University under the UI GreenMetric World University Ranking which ranks 

universities based on sustainability performance of universities. Moreover, 

the human capital of the university was strengthened by joining many well 

qualified academics and other staff. Simultaneously, promotion of few 

academics as Professors further increased the capacity of the University in 

delivering its services.  

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is delighted to present the Annual 

Report for the year 2020, which could be explored to learn more on the 

achievements of the University. I would like to express my sincere gratitude 

to all those who worked hard to elevate the performance of the South Eastern 

University of Sri Lanka in the year 2020. 

 
Professor Dr. M.M.M. Najim  

Vice-Chancellor 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 
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1. Review of University Activities 

Brief introduction  

The South Eastern University of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) was established in 1995. 

The main campus, which strategically located along the coastal belt of Oluvil, 

extends over 178.98 acres of green pasture (As per the land valuation in 2011). 

Due to the continuous sea erosion exists in the east part of the university 

(Oluvil premises), around 25.45 acres of the land was devasted so far. The 

Faculty of Applied Sciences is located in Sammanthurai at an extent of 6.72 

acres (As per the land valuation in 2011).  The Malwaththa farm (extent of 

35.25 acres), which comes under the purview of the Faculty of Technology, is 

used for conducting practical classes on Agricultural Technology. The 

University has recorded a tremendous progress in higher education sector.  

The South Eastern University of Sri Lanka has the focus on achieving 

academic excellence and producing employable graduates to cater to the 

demands of both private and public sectors in Sri Lanka and abroad. It 

endeavors to enhance the multidisciplinary research culture, serving the 

needs of different stakeholders and the community. In addition, the 

university is greatly contributing to the peace and harmony of the region. 

Presently, SEUSL has six faculties with 5,558 internal undergraduates and 405 

postgraduate students. The university has 662 permanent staff including, 189 

academic staff.  

The SEUSL is devoted to earn its name and make it an internationally 

renowned university with its excellent academic caliber. 
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University Council 

The University Council is the Chief Executive Body and governing authority. 

Vice Chancellor is the Chairman by the virtue of the power vested on him. It 

is the final authority to approve the proposals submitted by the Senate and 

the Faculty Boards.  The Sub - Committees of the council include Finance 

Committee, Lands, Building & Maintenance Committee, Audit and 

Management Committee, Tender Board and Selection Committees. Registrar 

is the Secretary of the Council. 

 

Senate Nominees 

Dr. MH. Haroon (from 24.06.2020) 

Dr. S. Safeena MG Hassan (from 24.06.2020) 

Prof. MAM. Rameez  (up to 17.05.2020) 

Prof. A.Jahfer (up to 17.05.2020) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Ex-Officio Members  

Prof. MMM. Najim Vice Chancellor (Chairman) 

Dr. SM. Junaideen Dean/ Faculty of Engineering  

Dr. SMM. Mazahir Dean /Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic 

Language 

Dr. S. Gunapalan Dean / Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Dr. UL. Zainudeen Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Prof. A. Rameez Dean/ Faculty of Arts and Culture  

Dr. ULA. Majeed   Dean / Faculty of Technology (from 29.01.2020) 

Dr. MG. Mohamed Thariq Dean / Faculty of Technology (up to 28.01.2020) 
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Appointed Members 
 

Mr. IM. Haniffa 
    
Dr. Anver M. Mustapha 
   
Eng. Muheenudeen Abdul Cader 
  
Dr. TSRTR. Rajab  
   
Eng. NT. Mohamed Sirajudeen 
  
Mr. MC. Mohamed Nawas 
   
Prof. Colin N. Peiris 
    
Mr. JM. Naleer 
  
Mr. DML. Bandaranayake 
   
Prof. (Ms) Hema MKK Pathirana (from 02.10.2020) 
 
Dr. AMPDK. Adikari (up to 30.09.2020)  

 

Secretary 

Mr. H. Abdul Saththar, Registrar 
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University Senate 

The Senate is the academic authoritative body. It controls and generally 

directs the activities of teaching, learning, research, designing curriculum and 

examination systems of the University through the channels of faculties, 

Departments and Units empowered with the responsibilities for good 

academic results and to the University communities and public. It approves 

and recommends the proposals submitted by the Faculties to the Council for 

final approval. Sub - Committees of the Senate include Library Committee, 

Study Leave and Awards Committee, Admission Committee, Research & 

Publication Committee and Curriculum and Evaluation Committee. Registrar 

is the Secretary of the Senate. 

 

Ex-Officio Members 

Prof. MMM. Najim Vice Chancellor (Chairman) 

Dr. SM. Junaideen Dean/ Faculty of Engineering  

Dr. SMM. Mazahir Dean /Faculty of Islamic Studies and 

Arabic Language 

Dr. S. Gunapalan Dean / Faculty of Management and 

Commerce 

Dr. UL. Zainudeen Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Prof. A. Rameez Dean/ Faculty of Arts and Culture  

Dr. ULA. Majeed   Dean / Faculty of Technology  

(from 29.01.2020) 

Dr. MG. Mohamed Thariq Dean / Faculty of Technology  

(up to 28.01.2020) 

Prof. MAM. Rameez  

Prof. (Mrs). FHA. Rauf  

Prof. ALA. Rauf  

Prof. A. Jahufer  
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Prof. AM. Muzathik   

Prof. MBM. Ismail  

Prof.  A. Jahfer Head / Dept. of Accountancy & Finance 

Prof. MAL. Abdul Haleem  

Prof. MIM. Kaleel  

Mr. MM. Rifaudeen  Librarian 

Dr. (Mrs.) S. Safeena MG Hassan Head /Dept. of Management 

Eng. MC. Riyas Head /Dept. of Civil Engineering(from 

14.09.2020) 

Dr. J. Ajith Thamboo  Head /Dept. of Civil Engineering (up to 

13.09.2020) 

Eng. MI. Ilham Jazeel Head /Dept. of Inter Disciplinary 

Studies 

Dr. MASF. Saadiya Head /Dept. of Languages 

Dr. AMM. Navaz  Head /Dept. of English Language 

Teaching  

Mrs. MCS. Shathifa Head /Dept. of Arabic Language (from 

24.12.2020) 

Dr.  AR. Nasar  Head /Dept. of Arabic Language(up to 

29.11.2020) 

Dr. MM. Fazil Head /Dept. of Political Sciences 

Dr. MIM. Jazeel Head /Dept. of Islamic Studies  

Dr. MM. Muneeb Head / Dept. of Biosystems Technology  

(from 29.01.2020) 

Dr. UL. Abdul Majeed Head / Dept. of Biosystems Technology  

(up to 28.01.2020) 

Dr. MH. Haroon  Head /Dept. of Chemical Sciences 

Dr. AAM. Nufile  Head /Dept. of Dept. of Economics and 

Statistics  

Dr. S. Anuzsiya  Head /Dept. of Social Sciences  
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Dr. (Mrs) V. Sujarajini  Head /Dept. of Biological Science 

Dr. MIM. Hilal  Head /Dept. of Marketing Management 

Mr. MHM. Rinos  Head /Dept. of Geography 

Dr. SM. Ayoob  Head/Dept. of Sociology 

Mr. AL. Hanees  Head/Dept. of Mathematical Science 

Dr. PMK. Alakakoon  Head/Dept. of Electrical & 

Telecommunication Eng. 

Dr. (Mrs). AMNM. Adikaram  Head/Dept. of Physical Sciences 

Dr. WGCW. Kumara  Head/Dept. of Computer Science and 

Engineering  

Dr. U. Farook  Head/Dept. of Mechanical Engineering 

Mr. K. Muhammed Rifthy 
Head / Dept. of  Information and 

Communication Technology 

Mr. S. Sabraz Nawaz 
Head / Dept. of Management and 

Information Technology 

           

 

Elected members 

Faculty of Applies Sciences 

Mr. MAAM. Faham   

Dr. AM. Razmy    

 

Faculty of Arts and Culture 

Mr. A. Wickramaratne         (from 02.06.2020) 

Mr. MAM. Sameem              (from 10.09.2020) 

Dr. AFM. Ashraff                  (up to 12.03.2020) 

Prof. MIM. Kaleel    (up to 27.07.2020) 
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Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 

Dr. RA. Sarjoon  

Mrs. MCS. Shathifa     (up to 23.12.2020) 

 

Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Dr. A. Haleem  

Dr. MCA. Nazar  

 

Faculty of Engineering   

Eng. ALM. Risath  

Dr. JASP. Jayakody     

 

Faculty of Technology 

Mr. RKA. Rifai Kariapper  

Dr. ANM. Mubarak  

 

Secretary 

Mr. H. Abdul Saththar, Registrar 
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Study Programmes at SEUSL    

SEUSL has six Faculties namely Arts and Culture, Management and 

Commerce, Applied Sciences, Islamic Studies and Arabic Language, 

Engineering and Technology. SEUSL offers Bachelor and Master Degrees, 

Diploma, Certificate, and different Training Programmes. 

The University collaborates with 

local and international 

organizations in conducting 

programmes to cater to the needs 

of the local community. Academic 

departments, Units and degree 

Programmes offered by the 

faculties are shown in the tables 

given below. 

 
Table 1.1: Details of Academic Departments 
and Units of the SEUSL 

 
 

 
 

Faculty of Arts & Culture 

Social Sciences 

Languages 

Political Sciences 

Sociology 

Economics & Statistics 

Geography 

English Language Teaching 

Postgraduate Unit 

Faculty of Management & Commerce 

Accountancy & Finance 

Management 

Management Information Technology 

Marketing Management 

Postgraduate Unit 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Biological Sciences 

Mathematical Sciences 

Physical Sciences 

Chemical Science 

Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 

Islamic Studies 

Arabic Language 

Inter Disciplinary Course Unit 

Faculty of  Engineering 

Civil Engineering 

Mechanical  Engineering 

Electrical & Electronic  Engineering 

Computer Science &  Engineering 

Interdisciplinary Studies 

Technology 

Information and Communication 

Technology 

BioSystems Technology  
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Table 1.2: Degree Programmes offered by Faculties (Internal) 

Undergraduate Degree Programmes 
SLQF 
Level 

General/ 
Special 

Duration Medium 

Faculty of Arts & Culture 

Bachelor of Arts (General) 5 General 3 Years Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in Political 
science 

6 Special 

4 Years 

Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in Economics 6 Special 
Tamil/ 
English 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in 
Philosophy & Psychological 
Counseling 

6 Special Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in Sociology   6 Special 
Tamil/ 
English 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in 
Geography 

6 Special 
Tamil/ 
English 

Bachelor of Arts Honours  in Tamil   6 Special Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in 
Information Communication 
Technology 

6 Special English 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in Teaching 
English as a Second Language                                                                      

6 Special English 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in Hindu 
Civilization 

6 Special Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in Tri-
Lingual Studies 

6 Special Trilingual 

Faculty of Management   & Commerce 

Bachelor of Business Administration 
(Honours)Degree 

6 Special 
4 Years 

Tamil/ 
English 

Bachelor of Commerce 
(Honours)Degree 

6 Special 

English 
 

Bachelor of Science in Management 
and  Information Technology 

5 General 3 Years 

Bachleor of Business Administration 
Honours in Accounting 

6 Special 

4 Years 

Bachelor of Business Administration 
Honours in Finance 

6 Special 

Bachelor of Business Administration 
Honours in Marketing Management 

6 Special 

Bachelor of Business Administration 
Honours  in Human Resource 
Management 

6 Special 

Bachelor of Business Administration  
Honours  in Information Systems 

6 Special 
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Undergraduate Degree 
Programmes 

SLQF 
Level 

General/ 
Special 

Duration Medium 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Bachelor of Science in Biological 
Science 

5 General 3 Years 

English 

Bachelor of Science Honours in 
Physical Science 

5 General 
3 Years 

Bachelor of Science Honours in 
Applied Biology 

6 Special 4 Years 

Bachelor of Science Honours  in 
Botany 

6 Special 4 Years 

Bachelor of Science Honours in 
Applied Statistics 

6 Special 4 Years 

Bachelor of Science Honours in 
Computer Science 

6 Special 4 Years 

Bachelor of Science Honours in 
Mathematics 

6 Special 
4 Years 

Bachelor of Science Honours in 
Applied Sciences 

6 Special 4 Years 

Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 

Bachelor of Arts Degree 5 General 3 Years Tamil 

Bachlor of Arts (Hons.)in Islamic 
Thoughts and Civilization  

6 Special 

4 Years 

Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) in Islamic 
Banking and Finance 

6 Special 
English 

Bachelor of Arts (Hons.)in Islamic 
Law & Legislation 

6 Special Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts (Hons.)in Arabic 
Language and Literature 

6 Special 
Arabic & 
Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts (Hons.)in 
Linguistics and Translation  

6 Special 
Arabic, 
English & 
Tamil 

Bachelor of Arts (Hons.)in Teaching 
English as a Second Language 
(Collaborative Programme with 
Faculty of Arts and Culture) 

6 Special English 

Faculty of  Engineering 

Bachelor of the Science 
Engineering Honours 

7 Special 4 Years English 

Faculty of Technology 

Bachelor of  Biosystems 
Technology in Agricultural 
Technology 

6 Special 
4 Years 

English 

Bachelor of  Information and 
Communication Technology  

6 Special English 
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Table 1.3: Certificate level and Diploma Courses (External) 

Certificate Level Courses  

Name of the Course                                                                
SLQF 
Level 

Duration  Medium 

Certificate in English 1 06 Months English 

Diploma Courses (Non Postgraduate ) 

Name of the Course                                                                
SLQF 
Level 

Duration  Medium 

Professional Diploma in Counselling 3 18 Months Tamil 

Diploma in English 3 12 Months English 

Diploma in Journalism 3 12 Months Tamil 
 

Table 1.4: Undergraduate Courses (External) 

Undergraduate Courses (External) 

Name of the Course  
SLQF 
Level 

Special/
General  

Duration  Medium 

Faculty of Arts and Culture 

Bachelor of Arts 5 General 3 Years Tamil 

Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration 

5 General 3 Years English 
& Tamil 

Bachelor of Commerce 5 General 3 Years 

 

Postgraduate Studies   

Faculty of Arts and Culture, Faculty of Management and Commerce, Faculty 

of Applied Sciences and Faculty of Technology are offering postgraduate 

programmes (Table 1.5). University has produced 04 Mphil, 14 MBA holders 

and 03 MA holders in the year 2020.  
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Table 1.5: Postgraduate Courses 

 

New study Programmes to be commenced 

SEUSL has taken steps to offer many new degree programmes in order to 

cater to the needs of the country. FAC has submitted a proposal to the UGC to 

introduce the Bachelor of Arts Honours in Education degree programme for 

the approval. Meanwhile FAC has developed a proposal to commence 

Bachelor of Arts Honours in History and submitted for approval of the 

relevant Authorities. 

FMC is developing a proposal to commence BBA (Special) degree in 

Management Information Technology and BBA (Special) degree in 

Entrepreneurship. 

Faculty 
Postgraduate 
Programmes 

SLQF 
Level 

Full/ Part 
time 

Duration Medium 

Faculty of arts and Culture 

Pg Dip.in Tamil 8  Part 01 Year Tamil 

M.A. in Tamil 10 Part 02 Years Tamil 

M.Phil.in Tamil 11 Part/Full 02 Years Tamil 

M.Phil.in Geography 11 Part/Full 02 Years Tamil/English 

M.Phil.in Philosophy 11 Part/Full 02 Years Tamil/English 

M.Phil.in Poltical Science 11 Part/Full 02 Years Tamil/English 

M.Phil.in Sociology 11 Part/Full 02 Years Tamil/English 

Ph.D. in Tamil 12 Part/Full 03 Years Tamil/English 

Ph.D. in Geography 12 Part/Full 03 Years Tamil/English 

Ph.D. in Philosophy 12 Part/Full 03 Years Tamil/English 

Ph.D. in Poltical Science 12 Part/Full 03 Years Tamil/English 

Ph.D. in Sociology 12 Part/Full 03 Years Tamil/English 

Faculty of Management and Commerce 

Pg Dip.in Management 
(PGDM) 

8 Full 01 Year English 

Master of Business 
Administration (MBA) 

10 Full 02 Years English 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Pg Dip.in Applied Statistics  8 Part 01 Year English 

Faculty of Technology     

Ph.D. in Biosystems 
Technology 

12 
Full  3 Years English 

Part 4.5 Years English 

M.Phil in Biosystems 
Technology 

11 
Full  2 Years   English 

Part 3 Years English 
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FAS has developed a proposal to commence the Diploma in Computer 

Science programme and awaiting approval from the Faculty Board. Further, 

the FAS is to commence the Postgraduate Degree Programs by Research with 

the formation of the Board of Studies such as Biological Sciences, Chemical 

Sciences, Physical Sciences, Computer Sciences, and Applied Statistics & 

Mathematics. 

FIA is developing a proposal to commence a BA external degree programme 

in Islamic Banking and Finance, Further, the faculty is awaiting approval of 

the Senate and the Council to commence Diploma and Certificate 

programmes in Arabic Language.  

 

World Ranking  

Webomatrics ranking of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is 8029 in 

January 2021. Measures are being taken to improve the world ranking of the 

SEUSL in a very competitive world where educational institutions are striving 

hard to offer better services.   
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Student Population  

The student population of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka as at 

December 2020 was 5558. Table 1.6 shows the proportional distribution of the 

students among each faculty. 

 

Table 1.6: Student population by Faculty as at December 2020 

Faculty No. of Students Percentage 

Arts and Culture 1183 21 

Management and Commerece 1277 23 

Applied Sciences 769 14 

Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 1274 23 

Engineering 441 8 

Technology 614 11 

 
 
Staff Population 

The staff population (Permemnat staff) of the university as at December 2020 

was 662. Figure 1.1 shows the proportional distribution of the staff by 

category. 

 
Figure1. 1: Proportion of Staff Strength as at December 2020 

 

Academic Staff , 
189, 29% 

Academic 
Supportive Staff 

, 20, 3% 

Administrative 
and Other 

Executive Staff, 
33, 5% 

Non-Academic 
and Non-

Administrative 
Staff, 420, 63% 



Annual Report 2020 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka         

 

 

16 

Distribution of Academic Staff 

Figures 1.2 and 1.3 shows the distribution of academic Staff (excluding library 

staff) based on their designation and educational level respectively. 

 

 

Figure 1.2: Distribution of Academic Staff (Excluding library Staff) based on their  
Designation as at 31st December 2020 

 

Figure 1.3: Distribution of Academic Staff (Excluding library Staff) based on their 
Educational level as at 31st December 2020 

 

 

Professors, 10, 
5% 

Senior 
Lecturers Gr I, 

54, 30% 

Senior 
Lecturers Gr II, 

48, 26% 

Lecturers/ 
Lecturer 

(Unconfirmed) 
/Lecturer 

(Probationary), 
71, 39% 

First 
Degree/Pg 

Diploma, 48, 
26% 

Master, 54, 29% 

Mphil, 14, 8% 

PhD, 67, 37% 
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Sustainable Development 

Strategies, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and the targets incorporated in 

the Strategic Plan (2019-2023) related to sustainable development under the 

objectives 6.4 and  6.6 of the goal 6 and achievements made in 2020 in each 

KPIs are given in the below table. 

 
Goal 6:  Good Governance and Sustainability. 

Objective 6.4: To enhance financial sustainability of the university through 

creation of diversified sources of income and fostering sound financial 

management. 

Objective 6.6: To enhance our staff and institutional commitments towards 

sustainable development agenda. 

 
Table 1.7: Achievements made in 2020 related to KPIs under objective 6.4 and 6.6 of the goal 6 

Ref. 
No 

Strategies KPIs Target 
Achievement 
in 2020 

6.4.1 

Form a fund –raising 
committee of the 
university to search, 
campaign and bid for 
potential competitive 
aids and philanthropic 
sources with the 
objective of raising 
funds for 
implementing  the 
strategic plan and 
master plan of SEUSL 

Percentage 
of generated 
(non-grant) 
annual 
income over 
total income 

Increases the 
percentage of 
generated (non-
grant) annual 
income over 
total income to 
at least 10% by 
2023 

The income for 
the year 2020 
was accounted 
Rs. 24,822,561 
from the 
following 
sources: 
Registration, 
examination, 
interest, sales, 
fine, and other 
sources 

6.4.2 

Convince the state 
authorities for 
increased funding for 
having 
overwhelmingly 
accommodated the 
government‟s policy to 
provide increased 
access to higher 
education  

Use of 
Kuwait 
funding 
opportunitie
s 
 

Increase the use 
of Kuwait 
funding 
opportunities 
for financing at 
least 50% of the 
remaining 
projects under 
the master plan 
by 2023 

Allocation 
made by the 
Kuwait project 
Rs. 64.5 million  
for the year 
2020 

6.4.3 
Encourage the 
faculties, CEDPL and 
other functional units 

Competitive 
grant raised 
per annum 

Increase the 
competitive 
grant raised per 

CEDPL is the 
only one 
centralized unit 
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to introduce a wide 
range of financially 
viable academic 
programmes and 
extension activities 
which generate 
surpluses for re-
investment 

to annual 
capital grant 
ratio 

annum to 
annual capital 
grant ratio to at 
least 0.3: 1 by 
2023 

functioning for 
generating 
funds from 
academic 
programme. 
23.366: 322 
million 

6.4.4 

Revitalize the teaching 
, learning , 
management and 
marketing strategies at 
CEDPL with the aim of 
attracting more 
students to the existing 
and potential external 
/part –time 
programmes 

Absorption 
capacity : 
Percentage 
utilization 
(Disburseme
nt) of capital 
grant 

Increase the 
percentage 
utilization (that 
is , 
Disbursement ) 
of annual 
capital grant to 
least 95% 

Nil from the 

capital grant  

Note: Own 
Generation of 
Fund by 
CEDPL 

6.4.5 

Reform the business 
model of CEDPL so 
that it may offer 
financially feasible 
multi-disciplinary 
academic/Professional 
programmes 
collaborated by 
different faculties 
/universities 

Reduction in 
cost per 
Student 

Reduce the cost 
per student by 
4% by 2023 

There was a 
slight increase 
in the cost per 
student 
compare to the 
year 2019 

6.4.6 

Improve the quality of 
financial reports of the 
university and make it 
publicly available 

  

Financial 
reports are 
usually placed 
at the financial 
committee and 
also the report 
is sent to all 
faculties. 
Meantime, 
Annual report 
placed at the 
parliament   

6.4.7 

Publish internally the 
quarterly financial / 
budget progress of 
faculties, units and of 
the university as a 
whole thereby 
enforcing 
transparency, quality 
financial scrutiny and 
accountability 

  

In order to 
maintain the 
quality and 
transparency of 
the operation, 
The reports are 
distributed to 
the deans of the 
faculties and 
other relevant 
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departments 

6.4.8 

Increase the 
reinvestment of 
generated income on 
capital, research and 
human development 
activities underpinning 
organizational 
sustainability 

  

2  million 
allocated to the 
research, and 
Human 
development 

6.4.9 

Abolish all non-value 
adding administrative 
/ procumbent practices 
at the university in 
order to enhance our 
financial absorption 
capacity and efficiency 

  

Traditional  
practices of 
GRN , SRN 
were 
computerized 
to make the 
function 
efficiently 

6.4.10 

Use the history of 
spending , asset 
utilizations and 
accountability of 
faculties and units to 
inform future resource  
allocations thereto  

  Routine process 

6.4.11 

Devise and implement 
a mechanism to 
perform assets utility 
survey to monitor and 
improve efficient asset 
utilization 

  

According to 
the circular, 
board of survey 
was conducted 
at the end of 
each year 

6.4.12 

Save recurrent 
expenses and make use 
of it for students and 
staff empowerment 
and welfare activities 

  

Instructions 
and controlled 
mechanism are 
followed by the 
respective 
heads 

6.6.1. 

Develop our 
institutional policy 
framework to inform 
our teaching, learning, 
procurement and 
management strategies 
by sustainable 
development agenda 

Student 
enrolment to 
higher 
education 

Increase the 
enrolment by 
another 25% by 
2023 

New intake for 

2017/2018 and 

2018/2019 

batches were: 

1540 and 1521 

respectively. 

6.6.2 

Integrate the 
sustainability 
development strategies 
into our teaching, 
learning and 
assessment strategies 

Energy 
efficiency: 
per capita 
consumptio
n of 
electricity 

Reduce the per 
capita 
consumption of 
electricity 
(electricity 
consumption 

Average 
monthly usage: 
17.5 units/ 
student 
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preferably through 
curricula 

per student ) by 
at least 5% by 
2023 

6.6.3 

Promote sustainable 
consumption of 
electricity and water 
resources through 
improved planning, 
supervision and 
effective accountability 
measures 

Per capita 
consumptio
n of water 

Reduce the per 
capita 
consumption of 
Water (Water 
consumption 
per student ) by 
at least 5% by 
2023 

Average 
monthly usage: 
1.29 units/ 
student 

6.6.4 

Strengthen the internal 
audit division to 
underpin our 
commitment to 
sustainability through 
regular and 
professional audit on 
sustainability 

  
Facilities were 

arranged  

6.6.5 

Conduct regular 
awareness and training 
programmes to 
student, staff, SMEs 
and public to promote 
their engagement 
towards sustainable 
development goals 

  

Career 

guidance Unit, 

Staff 

Development 

Centre, Student 

Support 

Services Unit, 

faculties and 

libraries are 

conducting 

such programs 

every year 

6.6.6 

Invest on 
renewable/clean 
energy sources and 
recycling 
infrastructures. 

  

Constructed 
waste water 
treatment plant 
(Table 1.8) 
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Action taken for Environmental Protection 

Regular Environmental Protection Activities 

1. Annual Tree Planting Programme  

 University founder‟s day  

 First day of the year 

 Independence day  

 National tree planting programme of the country  

Eg: Name of trees: Arjuna, Khaya, Bukme, Ceylon Ebony, iluppa, 

Mahogany, Rambotan and Manjadi. 

 
2. Seasonal Programme  

 Before starting the rainy season, prepare the selected area for 

perennial tree planting 

 pruning the Trees and Bushes to rejuvenate the biological 

activities to improve the aesthetical value of the vegetation 

 Planting the Arujua Tree alongside the Kaliodai River. 

 Maintain the existing bio diversity of the university. 

 
3. Monthly Programme  

 Gap filling planted area eg: Way side and river side 

 Establishing new landscaping area 

 
4. Daily programme  

 Collecting dried fallen leaves and make it compost 

 Establishing new plant at plant nursery for future planting 

 

 Placed different coloured trash bins to collect the food waste, polythene 

waste and Paper waste separately. Collected garbages are being taken to 

the garbage collecting Centre of the Pradeshiya Sabha - Addalaichenai.  
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 Constructed Gabion wall for erosion control at the east part of the 

University alongside the Kaliyodai River. 

 

 Constructed waste water treatment plant: A portion of the treated water 

is being used for the ornamental garden.Table 1.8 shows the details of 

waste water collection for the water treatment plant. 

 
Table 1.8: Details of waste water collection for the water treatment plant 

S.No Location 

Water 
Collection 
per day 
(m3/day) 

35% of soacked 
water in Soakage 
pit 

Water collection 
for the treatment 
plant(m3/day) 

01 
Hela Bojun 
Canteen 

3.00 1.05 1.95 

02 FVG - 01 31.00 
Directly send to 
STP 

31.00 

03 FVG - 01(A) 48.00 16.8 31.20 

04 FVB - 01 21.00 7.35 13.65 

05 FVB - 02 48.00 16.8 31.20 

06 FVB - 03 48.00 
Directly send to 
STP 

48.00 

07 Staff Quaters 6.00 
Directly send to 
STP 

6.00 

Total water Collection per day 
(m3/day) 

 163.00 

Four Circles 20.00 in each  -80.00 

Treated balance water output  83.00 

Treated water reuse for gardening 
purposes 

 20.00 

  STP-Sewerage Treatment Plant 

 

 Fauna Flora diversity is maintained at the University. 
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Libraries of South Eastern University of Sri Lanka  

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) Libraries is a network of 

libraries and Museum that includes Main Library, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Library and University Cultural Museum. The SEUSL Library works 

strategically and refers to international best practice for quality assurance. The 

Library‟s main achievements in 2020 were; 

 

i) Strengthen engagement with faculties and students and promote greater 

involvement of library academics in research by conducting many 

Research Capacity Building programme, plagiarism detection services, 

literature search and document delivery services. 

 

ii) Manages the digitization program and to archive the intellectual capital of 

SEUSL in institutional repository (DSpace) that facilitate scholarly 

dissemination and showcase entire breadth of the institution‟s scholarship 

and improve the webometrics ranking of the university. The E-repository 

had 4204 scholarly articles archived as at 31st December 2020 and out of it 

896 were uploaded during 2020. There were 48,793 views for the scholarly 

articles, including from foreign countries. 

 

iii) Consultancy advices and editorial assistance provided to the University 

for publishing the Faculty Journal, Proceedings and university 

publications. 

 

iv) Conducted teaching and assessing an optional credit course on 

“Information Literacy programs” to the undergraduates. 

 

v) Worked collegially and constructively with key university stakeholders, 

including students, to deliver Library services off the campus to enable 

our patrons to access to our library learning resources remotely while the 

university is closed due to COVID 19 outbreak. 

 

vi) Major or notable donation is received from Embassy of Japan to the value 

of 829,700.39 under “Read Japan 100 books for Understanding 
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Contemporary Japan” programme. His Excellency Mr. Sugiyama Akira, 

Ambassador of the Japan to Sri Lanka visited the library and handed over 

the collection on 28th September 2020.  

 

vii) SEUSL library has taken actions to streamline the processes and 

procedures of the library services adhering to the 5S system.  

 

viii) Library academic staff actively contributed to the University for the 

Institutional Review. Review Team visited the Main Library on 25.02.2020 

and Science Library on 21.02.2020 and appreciated the library system and 

services.  

 

ix) Provided remote access to Electronic Database such as EMERALD, 

TAYLOR & FRANCIS and OXFORD by using Shibboleth Access during 

the closure of university due to COVID 19 pandemic situation. It was 

noted that the usage statistics of some databases have been increased 

when compare to the year 2019. A total of 8,593 full text articles have been 

downloaded by our patrons during the year 2020.  

 

x) Library this year has purchased only 465 printed books to the value of 

396,248.23 to meet the needs of the users of all faculties. 

 

xi)  There were 3756 registered users reported as at 31st December 2020 and 

out of them 312 new students were enrolled as library members during 

the year under review. 

 

xii) Circulations were significantly affected by the pandemic situation. 

Libraries had a combined total of 31,685 check-ins/checkouts as recorded 

in the Library Management System. Collaborative common learning 

spaces with Wifi facilities are provided. 

 
xiii) A sum of Rs. 69,700.00 was collected as overdue fine from the students of 

Main Library and Rs. 2,549.00 from the Science library during the year 

2020. 
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Achievements and Recognitions:  

 SEUSL secured the 331st place at the World‟s most sustainable university 

in 2020 UI GreenMetric World University Rankings and secured the 1st 

place in country ranking. 

 

 

 Institutional Review was successfully concluded in February 2020 (24th to 

29th February 2020). The concerted efforts of the academics, 
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administrative, academic supportive and non-academic staff of the 

University resulted in securing Grade „B‟. 

 

 Quality assurance review of seven study Programmes has been completed. 

In which, three Programmes have secured B grades while four 

Programmes have secured C grades. University has taken initiatives to 

improve the gradings in future reviews through improving Quality 

Assurance System within the university. 

 

 End semester examinations and academic programmes were successfully 

conducted amidst the covid 19 pandemic period via online and physically. 

 

 Enable to enroll the new batch of the students for the academic year 

2018/2019 and academic programmes were successfully conducted via 

online. 

 

 Faculty of Arts and Culture commenced Postgraduate degree programmes 

by research such as MPhil /PhD in Geography, Philosophy, Political 

Science, Sociology and PhD in Tamil. 

 

 Proposal for introducing a new Bachelor of Arts Honours in Education 

degree programme in the Faculty of Arts and Culture has been submitted 

for the approval of the UGC. 

 

 Proposal developed for introducing a Bachelor of Arts Honours in History 

degree programme in the Faculty of Arts and Culture has been submitted 

for the approval of the relevant Authorities. 

 

 The Course Modules Such as Education, English and IT Courses were 

introduced as new main subjects for Bachelor of Arts degree programme 

at the faculty. 
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 13th General Convocation of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

was held on 16th and 17th of September 2020 at the University.  

 
 

 Sri Lankan Journal of Technology (SLJOT) was launched by the Faculty 

of Technology.  Sri Lankan Journal of Technology is one of the peer-

reviewed journals, which will have periodical publications intended to 

further the progress in relevant fields usually by reporting new 

research, published in the field of technology. 

 
 

 

 Faculty of Technology has commenced Postgraduate Research Degree 

Programme with 13 students in 2020. 

 

 University could expand the new student intake through enhancing 

access for higher education of the national policy (Figure 1.4). 
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Figure 1.4: Student enrollments for the last five academic years 

 

 Hostel facilities are substantially developed and all the eligible students 

are provided with accommodation. 

 
Figure 1.5: Hostel Occupations: 2015 - 2020 

 

 Faculty of Technology has secured a research grant worth of 40mn from 

AHEAD - RIC (Research Innovation and Commercialization). 
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 University was able to conduct four international and local research 

conferences. 

 

 During the year 2020, The University as a whole could publish 128 

research articles in indexed and refereed journals nationally and 

internationally.  

 

 Total number of publications during the year 2020 was 420. 

 

 The South Eastern University of Sri Lanka introduced awards an honour 

termed “Senate Honours for High Impact Publications”in 2019 in order to 

encourage the staff members to carry out high quality research and 

disseminate their research findings through publication of those in high 

quality journals. Details of Senate honor‟s awarded in 2020 are given in 

table 1.9.Tables 1.10 and 1.11 show the details of journal issues published 

by the university and annual research symposia conducted during the 

year 2020 respectively. 

 

Table 1.9: Senate honor‟s awrded for the year 2020 

Faculty 
No. of Senate Honours for high impact publications in 2020 
200th Senate 
(22.01.2020) 

201th Senate 
(13.05.2020) 

202th Senate 
(24.06.2020) 

205th Senate 
(19.08.2020) 

207th Senate 
(13.11.2020) 

FAC 01 01 02 02 19 

FMC 02 05 10 12 03 

FIA     02 

FAS  01  05 05 

FT 01  01 01  

Libraray    03  

Total 04 07 13 23 29 
 

Table 1.10: Journal issues published in 2020 by the university 

Faculty Journal Issues 

FAC Kalam – Volume 13   Issue No. 3 

FMC 

Journal of Marketing – Volume 5   Issue No. 1 & Issue No. 2 

Journal of Information System & Information Technology – Volume 5    
Issue No. 2 

Journal of Business Economics – Volume 2   Issue No. 1 

FIA 
Sri Lankan Journal of Arabic and Islamic Studies (SLJAIS)– Volume 3      
Issue No. 2 

FAS Journal of Science - Volume 1    Issue No. 1 

FT 
Sri Lankan Journal of Technology – Volume I   Issue No. 1 & Issue 
No. 2 
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Except the new faculties, other four faculties conducted their annual 

research symposia continuously.  

 

Table 1.11: Annual research symposia and conferences conducted by the university 

Name of the Conference/ 
Symposium 

Conference/ Symposium 
conducted in 2020 

Conducted 
By 

International Symposium 
(Intsym) 

10th International Symposium 
(Intsym - 2020) 

SEUSL 

South Eastern University 
International Arts Research 
Session (SEUIARS) 

9th South Eastern University 
International Arts Research 
Session (SEUIARS 2020) 

FAC 

Annual Science Research 
Sessions (ASRS)  

9th Annual Science Research 
Sessions – 2020  (ASRS 2020) 

FAS 

International Symposium  
7th International Symposium 
- 2020 

FIA 

 

 The usage of Learning Management System (LMS) for teaching and 

learning purposes has comparatively increased and initiatives are getting 

underway to maintain the LMS and ICT advancements in teaching and 

learning activities. 

 
 As at end of December 2020, a total of 67 academic staff completed their 

PhDs. 

 
 Number of staff have been promoted to the post of professors were 10 as 

at the end of December 2020. 

 
 Action plan and Procurement plan were completed in a comprehensive 

manner. 
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Failures and Justification 

i. The sea erosion continued to exist in the east part of the land of the 

University. The university could not arrest the issue with the current scale 

of capital allocation. However, the university has brought this matter to 

the consideration of the costal conservation Department and they have 

promised to take some initiatives to arrest the issue.  

 
ii. The university is facing the threat of floods during the rainy season due 

to overflowing of the Gal Oya. – The University could not get the flood 

protection bund established. Even though the university has approached 

relevant authorities, it is not materialized. 

 
iii. Recruitments: 

The university could not fill the following carder vacancies,  

 Permanent medical officers to the Health Center – Doctors are not 

applying to join the university service as they have better 

opportunities at a higher salary under the Ministry of Health. 

However, the Health Center center is functioning with medical 

officers appointed on part time basis.  

 

 Project manager - As engineers with relevant qualification and 

experience are not willing to serve the University at a low salary. 
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Future Plans  

 
i. To perform curriculum revisions of academic programmes informed 

by a consistent and a comprehensive policy for curriculum review. 

 
ii. To have the International Conference on Science and Technology in the 

month of July 2021 by the Faculty of Technology for the first time. 

 
iii. To commence External degree programme in Information & 

Communication Technology offered by Department of Information 

and Communication Technology of the Faculty of Technology. 

 
iv. To obtain ISO certification to the Faculty of Technology; 

 
v. To upgrade the Computer Unit of the Faculty of Arts and Culture into 

Department of Information and Technology. 

 
vi. To regularize standard operating policy for regular and standard 

review, upgrading and reviewing curricula for all study programmes. 

 
vii. To conduct curricular consultative programmes for all study 

programmes. 

 
viii. To enhance the optimal implementation of LMS. 

 
ix. To undergo quality assurance review of academic programmes which 

had not been reviewed.  

 
x. To take steps to increase the impact of our researchers. 

 
xi. Steps to form Department of Computer Sciences and Department of 

Human Resource Management under the Faculty of Applied Sciences 

and the Faculty of Management and Commerce respectively. 
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xii. To initiate the academic Programmes those are demanded by the 

society and industry. 

 
xiii. To introduce comprehensive enterprise research plans to automate and 

integrate co-organization functions. 

 
xiv. To codify the university calendar and policy framework. 

 
xv. Qualifying new linkage with other international partners for 

collaborative research. 

 
xvi. To stimulate staff to make University‟s grants and other competitive 

grants. 

 
xvii. Encouraging staff to upload their research articles in popular research 

networks, such as: Research Gate, Google Scholar, Academia, etc. to 

impact on University‟s ranking. 
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2. Details of Resources & Students 

Student population and permanent staff details of all categories as at end of December 2019 and end of December 2020 are shown in table 2.1. 

 

Table 2.1: Student population and details of permanent staff  

 

Faculty/Department/Dicision/Unit 

Total 
Students 

Total Academic 
Staff 

Academic Supportive 
Staff 

Administrative & 
Other Executive 

Staff 

Non -Academic & 
Non-

Administrative 
Staff 

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 

Faculty of Arts & Culture 1,176 1183 44 45 08 08 01 01 

426 420      

Faculty of Applied Sciences 686 769 35 32 02 02 01 01 

Faculty of Management & Commerce 1,264 1277 32 34 03 02 01 01 

Faculty of Islamic Studies & Arabic Language 1,220 1274 23 23 01 01 01 01 

Faculty of Engineering 452 441 29 30 
  

02 02 

Faculty of Technology 460 614 19 19 01 01 

Library 

 

6 06 01 01 01 01 

General Administration 

 

  
24 24 

CEDPL 01 01 

Physical Education Unit 03 03 

 
 
 

Information and Statistics Unit 01 01 

Career guidance Unit 01 01 
Network Operations Centre 01 01 

Other Departments  

Total 5,258 5,558 188 189 21 20 33 33 426 420 
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3. Details of Local Students 

Table 3.1:  Local Students (New Students) in Internal Undergraduate Degree Programmes 

Faculty 
Programme of 
study 

Year of 
Intake 

Agreed 
Intake 

No. 
Registered 

No. 
following 
the course 

Year of 
Intake 

Agreed 
Intake 

No. 
Registered 

No. 
following 
the course 

As at December 2019 As at December 2020 
Faculty of Arts and 
Culture 

Arts 2017/2018 350 337 355* 2018/2019 350 355 361** 

Faculty of 
Management and 
Commerce 

Management   
2017/2018 

140 137 137 

2018/2019 

140 124 124 

Commerce 120 103 101 120 106 106 

MIT 120 101 101 120 110 109 

Faculty of Applied 
Sciences 

Physical 
Science 

2017/2018 

150 122 102 

2018/2019 

150 103 103 

Biological 
Science 

150 137 115 150 125 120 

Faculty of Islamic 
Studies And Arabic 
language  

Arabic 
Language  2017/2018 

200 185 182 
2018/2019 

200 177 179 

Islamic Studies  250 243 231 250 217 213 

Faculty of 
Engineering 

Engineering 2018/2019 Intake held in January 2020 2018/2019 100 81 81 

Faculty of 
Technology 

BST 
2017/2018 

85 83 83 
2018/2019 

85 82 82 

ICT 75 71 71 75 69 69 

Total 1640 1519 1478 Total 1740 1549 1547 
 

* 18 students postponed from the academic year 2016/2017 have joined in 2017/2018 
**          06 students postponed from the academic year 2017/2018 have joined in 2018/2019 

 

 

 



Annual Report 2020 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka         

 

 

36 

  Table 3.2:  Local Students Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in Internal Undergraduate Degree Programmes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Faculty Programme of study 
Year of 
study 

Year of 
Intake 

UGC Intake (Local Students) 
Year of Intake 

UGC Intake (Local Students) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

As at 31st December 2019 As at 31st December 2020 

 Faculty of 
Arts and 
Culture 

Arts 1st Year 2017/2018 33 322 355 2018/2019 48 313 361 

Arts 2nd Year 2016/2017 25 299 324 2017/2018 33 321 354 

Arts 3rd Year 2015/2016 35 315 350 2016/2017 25 299 324 

Arts (Special) 4th Year 2014/2015 29 118 147 2015/2016 11 133 144 

   Sub Total 122 1,054 1,176 Sub Total 117 1,066 1,183 

Faculty of 
Management 
and 
Commerce 

Management  

1st Year 2017/2018 

39 98 137 

2018/2019 

56 69 125 

Commerce 38 63 101 27 79 106 

MIT 19 82 101 20 88 108 

Management  

2nd Year 2016/2017 

52 77 129 

2017/2018 

39 98 137 

Commerce 39 76 115 38 63 101 

MIT 20 92 112 19 82 101 

Management  

3rd Year 2015/2016 

59 75 134 

2016/2017 

53 76 129 

Commerce 33 75 108 39 76 115 

MIT 22 88 110 20 92 112 

Management  
4th Year 2014/2015 

42 82 124 
2015/2016 

59 75 134 

Commerce 37 55 92 33 75 108 

   Sub Total 400 863 1,263 Sub Total 403 873 1,276 

Faculty of 
Applied 
Sciences 

Physical Science 
1st Year 2017/2018 

49 53 102 
2018/2019 

44 52 96 

Biological Science 21 94 115 16 104 120 

Physical Science 
2nd Year 2016/2017 

59 47 106  
2017/2018 

50 51 101 

Biological Science 35 99 134 21 92 113 

Physical Science 
3rd Year 2015/2016 

68 33 101 
2016/2017 

59 47 106 

Biological Science 22 73 95 35 99 134 

Physical Science 
4th Year 2014/2015 

3 12 15 
2015/2016 

27 33 60 

Biological Science 4 12 16 4 33 37 

   Sub Total 261 423 684 Sub Total 256 511 767 
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Faculty Programme of study 
Year of 
study 

Year of 
Intake 

UGC Intake (Local Students) Year of 
Intake 

UGC Intake (Local Students) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

As at 31st December 2019 As at 31st December 2020 

Faculty of 
Islamic Studies 
and Arabic 
language  

Arabic Language  
1st Year 2017/2018 

61 121 182 
2018/2019 

60 119 179 

Islamic Studies  35 196 231 32 181 213 

Arabic Language  
2nd Year 2016/2017 

60 124 184 
2017/2018 

61 121 182 

Islamic Studies  39 199 238 35 196 231 

Arabic Language  
3rd Year 2015/2016 

64 121 185 
2016/2017 

60 124 184 

Islamic Studies  20 150 170 39 199 238 

Arabic Language  
4th Year 2014/2015 

3 12 15 
2015/2016 

10 12 22 

Islamic Studies  2 13 15 6 19 25 

   Sub Total 284 936 1,220 Sub Total 303 971 1,274 

Faculty of 
Engineering 

B.Sc. Engineering 1st Year 2017/2018 73 10 83 2018/2019 68 13 81 

B.Sc. Engineering 2nd Year 2016/2017 72 16 88 2017/2018 73 10 83 

B.Sc. Engineering 3rd Year 2015/2016 76 21 97 2016/2017 72 16 88 

B.Sc. Engineering 4th Year 2014/2015 80 12 92 2015/2016 76 21 97 

B.Sc. Engineering Final Year 2013/2014 71 21 92 2014/2015 80 12 92 

   Sub Total 372 80 452 Sub Total 369 72 441 

Faculty of 
Technology 

 
 

Biosystems Technology 
1st Year 2017/2018 

22 61 83 
2018/2019 

18 64 82 

ICT 44 27 71 53 19 72 

Bio systems Technology 
2nd Year 2016/2017 

15 65 80 
2017/2018 

22 61 83 

ICT 53 16 69 44 27 71 

Bio systems Technology 
3rd Year 2015/2016 

14 68 82 
2016/2017 

15 65 80 

ICT      59    16         75 53 16 69 

Bio systems Technology 
4th Year  2015/2016 

14 68 82 

ICT 59 16 75 

   Sub Total 207 253 460 Sub Total 278 336 614 

TOTAL 1646 3609 5255 TOTAL 1726 3829 5555 
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Table 3.3:   Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in External Undergraduate Degree Fee Levying Programmes 

 

Table 3.4:  Local Students New Entrants during (January – December 2019) and (January – December 2020) in Postgraduate Degree Programmes 

Programme of study Year of study 

Student Enrolment(total no. of 
registered students)  
(as at 31st December 2019) 

Student Enrolment(total no. of 
registered students)  
(as at 31st December 2020) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Bachelor of Arts 1st, 2nd& 3rd year 3,522 3,791 7,313 3,628 4,069 7,697 

Bachelor of Business Administration 1st, 2nd& 3rd year 2,346 1,016 3,362 2,401 1,081 3,482 

Bachelor of Commerce 1st, 2nd& 3rd year 320 284 604 315 274 589 

Total 6,188 5,091 11,279 6,344 5,424 11,768 

Name of the Faculty Programme of Study 
Full Time/ 
Part Time 

New Entrants  
(January – December 2019) 

New Entrants  
(January – December 2020) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Faculty of Arts and 
Culture 

PG Dip in Tamil Part Time 
 

 
 

3 1 4 

MA in Tamil Full/ Part 
Time 

1 3 4 

M.phil. in Tamil   2 2 2 8 10 

Faculty of Management 
and Commerce 

Master of Business 
Administration 

Full Time 32 05 37 32 11 43 

Faculty of Technology 
M.phil in Biosystems 
Technology 

Full Time  
  

4 2 6 

Part Time 3 4 7 

Total    34 05 39 45 29 74 
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Table 3.5:  Local Students Enrolment (Total No .of Students) in Postgraduate Degree Programmes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of the 
Faculty 

Programme of Study 
Full Time/ 
Part Time 

Student Enrolment (total no. 
of registered students) 
(as at 31st December 2019) 

Student Enrolment (total no. of 
registered students) 
(as at 31st December 2020) 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Faculty of Arts 
and Culture 

Pg Dip in Tamil Part Time 04 01 05 5 2 7 

MA in Tamil  Full/Part Time 08 06 14 4 6 10 

Mphil in Tamil   Full/Part Time 38 12 50 33 17 50 

Total  50 19 69 42 25 67 

Faculty of 
Management and 
Commerce 

PG Dip in Management  Full Time 12 01 13 12 01 13 

Master of Business 
Administration 

Full Time 231 52 283 249 63 312 

Total    243 53 296 261 64 325 

Faculty of 
Technology 

M.Phill in BioSystems 
Technology 

Full Time    

 

4 2 6 

Part Time   3 4 7 

 Total      7 6 13 

                                  Grand Total  293 72      365 310 95 405 
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4. Details of Foreign Students 

 Table 4.1:  Foreign Students (students selected under foreign category) Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in Undergraduate Degree Programmes – 2020 

(as at 31st December 2020) 

Faculty 
Programme of 
study 

Year of study Country 
Year of 
Intake 

Student Enrolment(total no. of 
registered students) 

Male Female Total 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 
Biological 
Science 

4thYear Nigeria 2014/2015 1 0 1 

Final Year Bangladesh 2013/2014 0 1 1 

Faculty of Management and 
Commerce 

Management 2nd Year Swaziland 2016/2017 1 0 1 

Total 2 1 3 
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5. Graduate Output 

 

Table 5.1: Undergraduate Output – Internal  

Faculty 
Programme 

of Study 

2019 

 

2020 

E
ff
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ct
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e
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o
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o

rt
 

(M
M

/Y
Y

) 

M
a

in
 (

M
)/

 
R

e
p

ea
t 

(R
) 

Relevant  
UGC 

Intake year 

No. Sat for the 
Final Exam 

Total No. 
Graduated 

E
ff

e
ct
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e

 
D
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f 

M
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C
o

h
o

rt
 

(M
M

/Y
Y

) 

M
a

in
 (

M
)/

 

R
e

p
ea

t 
(R

) 

Relevant  
UGC Intake 

year 

No. Sat 
for the 
Final 
Exam 

Total No. 
Graduated 

Engineering 
 

BSc. Engineering 
(Special) 

2/19 M 2012/2013 98 69 3/20 M 2013/2014 73 57 

2/19 R 2011/2012 1 1 8/20 M 2013/2014 15 10 

3/19 R 2012/2013 14 1 3/20 R 2012/2013 6 1 

4/19 R 2012/2013 24 7 8/20 R 2012/2013 1 1 

4/19 R 2012/2013 19 1 8/20  R 2012/2013 18 2 
            

Applied 
Sciences 

B.Sc  (Genaral) 

2/19 M 2014/2015 209 82 
7/20 
8/20 
9/20 

M 2015/2016 207 72 

2/19 R 2013/2014 60 9 9/20 R 2013/2014 10 07 

2/19 R 2012/2013 8 4 9/20 R 2014/2015 28 15 

B.Sc (Special) 2/19 M 2012/2013 10 10 

1/20 M 2013/2014 4 4 

2/20 M 2013/2014 8 8 

2/20 M 2013/2014 19 19 
            

Management 
& Commerce 

B.Sc MIT 

7/19 M 2014/2015 97 67 
7/20 M 2015/2016 110 68 

04/19 R 2010/2011 2 2 

04/19 R 2012/2013 3 3 
7/20 R 2014/2015 4 1 

04/19 R 2013/2014 9 4 

BBA 
(Special) 

09/18 R 2012/2013 6 4 
7/20 M 2014/2015 128 103 

10/18 R 2012/2013 27 11 

07/19 M 2013/2014 110 87 
7/20 R 2013/2014 3 1 

04/19 R 2012/2013 16 3 

B.Com 
(Special) 

09/18 R 2012/2013 4 1 
7/20 M 2014/2015 87 56 

10/18 R 2012/2013 20 16 
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07/19 M 2013/2014 69 55 
             

Arts & 
Culture 

BA. 
(Special) 

03/19 M 2012/2013 1 1 4/20 M 2014/2015 143 143 

03/19 M 2013/2014 90 89 4/20 R 2012/2013 1 1 

BA. 
(General) 

02/19 M 2012/2013 1 0 
3/20 M 2015/2016 204 192 

02/19 M 2013/2014 1 1 

02/19 M 2014/2015 118 117 3/20 R 2011/2012 1 1 

02/19 R 2012/2013 2 2 
3/20 R 2014/2015 4 4 

02/19 R 2013/2014 5 5 
            

Islamic 
Studies and 

Arabic 
Lanuage 

BA. 
(General) 

02/19 M 2014/2015 317 257 3/20 R 2014/2015 16 14 

02/19 R 2012/2013 8 2 
3/20 M 2015/2016 286 255 

02/19 R 2013/2014 23 12 

BA. 
(Special) 

03/19 M 2013/2014 45 37 5/20 M 2014/2015 28 24 

03/19 R 2012/2013 4 2 7/20 M 2014/2015 6 1 
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 Table 5.2: Undergraduate Output: External  

Program of study 
General/ 
Special 

No. Graduated 

(From January - December 2019) 
No. Graduated 

(From January - December 2020) 
Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Bachelor of Arts General 23 53 76 64 63 127 

Bachelor of Business Administration General 17 7 24 36 18 54 

Bachelor of Commerce General 7 9 16 5 10 15 

Total 47 69 116 105 91 196 
 

Table 5.3: Postgraduate Output  

Faculty Name of the Programme of Study 

No. Graduated 

(From January - December 2019) 
No. Graduated 

(From January - December 2020) 
Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Management & 
Commerce 

Master of Business Administration 14 01 15 14 0 14 

PG Diploma in Management 02  02    

Arts and Culture 
M.Phil in Tamil 01  01 3 1 4 

MA in Tamil 02 01 03 2 1 3 

Total 19 02 21 19 2 21 
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6. Details of Cadre 
 

Table 6.1:  Approved Cadre and Present Staff as at 31st December, 2020 - All Staff 

Service Category 

S
a

la
ry
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o

d
e
 

A
p

p
ro

v
ed

 C
ad

re
 Existing Cadres as at 

31.12.2020 

P
e
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t 

C
a
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ac
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ct
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 C
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V
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P
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T
e

m
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o
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C
o

n
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a
ct

 

V
is
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g
 

Primary Level         

Primary Grade - Unskilled U-PL 1 179 138 - - - 

35 35 Primary Grade - Semi skilled U-PL 2 45 37 - - - 

Primary Grade - Skilled U-PL 3  52 66 a,b - - - 

Secondary Level         

Clerical & Allied Staff 

U-MN 1 138 101 - - - 

12 8 
U-MN 2 6 4 - - - 

U-MN 3 15 8 - 4 - 

U-MN 4 - 34 d - - - 

Technical Staff 

U-MT 1 60 24 - 1 - 

36 34 

U-MN 1 5 3 - - - 

U-MN 2 3 2 - 1 - 

U-MN 3 - - - - - 

U-MN 4  - 3 c - - - 

Tertiary Level         

Academic Support Staff U-AS 1 22 11 - - - 11 11 

Other Executive Staff *2 U-EX 1 3 1 - - - 2 2 

Administrative Staff & Financial Staff *1 U-EX 1 17 13 - - - 4 4 

Academic Support Staff U-AS 2 14 9 6 - - 5 -1 

Temporary Tutor U-AC 1 (fixed) - - 1 - - 

49 49 

Temporary Instructor U-AC 1 (fixed) 18 - 9 - - 

Temporary Demonstrator U-AC 1 (fixed) 54 - 33 - - 

Temporary Research Assistant U-AC 2/ U-AC 1 (fixed) 1 - - - - 

Temporary Lecturer/Temp.Asst.Lecturer U-AC 2 (fixed) 61 - 42 - - 

Senior Level         

Medical officers 
U-MO 1 2 - - 4 - 

2 -2 
U-MO 2 - - - - - 

Other Executive Staff *2 U-EX 2 7 4 - - - 3 3 

Administrative Staff & Financial Staff *1 
U-EX 2  10 13 e - 1 - -3 -4 

U-EX 3 2 2 - - - - - 

Library Staff 

U-AC 3 5 5 - - - 

1 1 U-AC 4 1 - - - - 

U-AC 5 1 1 - - - 

Other 
Directors Allowances  3 - - 3f - - - 

Deans Allowances  6 - - 6f - - - 

Lecturer(Prob.) U-AC 3(IV) 

255 

59 

1 9 13 75 52 

Lecturer (unconfirmed) U-AC 3(III) 9 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 3 

Senior Lecturer Gr I U-AC 3(I) 54 

Senior Lecturer Gr II U-AC 3(II) 48 

Associate Professors U-AC 4 - 

Professor U-AC 5 (II) 7 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) - 

Professor Chair 
Senior Professors U-AC 5 (I) 

16 
- - - - 

13 13 
Professor U-AC 5 (II) 3 - - - 

Deputy Vice Chancellor/QA U-AC 5 (II) 1 - - - - 1 1 

Vice Chancellor U-AC 5 (I) 1 1 - - - - - 
 

Note:    *1 Designation as given in the Commission Circular No: 905     

 *2 Excluding Technical Staff  
a   UPL 2 categories converted to UPL 3 salary code on personal to the holder basis by Commission Circular No. 985 dated 

15.05.201. Therefore the following staff included in the salary code of UPL 3. (Library Attendants -03, Health Service 

Laborers -03 and Laboratory Attendants -03) 
b  In 2017 Cadre Book, the following cadres were suppressed. However these cadres were already filled before 2017. 

(Repairman – 01, Book Binder -01 and Machine Operator – 02) 
c,d Promotional level upliftment 
e   In 2017 Cadre Book, Administrative Staff & Financial Staff *1 cadres were re allocated. However these cadres were 

already filled before 2017. 
f Appointed from U-AC 3 category of staff attached in the faculties. 
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7.  Academic Staff and Academic Supportive Staff                                                                                                                                               

Table 7.1: Details of Academic and Academic Supportive Staff attached at 31st December 
2020 

 

P- Professor         SL1- Senior Lecturer Gr –I       SL2-Senior Lecturer Gr –II           L- Lecture/Lecturer (Unconfirmed)/Lecturer (Prob)    
AL- Assistant Lecturer  LB- Librarian SALB- Senior Assistant Librarian ALB-Assistant Librrian
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FAC 

Dept. of Political Science  2 1 3    1   4    

24 

Dept. of Languages 1 5 2 4    

  8 

Dept. of Geography 1 2 1 2    

Dept. of Social Sciences  5 1     

Dept. of Sociology 1 1 2 1    

Dept. of  Economics and Statistics  1  5    

Dept. of English Language 
Teaching  

 1 2 1 
   

 Total 3 17 9 16    1 4 8 24 

FIA 
Dept. of Islamic Studies  2 5 3    

  1 9 
Dept. of Arabic Languages  4 5 4    

 Total  6 10 7      1 9 

F
M

C
 

Dept. of Accounting & Finance 2 4 3 4    

 1 3    5 
Dept. of Marketing Management 1 3      

Dept. of Management 1 8 3     

Dept. of MIT  1 4     

 Total 4 16 10 4     1 2 5 

FAS 

Dept. of Mathematical Sciences 1 4 3 6    

 2 2 21 
Dept. of Physical Sciences  3  3    

Dept. of Biological Sciences  2 2 3    

Dept. of Chemical Sciences  2 1 2    

 Total 1 11 6 14     2 2 21 

FE 

Dept. of Civil Engineering  2 4 3    

6 6  19 

Dept. of Mechanical Engineering 1 1  4    

Dept. of Electrical & 
Telecommunication Engineering 

1 1  7 
   

Dept. of Computer Science & 
Engineering 

  1 3 
   

Dept. of Interdisciplinary Studies    2    

 Total 2 4 5 19    6 6  19 

FT 
Dept. of BioSystems Technology   5 4    

3   14 
Dept. of ICT   3 7    

 Total   8 11    3   14 

 

Library     1 3 2   1 

 
Career Guidance Unit          1 

Network Operations Centre          1 

Information and Statistics Unit          1 

Physical Education Unit          3 

Grand Total 10 54 48 71  1 3 2 10 13 20 92 
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8. Administrative, Financial and Other Executive and Non Academic Staff 

8.1 Details of Administrative, Financial and Other Executive Staff (Permanent)  

Staff Details 
Senior Tertiary 

2019 2020 2019 2020 

Administrative Staff & Financial Staff  15 15 13 13 

Other Executive Staff * 4 4 1 1 

Total 19 19 14 14 
 

* Assistant Internal Auditor, Director/ Accommodation, Works Engineer, Curator, Chief Security Officer 

 

8.2 Details of Non Academic and Non-Administrative Staff (Permenant) 

Staff Category 2019 2020 

Technical Staff 32 32 

Clerical And Allied Staff 150 147 

Primary Staff 244 241 

Total 426 420 
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9. The Employability of Graduands 

A measure on the employability of the SEUSL was obtained from a survey 

conducted among the graduands prior to the General Convocation, which was 

held on 16th and 17th of September 2020. The census of the graduands includes 

five faculties. Data were collected based on the questionnaire during March 2020. 

 
Respondents by Faculty and Gender 

Table 9.1: Frequency distribution of respondents by Faculty 

Faculty 
Number Graduated 

No. of Responses  
M F T 

Arts and Culture 20 168 188 157 (83.51%) 

Management and Commerce 100 181 281 267 (95.02%) 

Applied Sciences 59 97 156 143 (91.67%) 

Islamic Studies and Arabic Language 52 229 281 174 (61.92%) 

Engineering 65 17 82 71 (86.59%) 

All 296 692 988 812 (82.19%) 

 

Employability by Faculty 

 

Figure 9.1: Employability by Faculty 
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Table 9.2: Current Status of Employment by Faculty 

Faculty 
Current Status of the employment 

Permanent 
Temporary/ Contract 
/ Assignment Basis 

Self 
Employed 

Entrepreneur n 

FAC 54.76% 35.71% 9.52% 
 

42 

FMC 60.00% 31.11% 5.19% 3.70% 135 

FAS 68.82% 26.88% 4.30%  93 

FIA 37.50% 60.00% 2.50%  40 

FE 47.06% 51.47% 
 

1.47% 68 

 

Table 9.3: Employment Sector by Faculty 

Faculty Public Private 
Semi 
Government 

Self  
Employed 

Foreign 
Employment 

n 

FAC 64.10% 17.95% 5.13% 10.26% 2.56% 39 

FMC 42.97% 47.66% 5.47% 2.34% 1.56% 128 

FAS 70.21% 20.21% 6.38% 1.06% 2.13% 94 

FIA 41.03% 53.85% 
 

5.13% 
 

39 

FE 19.12% 66.18% 10.29% 1.47% 2.94% 68 

 

Table 9.4: Distribution of Employment by Economic Sector and by Faculty 

Economic Sector FAC FMC FAS FIA FE 

n 36 122 85 35 65 

Agriculture/Dairy 11.11% 3.28% 2.35%  1.54% 

Bank, Finance, Insurance  10.66% 1.18% 8.57%  

Construction /Engineering 2.78% 3.28%   56.92% 

Education 63.89% 29.51% 77.65% 48.57% 13.85% 

Manufacturing  10.66% 3.53%  4.62% 

Power & Energy   2.35% 2.86% 3.08% 

Hotels/Travels/Tourism 2.78% 5.74%  5.71%  

Health Care 2.78% 5.74% 4.71%   

Trade 2.78% 13.93% 1.18% 14.29% 1.54% 

Public Administration / Defence 2.78% 5.74%  17.14% 6.15% 

IT 8.33% 8.20% 5.88%  6.15% 

Telecommunication  0.82%  2.86% 3.08% 

Professional, Scientific & Technical   1.18%  1.54% 

Other 2.78% 2.46%   1.54% 
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10. Details of Research, Innovation and Publications  

Publication Category 

FAC FMC FAS FIA FE FT Library 
Other 
Dept./ 
Unit 

Sub  Total 

Total  

L F L F L F L F L F L F L F 
  

L F 

No. of full Papers published in indexed Journals 
including e-journals 

 27 - 49 1 16 - 10 - 13 - 7 - 4 
  

- 126 126 

No. of full Papers published in refreed non-
indexed Journals including e-journals 

31 26 17 22 4 2 5 10 - 4 8 - - - 
  

65 64 129 

No. of conference Papers published as full papers 
in Conference Proceedings 

4 4 5 1 - 2 22 1 7 2 - - - - 
  

38 10 48 

No. of Abstract Publications 7 1 5 - 33 2 - - - - - - 3 - 1  47 3 50 

Total no.of research articles published 100 99 58 48 26 15 07 01 150 203 353 

No. of Book Chapters published 32 2   4            36 2 38 

No. of 
Books 

By the Publisher 1  1              2 - 02 

By the Author 20  6  1            27 - 27 

 

   L-Published Local    F-Published Foreign  

 

The details of the above research, Journal, books and article which were done by academic staff members are given below. 
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FACULTY OF ARTS AND CULTURE    

Publications in refereed indexed journal 
 
Fazil, M.M., Fowsar, M.A.M., Kamlasiri, V., 
Sajeetha, T.F. and Sakki, M.B.S., (2020). 
“Accommodating Minorities into Sri 
Lanka's Post-Civil War State System: 

Government Initiatives and Their Failure”, 
Academic Journal of Interdisciplinary Studies, 
9(6). 
 
Fazil, M.M., and Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020).  
“Strong state and weak minority in post-
civil war Sri Lanka: A study based on state-
in-society approach”, International Research 
Journal of Management IT and Social 
Sciences 7(6). 
 
Fazil, M.M., and Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020). 
“The End of Sri Lanka‟s Civil War and the 
fall of the Liberation Tigers of Tamil Eelam 
(LTTE): A Critical Analysis of the 
Contributed Factors to the Defeat of the 
LTTE”, Journal of Politics and Law, 13(4). 
 
Kamalasiri, V., Fowsar, M.A.M., and Fazil, 
M.M. (2020). “Disarmament, Demobilisation 
and Reintegration of Armed Groups in Post-
war Sri Lanka: A Study based on 
Koralaipattu South Divisional Secretariat 
Division in Eastern Sri Lanka”, Journal of 
Politics and Law, 13(3). 
 
Fazil, M.M., Fowsar, M.A.M., Sakki, M.B.S., 
Sajeetha, T.F., and Kamalasiri, V., (2020). 
“State reluctance towards inclusive policies 
in post-civil war Sri Lanka”, Journal of Politics 
and Law. 
 
Fowsar, M.A.M., Rameez, M.A.M. and 
Rameez, A. (2020). “Muslim Minority in 
Post-war Sri Lanka: A Case Study of 
Aluthgama and Digana Violences”, Academic 
Journal of Interdisciplinary Studies, 9(6). 
 
Rameez, A., Fowsar, M.A.M., and Lumna, N., 
(2020). “Impact of Covid-19 on Higher 
Education Sectors in Sri Lanka: A Study 
based on South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanka”, Journal of Educational and Social 
Research, 10(6). 
 

Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020). “Local Democratic 
Crises in Sri Lanka: A Study based on 
Kalmunai Municipal Council”, Journal of 
Educational and Social Research 10(5). 
 
Ayoob, S.M, and Fowsar, and M.A.M., (2020). 
“Invasion of Paddy Combine Harvester 
(PCH) and Its Socioeconomic Impacts: A 
Study based on Ampara District, Sri Lanka”, 
Academic Journal of Interdisciplinary Studies, 
9(5). 
 
Ayoob, S.M, and Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020).  
“Dependency, Exploitation and Poverty 
among the Labourers of the Fishing 
Community”, Journal of Politics and Law 13(3). 
 
Irfan, M.I.M., and Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020). 
“Learning from the Chinese Model of 
Development and Moulding China - Sri 
Lanka Relations”, Journal of Politics and 
Law 13(3). 
 
Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020). “Third-Party 
Mediation in Sri Lanka‟s Peace Attempts: A 
Study on the Role of Norwegian 
Mediation”, Journal of Politics and Law 13(3). 
 
Fowsar, M.A.M., and Sajeetha, T.F., (2020). 
“Factors determining the access to e-services 
of public institutions in Sri Lanka: a case 
study of selected divisional secretariat areas 
in Ampara District”, International Research 
Journal of Management IT and Social 
Sciences 7(6). 
 
Nawaz, A.M.M, (2020). “Developing a 
Framework for Understanding Lecturer-
Student Interaction in English-Medium 
Undergraduate Lectures in Sri Lanka: First 
Step towards Dialogic Teaching”, 
International Journal of English Linguistics; Vol. 
10, No. 6; 2020. 
 
Nawaz, A.M.M, (2020).  “Ragging and Its 
Impacts on the English Language Use of the 
First Year Undergraduate Community: Sri 
Lankan Perspective”, Asian Journal of 
Education and Social Studies. 
 
Sameem, M.A.M., and Ibrahim, S., (2020). 
“History education as a veritable tool for 
sustainable management of security 

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/346013767_Accommodating_Minorities_into_Sri_Lanka's_Post-Civil_War_State_System_Government_Initiatives_and_Their_Failure
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/346013767_Accommodating_Minorities_into_Sri_Lanka's_Post-Civil_War_State_System_Government_Initiatives_and_Their_Failure
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/346013767_Accommodating_Minorities_into_Sri_Lanka's_Post-Civil_War_State_System_Government_Initiatives_and_Their_Failure
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/343977035_Disarmament_Demobilisation_and_Reintegration_of_Armed_Groups_in_Post-war_Sri_Lanka_A_Study_based_on_Koralaipattu_South_Divisional_Secretariat_Division_in_Eastern_Sri_Lanka
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/343977035_Disarmament_Demobilisation_and_Reintegration_of_Armed_Groups_in_Post-war_Sri_Lanka_A_Study_based_on_Koralaipattu_South_Divisional_Secretariat_Division_in_Eastern_Sri_Lanka
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/343977035_Disarmament_Demobilisation_and_Reintegration_of_Armed_Groups_in_Post-war_Sri_Lanka_A_Study_based_on_Koralaipattu_South_Divisional_Secretariat_Division_in_Eastern_Sri_Lanka
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/343977035_Disarmament_Demobilisation_and_Reintegration_of_Armed_Groups_in_Post-war_Sri_Lanka_A_Study_based_on_Koralaipattu_South_Divisional_Secretariat_Division_in_Eastern_Sri_Lanka
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/343977035_Disarmament_Demobilisation_and_Reintegration_of_Armed_Groups_in_Post-war_Sri_Lanka_A_Study_based_on_Koralaipattu_South_Divisional_Secretariat_Division_in_Eastern_Sri_Lanka
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challenges in Nigeria”, TEST Engineering & 
Management. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “Living with Aged 
Parents: Challenges and Opportunities”, 
International Journal of Psychosocial 
Rehabilitation, Vol: 24, Issue 07: 10806 – 10816. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “TEACHING AND 
LEARNING AMONG PRESCHOOL 
STUDENTS”, International Journal of 
Psychosocial Rehabilitation, Vol. 24, Issue 07. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., and Ayoob, S.M., (2020).  “The 
Roles and Problems. Of Retired Teachers: A 
Case Study with Special Reference to 
Selected Villages in Eastern Sri Lanka”, 
International Journal of Psychosocial 
Rehabilitation.   
 
Mahir, I.L.M., and Wazeema, M.T.F., (2020). 
“Social Aspects of Drug Addiction in Sri 
Lanka”, J. Pol. & L. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020).  “Senior Citizens and 
Their Roles in Family and Household”, 
Journal of Politics and Law. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020). “Picas Life of Elderly 
People in Ampara District of Sri Lanka”, 
Journal of Politics and Law. 
 
Fazil, M.M., (2020). "Migdal‟s Theory the 
State-in-Society in the Context of Sri Lanka: 
A Critical Review", Academic Journal of 
Interdisciplinary Studies. 
 
Sameem, M.A.M., and Sabraz Nawaz, S., 
(2020).  “Acceptance of E-Learning Systems: 
A Study of South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanka", TEST Engineering and Management, 
ISSN 0193-4120. 
 
Rameez, A. (2020). Post-War Development 
and Women‟s Empowerment in Eastern Sri 
Lanka: A Case Study of Batticaloa District in 
Eastern Province. Academic Journal of 
Interdisciplinary Studies, 9(4), 133-133.  
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020), “THE ELDERS AND 
THE PREFERENCE OF THE PLACE FOR 
MEDICAL TREATMENT”, Journal of 
Psychosocial Rehabilitation. 

Navaz, A. M. M. (2020). “Developing a 
framework for understanding lecturer-
student interaction in English-medium 
undergraduate lectures in Sri Lanka: First 
step towards dialogic teaching”,. 
International Journal of English Linguistics, 
10(6), 208-229. 
 

 
Publications in Non-indexed journals 

 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “Aesthetical 
Educational Issues in Educational 
Philosophical Views – A Study 
(fy;tpnka;apay; Nehf;fpy; mofpaw; 
fy;tprhh;e;j gpur;rpidfs; - xUghHit)”, 
Kalam Research Journal - Volume 13, pp.1-8, 
FAC, SEUSL.  
 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “The Reflection of 
Counselling Thoughts in Bhagavad Gita 
(gftj;fPijapy; ntspg;gLk; Mw;Wg;gLj;jy; 
rpe;jidfs;)> South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanka, pp.149-157, Journal of Pravaham - 
Volume I, FAC, SEUSL.  

 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “The concept of 
personality as expounded in Tamil literature 
(with special reference to the Sanka period 
literature Inna Narpathu and Iniyavai 
Narpathu”, Journal of Critical Review. 

 
Sameem, M.A.M., (2020).  “An Evacuation of 
the Social and Emotional Aspects of 
Learning (SEAL) Programme: Promoting 
Classroom Management in Secondary 
School”, Journal of Critical Reviews, 7 (11), 
2186-2193. 
 
Abdul Halik, A. F., & Fouzul Kareema, M. I. 
(2020). “Difficulties faced by the ESL 
Learners in using English Passive Voice in 
Written Communication: A study based on 
the Students of NAITA, Trincomalee, Sri 
Lanka”, Journal of KALAM, FAC, SEUSL. 

 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “Vipulananthar – A 
Multifaceted Scholar in Eastern 
Philosophical Thoughts - An Analysis”, 
Journal of Critical Review, pp.4689 – 4697. 
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Sajeetha, T.F., and Kaneshalingam, K.T., 
(2020). “Accountability of Public 
Institutions: A Bibliographic Survey”, 
KALAM- International Research Journal, Faculty 
of Arts and Culture, South Eastern University of 
Sri Lanka. 

 
Husna, M.H.F., and Fazil, M.M., (2020). 
“People‟s Awareness on Human Rights 
Commission: A study based on Kalmunai 
Regional Office of Human Rights 
Commison of Sri Lanka”, KALAM - 
International Research Journal, Faculty of Arts 
and Culture, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanaka.  

 
Fathima Rummana Mowlana, S.Y.U., Fazil, 
M.M., and Sajeetha, T.F., (2020). “Prospects 

and Challenges in implementing e-
government system in Sri Lanka: Study based 
on Kalmunai Divisional Secreatiat”, KALAM - 
International Research Journal, Faculty of Arts 
and Culture, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanaka.  
 
Sakki, M.B.S., and Fazil, M.M., (2020).  
“Easter Attacks and Crisis faced by 
Muslims”, KALAM - International Research 
Journal, Faculty of Arts and Culture, South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanaka.  
 
Rusniya, H.F., and Nufile, A.A.M., (2020). 
“The Impact of COVID-19 on Sri Lankan 
Economy”, KALAM - International Research 
Journal, Faculty of Arts and Culture, South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanka. 

 
Thahara, A.F., Rinosha K.F., and Washima, 
M.N.F., (2020). “An Econometric analysis 
between exchange rate regimes and 
economic growth in Sri Lanka”, Journal of 
Business Economics, South Eastern University of 
Sri Lanka. 

 
Washima, M.N.F., (2020). “Macroeconomic 
and demographic factors affecting on 
income inequality in Sri Lanka: a regression 
analysis”, Sambodhi Journal, UGC Care Listed 
Journal, Volume: 42, No.-1, ISSN No: 2249-6661, 
India. 

 
Santhirakumar, S., and Narmilan, A. (2020).  
“Impact of Environmental Factors on Trend 

of Milk Production: A Study Based in 
Batticaloa District, Sri Lanka”, Sambodhi 
Journal UGC Care Listed Journal Volume: 42, 
No.-1, ISSN No: 2249-6661, India 
 

Vithuna, G., Santhirakumar, S., and Mustafa, 
A.M.M., (2020).  “Impact of China- Sri Lanka 
Relationship on Economic Growth in Sri 
Lanka”, Journal of Business Studies –JBS 
Volume 4 Issue 2, ISSN No: 1800-1548, FCM, 
EUSL. 
 

Seefa, K.R.F., (2020).  “A Study of Arthur 
Miller‟s „Death of a Salesman‟ by 
incorporating the dramatic techniques 
proposed by Stanislavsky and Meyerhold”, 
Journal of Pravaham.  
 
Seefa, K.R.F., (2020). “Character Portrayal of 
Dr. Faustus as Both the Tragic Fool 
Destroyed by His Own Ambition and the 
Hero of the Changing Society: A Literary 
Analysis of the Play Doctor Faustus by 
Christopher Marlow”, Journal of Pravaham, 
Faculty of Arts and Culture, South Eastern 
University of Sri Lanaka.  
 

Subaraj, N., (2020). “,yq;ifapy; r%f 
ey;Ywit Vw;gLj;Jtjpy; fjpHfhkj;jpd; 
tfpghfk; - XH Ma;T”, Journal of Pravaham, 
Faculty of Arts and Culture, South Eastern 
University of Sri Lanaka.  
 

Subaraj, N., (2020). “jpUKiwfspy; Mj;kh 
gw;wpa rpe;jidfs;: jpUthrfk; kw;Wk; 
jpUke;jpuj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T”, Journal 
of Pravaham, Faculty of Arts and Culture, South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanaka.  
 
Subaraj, N., (2020). “mg;gH Rthkpfspd; 
Njthuj; jpUg;gjpfq;fspy; ntspg;gLk; Mz; - 
ngz; rkj;Jtk;”, Kalam Internaional Research 
Journal, Faculty of Arts and Culture, South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanaka.  
 

Selvakumari, S., (2020).  “Thayumanavar 
Thiruppadalkalil Nannaththaip Panpukal: 
Oar Aaivu”, Journal of Pravaham, Faculty of 
Arts and Culture, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanaka.  
 
De Costa, M.N., (2020). “THE ABSURD AND 
REVOLT; A Study of Absurd Heroes in 
Selected Fiction by Albert Camus”, Kalam 
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Internaional Research Journal, Faculty of Arts 
and Culture, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanaka.  
 
Saadhiya, M.A.S.F., (2020). “Representation 
of Superstitious beliefs and customs in 
Modern Tamil Literature”, Journal of 
Pravaham, Faculty of Arts and Culture, South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanaka.  
 
Saadhiya, M.A.S.F., (2020). “Muslim‟s beliefs 

as represented in Tamil Fiction”, Journal of 
Pravaham, Faculty of Arts and Culture, South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanaka.  
 
Saadhiya, M.A.S.F., (2020). “The Ethnic 
conflict and its consequences: A Study 
based on Upcountry Tamil poetry”, Kalam 
Internaional Research Journal, Faculty of Arts 
and Culture, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanaka.  
 
Saadhiya, M.A.S.F., (2020). “The influence of 
Tamil Literature in Islamic Tamil 
Literature”, Kalam Internaional Research 
Journal, Faculty of Arts and Culture, South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanaka.  
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020).  “The Contribution of 
Personality Development towards the 
Human Development Process – A 
Psychological Analysis of Development”, 
Journal of Modern Thamizh Research, Vol:08, 
N0:03, pp.67 - 73. 
 
Riyal, A.L.M., (2020). “மருத்துவ ஒழுக்கக் 

ககொள்ககளின் த ொற்றம் வளர்ச்சி”, KALAM - 
International Research Journal, Faculty of Arts 
and Culture, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanaka.  
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “kdpju;fsJcapupay; 
elj;ijfSk; fw;wy; tpUj;jpr; 
nrad;Kiwkhw;wq;fSk; - xUfy;tpcstpay; 
gFg;gha;T (The Biological Behavior of 
Human Beings and the Changes in Learning 
Development Process – An Educational 
Psychological Analysis)”, Journal of Modern 
Thamizh Research, Vol:08, N0:03, pp.128 - 136. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., and Fatheela, S.L.F.  (2020). 
“fy;tpnka;apaypy; &Nrh kw;Wk; jh$upd; 
,aw;ifthjr; rpe;jidfs; - Xu; xg;gPl;lha;T 
(The Naturalism Thoughts of Rousseau and 

Tagore in Educational Psychology -  A 
Comparative Study)”, Journal of Modern 
Thamizh Research, Vol:08, N0:02,  pp.1025–1036. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “fy;tpapy; nka;apaypd; 
gpuNahfr; nry;thf;F-Xu; gFg;gha;TNehf;F 
(The Practical influence of Educational 
Psychology – An Analysis)”, Journal of 
Modern Thamizh Research, Vol:08, N0:02,  
pp.1081-1092. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., and Fatheela, S.L.F. (2020). 
“ghypanewpgpwo;tpy; edtpypapd; tfpgq;F: Xu; 
cstpay; gFg;gha;T (The Role of 
Unconscious in Juvenile Deliquency: A 
Psychological Analysis)”, Journal of Modern 
Thamizh Research, Vol:08, N0:01,  pp.377–385. 
 
Ayoob, S.M. (2020). “Environment, Bio 
diversity and Islam”, Sri Lankan Journal of 
Arabic and Islamic Studies. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., Nazeera, J.F., and Wazeema, 
T.M.F., (2020). “Prevalence of Diseases in the 
High Populated Area: A Study Based in 
Kattankudy Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Batticaloa Distrcit”, Journal of Critical 
Reviews. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., Nazeera, J.F., and Wazeema, 
T.M.F., (2020). “Causes and Consequences of 
Tuberculosis: A Sociological Study Based on 
Medical Officer of Health Office, 
Kattankudy”, Journal of Critical Reviews. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020).  “Cultural Thoughts 
Affecting Sri Lankan Society and Moving 
the Society Towards Cultural Relativity”, 
Journal of Modern Thamizh Research. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020). “The clan System of 
Eastern Muslims and its Recent Trends”, 
Journal of Modern Thamizh Research. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020). “Humanism Found in 
Mahakavi's Poems: Preface to a Sociological 
Study”, Journal of Modern Thamizh Research. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020). “Concepts of Religion 
of Karl Marx: A Sociological Analysis”, 
Journal of Modern Thamizh Research. 
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Ayoob, S.M., (2020). “Sex and Gender: A 
Sociological Inquiry”, Journal of Modern 
Thamizh Research. 
 
Lumna, N., (2020). “Cultural Practices and its 
Changes of Eastern Muslims”, Journal of 
Social Review.  
 
Riswan, M., Ishaq, P., (2020). “Scarcity of 
Drinking Water in Pottuvil Water Supply 
Scheme”, Rajarata University Journal (RUJ). 
 
Riswan, M., Ibrahim, S., (2020). “Covid-19 
Outbreak and Risk of Suicide: Psycho-
Social Outlook”, International Journal of 
Advance Study and Research Work (2581-5997). 
 
Riswan, M., Ishaq, P., (2020). “Community 
Based Rural Drinking Water Supply System 
(Sustainability Challenge in Kannahipuram 
CBO Scheme”, Shanlax International Journal of 
Arts, Science and Humanities. 
 
Riswan, M., (2020). “Prevalence of Chronic 
Kidney Disease (Spatial Inquiry of 2016-
2017) in Polonnaruwa District, Sri Lanka”, 
Shanlax International Journal of Arts, Science 
and Humanities. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., (2020). “Beggary in the Society: 
A Sociological Study in the Selected 
Villages in Sri Lanka”, Journal of Xi'an 
University of Architecture & Technology, 
XI(XII): 1725-1736. 

Riswan, M., Jayasinghe, H.D.R.P., and Ishaq, 
P., (2020). “Water Scarcity in Aligambai 
Village, Alayadivembu Divisional 
Secretariat, Sri Lanka”, Shanlax International 
Journal of Arts Science and Humanities . 

Navaz, A. M. M. (2020). “Questions in 
English medium Instruction undergraduate 
lectures in a Sri Lankan university: why are 
they important?”, International Journal of 
Learning, Teaching and Educational Research, 
19(12), 208-229. 
 
Riswan, M., (2020). “ர஭ொபபர்ட் சாம்஧ர்ஸ் 
முன்வைத்த ஧ங்கேற்பு அணுகுமுவ஫ ததாடர்஧ா஦ 

நீ஭ாய்வு (Review on Robert Chambers‟ 

Participatory Approach)”, Journal of Modern 
Thamizh Research 8 (2), 657-665. 

Niroja, S., Riswan, M., (2020). “இ஬ங்வேனின் 
ைவு஦ினா நாைட்டத்தில் ஥ாட்஧ட்ட சிறு஥ீபே 
க஥ானின் ஧பம்஧லும் அதன் க஧ாக்கும் கு஫ித்த 
ஆய்வு”, Journal of KALAM, FAC, SEUSL.  
 

Navaz, A. M. M. (2020). “Pedagogical 
Requirements for ESL Instructors in Online 
Language Teaching: Practices and 
Perceptions from a Sri Lankan University”, 
Journal of KALAM, FAC, SEUSL.  
 
Ramani, A., Riswan, M., (2020). “சொதி 
ப௃றமற஫ப௅ம் அதன் விறரவுகளும்: கொற஭நகற஭ 
ற஫஬ப்படுத்தி஬ சப௄கவி஬ல் ஆய்வு”, Journal of 
KALAM, FAC, SEUSL.  
 

Riswan, M., (2020). “Participatory Rural 
Appraisal: A Conceptual Evaluation for 
Application”, Journal of KALAM. FAC, 
SEUSL.  
 
Riswan, M., and Bushra Begum, R.K., (2020). 
“Adoption of Participatory Approach in 
Rural Water Supply Schemes in Sri Lanka”,  
Journal of Aquatic Biology & Fisheries 2020 
(8(S)), 102-108. 
 

Navaz, A.M.N.,and Khaathoon, M.F. (2020). 
Teaching Grammar: A Comparison Between 
Schools and University. KALAM-International 
Research Journal.13(4):58-70. 
 
Rusniya, H., & Nufile, A. (2020). “The Impact 
of COVID-19 on Sri Lankan Economy”, 
KALAM - International Research Journal, 13(4), 
11 - 19. 
 
Wazeema, T. M. F., Ayoob, S. M., & Nazeera, 
J. F. (2020). “Causes and consequences of 
Tuberculosis: a sociological study based on 
medical officer of health office, Kattankudy, 
Sri Lanka”, KALAM - International Research 
Journal, FAC, SEUSL.  
 
Nazeera, J. F., Ayoob, S. M., & Wazeema, T. 
M. F. (2020). “Prevalence of diseases in the 
high populated area: a study based in 
Kattankudy Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Batticaloa District”, KALAM - International 
Research Journal, FAC, SEUSL.  
 
 
 

https://www.researchgate.net/journal/Shanlax-International-Journal-of-Arts-Science-and-Humanities-2321-788X
https://www.researchgate.net/journal/Shanlax-International-Journal-of-Arts-Science-and-Humanities-2321-788X
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Full Papers published in Conference 
Proceedings 
 
Wazeema, T.M.F., (2020). “Social exclusion 
and vulnerability of people in gypsy 
community”, 7th International Symposium. 
2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Mansoor, C.M.M., Issath Jahan, M.U., Zuha, 
R.F.M., Faslana, M.N.F., and Sanfara, A.S.S., 
(2020). “Psychological impact of the COVID-
19 epidemic on School Students in Nintavur 
division”, 7th International Symposium. 2020, 
FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Riswan, M., Shibly, F.H.A., Sharma Uzzal, 
Bushra, R.K., and Beegom, M., (2020). “A 
Study of Consumer‟s Attitude on Food 
Ordering Mobile Applications in Sri Lanka: 
A Case of Kandy Municipalit”. International 
Conference on „Anthropology of Food and 
Health‟', Department of Anthropology, 
University of Delhi,   
 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “The Way of 
Knowledge Indian Epistemology (,e;jpa 
mwpthuha;r;rpapay; mwpT ngWk; thapy;fs;)”> 
2nd World Thirukkural Conference, Organized by 
Jaffna University and World Research Centre. 
 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “A Psychological 
Analysis of Carl Rogers Person Centered 
Theory (fhs;Nuh[]pd; Ms;ikaf;  Nfhl;ghL 
– Xu; cstpay; gFg;gha;T)”> Inter Religious 
Scholars Forum, Madurai Kamarajar University, 
Tamil Nadu. 
 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “The Concept of 
Counseling in Eastern Philosophy – Special 
Study Based on Bagavth Geetha> (fPioj;Nja 
nka;apaypy; Mw;Wg;gLj;jy; - gftj; fPijia 
mbg;gilahff; nfhz;l Ma;T)”, National 
Research Symposium, Eastern University of 
SriLanka. 
 
Riswan, M., (2020). “நிறய஬ொன அபிவிருத்தி 
இயக்கு 6: பூபகொர குடிநீர் பற்மொக்குறமற஬ 
தீர்ப்பதில் உள்ர சவொல்கள்”, International 

Virtual Conference on „Role of Literature, 
Sociology and Science in the Development of 
Mankind‟. 
 

Riswan, M., (2020). “கி஭ொ஫ி஬ அபிவிருத்தித் 
திட்டங்களும் பங்பகற்பு அணுகுப௃றமப௅ம்: ஒரு 
சப௄கவி஬ல் ஫ீரொய்வு”, International Virtual 

Conference on „Role of Literature, Sociology and 
Science in the Development of Mankind‟. 
 
Abstracts published in Conference 
Proceedings 
 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “Vipullandhar‟s and 
Karl Marx‟s Educational thoughts - A 
Comparative Study”, 9th South Eastern 
University International Arts Research 
Symposium-2020 (SEUARS – 2020, FAC, 
SEUSL. 

Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020). “Displacement and 
Resettlement in a Post-war Setting: Sri 
Lanka‟s Experience”, International Conference 
on Consortium for Business, Marketing and 
Managemen, rtment of Commerce, St. John‟s 
College, Tirunelveli, Tamil Nadu, India. 
 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “Vipullandhar‟s and 
Karl Marx‟s Educational thoughts - A 
Comparative Study”, 9th South Eastern 
University International Arts Research 
Symposium-2020 (SEUARS – 2020, FAC, 
SEUSL. 
 
Ayoob, SM. and Rishatha, TF. (2020). 
“Extinction of Traditional Medicine and Its 
Social Changes: A Sociological Study Based 
on Sammanthurai”, 9th South Eastern 
University International Arts Research 
Symposium-2020 (SEUARS – 2020, 
FAC,SEUSL. 
 
Rifka Farwin, M.T. and Lumna Noohu. 
(2020). “Role of Local Government in Solid 
Waste Management: A Study with Special 
Reference to Yatiyanthota Pradesiya Sabha”, 
9th South Eastern University International Arts 
Research Symposium-2020 (SEUARS – 2020, 
FAC,SEUSL. 
 
Sifna, M.I.F., and Lumna Noohu, (2020). 
“Challenges of Social Development: A 
Sociological Study in Sammanthurai Sennel 
Gramam – 02 Division”, 9th South Eastern 
University International Arts Research 
Symposium-2020 (SEUARS – 2020, 
FAC,SEUSL. 

http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5134
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5134
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5134
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5103
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5103
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5103
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Riswan, M., & Bushra Beegom, R. K. (2020). 
“Participatory Approach for Community 
Development: Conceptual Analysis.” 9th 
South Eastern University International Arts 
Research Symposium-2020 (SEUARS – 2020, 
FAC, SEUSL. 
 
Misba, M. M., & Kaleel, M. I. (2020). “Socio-
economic and environmental impacts of 
landslide in Kegalle District in Sri Lanka: 
study based on selected areas”, 9th South 
Eastern University International Arts Research 
Symposium-2020 (SEUARS – 2020, 
FAC,SEUSL. 
 
 

Book Chapters Published 
 

Fazil, M.M., 2020. “Negotiating access to 
land in eastern Sri Lanka: social 
mobilization of livelihood concerns and 
everyday encounters with an ambiguous 

state”, Edited by Shahul H. Hasbullahand, 
Routledge. 
 
Riyal> A.L.M.> (2020). “இஸ்லொத்தில் அகமதி 
மற்றும் நீதிக் தகொட்பொட்டு அம்சம்கள் மஹீர் 
எல். எம். (பதிப்பு).சமூக பிரச்சிகைகள்”, 
Volume 1, pages 253-293, Excellent 
Publications, Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka.  
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “rkak; gw;wpa khu;f;]pa 
kw;Wk; r%ftpay;  Nehf;F – xU nka;apay; 
gFg;gha;T  (Marxist and Sociological 
Perspective on Religion – A Philosophical 
Analysis) in Edited by  Mahir I.L.M.,  r%f 
gpur;rpidfs; - jj;Jthu;j;j gpd;dzpfSk; 
rkPgj;jpa Nghf;FfSk; (Social Problems – 
Philosophical Backgrounds and Recent 
Trends)”, Excellent Publications, 
Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka, pp. 23-35. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., Shireen Jahan, B., (2020).  
“KjpNahuplj;jpy; Njhd;Wk; mwis ngau;jy; 
(Dementia) NehAk; mjw;fhd fhuzq;fSk; 
(Dementia Disease and Its Reasons Among 
the Elderly People)  in Edited by  Mahir 
I.L.M.,  r%f gpur;rpidfs; - jj;Jthu;j;j 
gpd;dzpfSk; rkPgj;jpa Nghf;FfSk; (Social 
Problems – Philosophical Backgrounds and 
Recent Trends)”, Excellent Publications, 
Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka, pp. 237-252. 
 

Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “khu;f;]pa nka;apay; 
Nehf;fpy; r%f tpUj;jp khw;wq;fs;- xU 

gFg;gha;T (Social Development Changes on 
Marxist Philosophical  Perspective  – An 
Analysis) in Edited by Mahir I.L.M., r%f 
rpe;jidfs; - rkfhyg; gjpTfs; (Social 
Thoughts – Contemporary Phenomena)”, 
Excellent Publications, Sainthamaruthu, Sri 
Lanka, pp. 32-38. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., Fatheela, S.L.F., (2020). 
“Nkiyj;Nja kuGrhu; fy;tp nka;apaw; 
rpe;jidfspd; gpd;dzp -  Xu; gFg;gha;T 
Nehf;F (A Background of the Western 
Educational Philosophical Thoughts  – An 
Analysis) in Edited by Mahir I.L.M., r%f 
rpe;jidfs; - rkfhyg; gjpTfs; (Social 
Thoughts – Contemporary Phenomena)”, 
Excellent Publications, Sainthamaruthu, Sri 
Lanka, pp. 308-328. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “Fwpapay; 
csg;gFg;gha;Tk; [f;Ft]; yf;fhDk; - Xu;  
cstpay; gFg;gha;T (Children and Attitude 
Development  – A Psychological Analysis) 
in Edited by Ayoob S.M., ngz;zpaKk; 
nkhopAk; - Gj;jp[Ptpj;Jt ciuahly;fs; 
(Feminism and Language – Intellectual 
Dialogues)”, Excellent Publications, 
Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka, pp. 163-177. 
 

Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “Foe;ijfspd; nkhop 
tpUj;jpAk; elj;ij khWghLfSkk; - xU 
Foe;ij cstpay; Ma;T (Language 
Development and Behavioral Changes in 
Children  – A Child Psychological Study) in 
Edited by Ayoob S.M., ngz;zpaKk; 
nkhopAk; - Gj;jp[Ptpj;Jt ciuahly;fs;. 
(Feminism and Language – Intellectual 
Dialogues)”, Excellent Publications, 
Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka, pp. 35-52 
 

Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “Foe;ijfSk; 
kdg;ghq;F tpUj;jpAk; - xU Foe;ij 
cstpay; Ma;T (Language Development 
and Behavioral Changes in Children  – A 
Psychological Analysis) in Edited by Ayoob 
S.M., r%f cstpay; gpur;rpidfs; - 
mz;ikahd nry;newpfSk; $u;ikahd 
tpthjq;fSk”; (Socio – Psychological Problems: 
Recent Trends and Sharp Debates), Excellent 
Publications, Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka, pp. 15-
29. 
 
Mahir, I.L.M., (2020). “my;gu;l; ge;Juhtpd; 
r%f mwpiff; fw;wy; Nfhl;ghl;by; Ra nray; 
jpsdpd; jhf;fk; - xU r%f cstpay; 
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gFg;gha;T  (The Impact of Self –efficacy 
Ability in the Social Learning Theory of 
Albert Bandura – A Socio-Psychological 
Analysis) in Edited by Ayoob S.M., r%f 
cstpay; gpur;rpidfs; - mz;ikahd 
nry;newpfSk; $u;ikahd tpthjq;fSk;”  
(Socio –Psychological Problems: Recent Trends 
and Sharp Debates), Excellent Publications, 
Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka, pp. 15-29.  
 
Kanesarajah, K., (2020). “A Psychological 
Analysis of Carl Rogers Person Centered 
Theory (fhu;s; Nwh[u;]pd; Ms;ikaf; 
Nfhl;ghL–xU cstpay; gFg;gha;T) rka 
,yf;fpaq;fSk; mwtpay; fUj;jhf;fq;fSk;” ;> 
SawnLocks Prints, Madurai,India,  pp. 56 – 63.  
 
Kanesarajah, K., 2020. “Tamilian Educational 
Thoughts – Special Study on Thirumoolar 
and Thirukkural  (jkpoh; fy;tpg;ghuk;gupak; – 
jpU%yiuAk; jpUf;FwisAk; mbg;gilahff; 
nfhz;l Ma;T)”, Language and Feminism 
Excellent Publication, Sainthamaruthu.  pp.196 – 
212 
 
Kanesarajah, K., 2020. “Child Social and 
Psychological Issues on Disasters – A View 
(mdHj;jq;fspd; NghJ rpWtHfSf;F Vw;gLk; 
cs r%fg; gpur;rp;idfs;; - xU Nehf;F)”> 
Thurkka Publish, Batticaloa.  pp.171 – 186. 
 
Kanesarajah, K., 2020. “The Forecasting of 
Indian Logic and Aristotelian Logic (,e;jpa 
epahaKiwAk; mhp];Nlhl;bypd; 
epahaKiwAk; - xU Nehf;F) r%f rpe;jid 
– rkfhyg; gjpTfs”;> Excellent Publication, 
Sainthamaruthu, pp.267 – 281 
 
Kanesarajah, K., 2020. “The Philosophy of 
Vallalaar – A Analysis (ts;syhhpd; 
nka;apay; rpe;jidfs; - xU gFg;gha;T)”, 
Excellent Publication, Sainthamaruthu. pp. 294 – 
305 
 

Ayoob, S.M.  Rifka Farwin, M.T. 2020. 
“tpgr;rhuk;: r%ftpay; Nehf;F (Prostitution: 
A Sociological View). In edited by 
Kanesharaja, K. on Philosophical Analysis: 
Dialogues”, Karaitivu: Ifna Publication, pp: 
209-229. 
“r%f Gyf;fhl;rp (Social perception) : gpw 
egu;fisg; Gupe;J nfhs;tjw;fhd Kaw;rp 
(Social Perception: An attempt to 
understand other people). In edited by 
Mahir I.L.M. on Social Problems: 

Philosophical backgrounds and recent 
trends”,Sainthamaruthu: Excellent Publication, 
pp: 205-222. 
 
Ayoob, S.M. and Nazeera, J.F. 2020. 
“rkaj;jpd; njhopw;ghLfs; Fwpj;j r%ftpay; 
kw;Wk; khdpltpayhsu;fspd; mtjhdq;fs; 
(Sociologists and anthropologists' 
observations on the functions of religion). 
In edited by Mahir I.L.M. on Social 
Problems: Philosophical backgrounds and 
recent trends”, Sainthamaruthu: Excellent 
Publication, pp: 11-132. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., 2020. “#oy; gpur;rpidfspd; 
r%f fl;Lkhdk; (Social Construction of 
Environmental Problems). In edited by 
Ayoob S.M. on Socio-Psychological 
Problems: Recent Trends and Sharp 
Debates”, Sainthamaruthu: Excellent 
Publication, pp: 287-300. 
 
Ayoob, S.M. and Nazeera, J.F. 2020. 
“fhrNeha;: Ma;Tf;fhd rpy mtjhdf; 
Fwpg;Gfs; (A sociological study on 
Tuberculosis). In edited by Mahir I.L.M. on 
Social Thoughts: Contemporary Records”, 
Sainthamaruthu: Excellent Publication, pp: 147-
166. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., 2020. “gpr;irf;fhuu;fSk; 
mtu;fsJ tho;nthOq;FfSk; (Beggars and 
their livelihoods). In edited by Ayoob S.M. 
on Socio-Psychological Problems: Recent 
Trends and Sharp Debates”, Sainthamaruthu: 
Excellent Publication, PP: 55-80. 
 
Ayoob, S.M. and Wazeema, T.M.F. 2020. 
”ngz;fis tYT+l;lYk; tYT+l;lg;gl;l 
ngz;fSk; (Women empowerment and 
empowered women). In edited by Mahir 
I.L.M. on Social Problems: Philosophical 
backgrounds and recent trends”. 
Sainthamaruthu: Excellent Publication, pp. 15-33 
 
Ayoob, S.M. 2020. “ghypay;thjKk; 
Mzhjpf;fKk;: ngz;mlf;FKiwapd; gpujhd 
%yq;fs; (Sexism and Patriarchy: The main 
sources of female oppression). In edited by 
Mahir I.L.M. on Social Thoughts: 
Contemporary Records”. Sainthamaruthu: 
Excellent Publication, pp.13-29. 
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Ayoob, S.M. 2020. “ngz;fspd; ghy;epiy 
tfpghfq;fs;: Gj;jp[Ptpj;Jt ciuahly;fs; 
(Gender Roles of Women: Intellectual 
Dialogues). In edited by Ayoob S.M. on 
Feminism and Language: Intellectual 
Dialogues”, Sainthamaruthu: Excellent 
Publication, pp.135-162. 
 
Lumna, N. 2020. “Sri Lankan Muslim 
Women and Hijab: Emerging Debates. In 
S.M.Ayoob. (Ed.).  Feminism and Language: 
Intellectual Dialogues”, Excellent Publication. 
ISBN-978-955-3492-04-3. 
 
Lumna, N. 2020. “Exclusion: A 
Multidimensional View. In S.M.Ayoob. 
(Ed.). Socio-Psychological Problems: Recent 
Trends and Sharp Debates”, Excellent 
Publication. ISBN-978-955-3492-05-0. 
 
Lumna, N., 2020. “Urban Anthropology: 
Growth of the Discipline and Scope. In 
I.L.M.Mahir. (Ed.). Samuha Pirachinaihal: 
Thatthuvarttha Pinnanihalum 
Sameefatthiya Pokkuhalum”, Excellent 
Publication. ISBN-978-955-3492-07-4. 
 
Lumna, N., 2020. “Cyber Bullying: Socio-
Psychological View. In I.L.M.Mahir. (Ed.). 
Samuha Sinthana Samakala Pathivukal”, 
Excellent Publication. ISBN-978-955-3492-08-1. 
 
Riswan, M., (2020), “஧ிபகனாே சமூேைினலும் 
அதன் ஧னன்஧ாடும் (Applied Sociology and 

Its Usage) In Ayoob, S.M. (Ed.). “Feminism 
and Language: Intellectual Dialogues 
(ngz;zpaKk; nkhopAk;: Gj;jp[Ptpj;Jt 
ciuahly;fs;)”. Sainthamaruthu: Excellent 
Publication. 
 
Riswan, M., (2020), “சப௄கவி஬லும் அதன் 
விஞ்ஞொனத் தன்ற஫ப௅ம் (Sociology and Its 

Scientific Nature) In Ayoob, S.M. (Ed.). “Socio-
Psychological Problems: Recent Trends and 
Sharp Debates (r%f - cstpay; 
gpur;rpidfs;: mz;ika nry;newpfSk; 
$u;ikahd tpthjq;fSk);”,  Sainthamaruthu:: 
Excellent Publication. 
 
M Riswan, M., (2020). “Women: Key Pillars 
to Achieve Sustainable Development Goals, 
In WOMEN IN 21st CENTURY: A GLOBAL 

SCENARIO, 17-28, New Delhi: Mittal 
Publications. 
 
Riswan, M., and Bushra Begum, R.K., (2020).” 
Urban Slum Dwellers in Sri Lanka: 
Problems and Policy Adoption, In Smart, 
Sustainable and Inclusive Cities: Changing 
Urban Dynamics, 103-113, Bangalore: Archers 
& Elevators Publishing House. 
 
Books Published  
 

Riyal> A.L.M.>. Jahfrin, A.M.F., 2020> 
சூபித்துத்துவதின் த ொற்றம் வளர்ச்சி” > Ifnan 
Published, Kalmunai. [ISBN 978-624-5165-02-5]  
 
Riyal> A.L.M.>. ச ௌமியா. ஏ.எப். 2020> 
“இஸ்லொமிய கமய்யியலின் அடிப்பகைகள்”>    
Ifnan Published, Kalmunai. [ISBN 978-624-5165-
03-2]  
 
Kanesarajah, K., 2020. “Text Book - Teaching 
Issues in Psychology (cstpay; Nehf;fpy; 
fw;gpj;jy; rhH gpur;rpidfs” , Published by 
Centre for External Degrees and Professional 
Learning, South Eastern University of Sri Lanka.  
(ISBN: 978-955-627- 234-5) 
 
Kanesarajah, K., 2020. “(Eastern and Western 
Logic (Selective Topics) Nkiyj;Nja 
fPioj;Nja msitapay; -Njh;e;njLf;fg;gl;l 
jiyg;Gfs;”> University Undergraduate 
Association, Karaitivu. ISBN: 978-624-96158-1-6  
 
Kanesarajah. K., 2020. “Work Book on Logic 
and Philosophy (msitapay; kw;Wk; 
nka;apay; njhlHghd XH gapw;rp E}y;)”> 
HariHaran Printers, Jaffna. ISBN 978-624-
96158-2-3 
 
Kanesarajah, K., 2020. “Personality - 
Introduction (MSik – mwpKfk;)”> Ifnan 
Published, Kalmunai. ISBN: 978-624-96158-0-9 

Mahir, I.L.M., 2020.  “cstpaypd; mbg;gil 
gpur;rpidfs; (Fundamental Issues in 
Psychology)”, Center for External Degrees and 
Professional Learning (CEDPL), South Eastern 
University of Sri Lanka 

Mahir, I.L.M., 2020. “r%f rpe;jidfs; - 
rkfhyg; gjpTfs ; (Social Thoughts – 
Contemporary Phenomena)”, Excellent 
Publications, Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka. 



Annual Report 2020 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka         

 

 

59 

 
Mahir, I.L.M., 2020.  “r%f gpur;rpidfs; - 
jj;Jthu;j;j gpd;dzpfSk; rkPgj;jpa 
Nghf;FfSk; (Social Problems – 
Philosophical Backgrounds and Recent 
Trends)”, Excellent Publications, 
Sainthamaruthu, Sri Lanka. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., 2020. “Socio-Psychological 
Problems: Recent Trends and Sharp Debates 
(r%f - cstpay; gpur;rpidfs;: mz;ika 
nry;newpfSk; $u;ikahd tpthjq;fSk);”,  
Sainthamaruthu:: Excellent Publication. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., 2020. “Contemporary Social 
Problems (rkfhy r%fg; gpur;rpidfs;)”,   
Sainthamaruthu: Excellent Publication (2nd 
Edition). ISBN-978-955-3492-09-8. 
 
Ayoob, S.M., 2020.  “Social Institutions (r%f 
epWtdq;fs;). Oluvil: Centre for External 
Degrees and Professional Learning 
(CEDPL)”, South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanka. ISBN-978-955-627-239-0. 
 
 

Faculty of Management and commerce 
 
Publications in refereed indexed journal 
 

Mustafa, A.M.M., and Selliah 
Sivarajasingham., (2020), "Dynamic Linkages 
between Food inflation and its volatility: 
Evidence from Sri Lanka Economy", Asian 
Finance Economics and Business. 
 
Mustafa, A.M.M., and Selliah 
Sivarajasingham, (2020), “Macroeconomic 
Impact of Foreign Direct Investment in Sri 
Lanka", International Journal of Recent 
Technology and Engineering (IJRTE). 
 
Mustafa, A.M.M., (2020), “Contribution of 
Tourism and Foreign Direct Investment to 
Gross Domestic Product: Econometric 
Analysis in the Case of Sri Lanka", Asian 
Finance Economics and Business, Vol. 6, Issue 4, 
109-114, ISBN: 2288-4637. 
 
Kaleel, M.I.M., and Sabraz Nawaz. S., (2020), 
“Impact of social media marketing elements 
on consumer-brand engagement”, Journal of 
Advanced Research in Dynamical and Control 
Systems, 12(2): 2263-2275. 

 
Sabraz Nawaz, S., Sameem, M.A.M., (2020). 
“Acceptance of E- Learning Systems: A 
Study of South Eastern University of Sri 
Lanka", TEST Engineering and Management, 
ISSN: 0193-4120. 
 
Sabraz Nawaz, S., and Thowfeek, M.H., 
(2020), “Blockchain technology adoption by 
chain professionals”, Hampstead Psychological 
Associates, International Journal of Psychosocial 
Rehabilitation. 
 
Sabraz Nawaz, S., (2020), “Embracing 
industry 4.0 guidelines for Managers”, 
International Journal of Psychosocial 
Rehabilitation, Vol.24, Issue.02, 2020, ISSN: 
1475-7192. 
 

Sabraz Nawaz, S., Hilmy, H.M.A., and 
Gunapalan, S., (2020), “Islamic Banking 
Customers‟ Intention to use Mobile Banking 
Services: A Sri Lankan Study”, Journal of 
Advanced Research in Dynamical and Control 
Systems. Vol.12, Issue-02, 2020. 
 
Sabraz Nawaz, S., (2020), “Acceptance of 
Cloud of Things by Small and Medium 
Enterprises in Sri Lanka”, Journal of Advanced 
Research in Dynamical and Control Systems. 
Vol.12, Issue-02, 2020. 
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Full Papers published in Conference 
Proceedings 

 
Naleer, H.M.M., Shibly, F.H.A., and Uzzal 

Sharma., (2020), “Cassifying and measuring 

hate speech in twitter using topic classifier 

of sentiment analysis”, International 

Conference on Innovative Computing and 

Communications, pp 671-678, Springer, 

Singapore. 
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Fathima Mafaziya Nijamdeen., Rubiera 

Rodriguez, S., Jung, T.W.G., Hugé, J., and 

DahdouhGuebas.,(2020), “Conceptualizing 

human wellbeing in mangrove ecosystems 

in sri lanka: are we forgetting to link 

perception and reality?, in: icymare, 

international conference for young marine 

researchers”, 28195 Bremen, Germany. 

 
 
Abstracts published in Conference 
Proceedings  

 
Hisam, M.S.M., and Faham, M., (2020), 
“Second Order Taylor Polynomial 

Approximation of Triple Integral”, 9th 
Annual Science Research Session,(ASRS) FAS, 
SEUSL. 

 
Hanees, A.L., and Manikandan, S., (2020), 

“Block chain technology: myths, ethics and 

current trends in it and ides”, 9th Annual 

Science Research Session, (ASRS) FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Danushka, A., and Naleer, H.M.M., (2020), 

“Energy consumption monitoring and 

prediction platform based on lora-iot and 

machine learning”, 9th Annual Science 

Research Session, (ASRS) FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Samaraweera, K.G.S.N., and Naleer, H.M.M., 

(2020), “A safe sri lankan currency detection 

application using image classification for 

visually handicapped people under covid-19 

situation”, 9th Annual Science Research Session, 

(ASRS) FAS, SEUSL. 

 
Imantha, Y., and Naleer, H.M.M., (2020), 

“Deep learning system for automatic license 

plate recognition to track sri lankan vehicles 

which needed or with legal issues”, 9th 

Annual Science Research Session, (ASRS) FAS, 

SEUSL. 

 
Jahan, M.A.C., (2020), “Rotation and scale 

invariant feature representation for 

degraded palm prints”, 9th Annual Science 

Research Session, (ASRS) FAS, SEUSL.  

Komathiraj, K., (2020),“Relativistic charged 

stellar models in the presence of 

electromagnetic field for astrophysical 

compact stars”, 9th Annual Science Research 

Session, (ASRS) FAS, SEUSL.  

 

De Zoysa, G.I.C.L., and Jahufer, A., (2020), 

“Effect of carbon dioxide on emission 

economic growth, energy consumption and 

population growth in saarc countries”, 9th 

Annual Science Research Session, (ASRS) FAS, 

SEUSL.  

 

Manthilake, M.N.R.S.S., and Razmy, A.M., 

(2020), "A Search for a Method For 

Assessing the Destruction by the Tea Shot-

Hole Borer (Xyleborus Fornicatus) in the Tea 

Planation”, 9th Annual Science Research Session, 

(ASRS) FAS, SEUSL.  

 

Viyanage, M.P., Manage, T.R.T., De Silva, 
R.C.L., Nayanajith, L.D.C., Samarawickrama, 
D.S., Jafeen, M.J.M., and Kottegoda, I.R.M. 
(2020), “Mechanical properties of 
compounded natural latex/ graphite 
composites “, 9th Annual Science Research 
Session (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Farhan, M.S.M., and Jafeen, M.J.M.  (2020), 

“Electrochemical behavior of ppy (dbs) 

films in 𝐁𝐚𝐂𝐥2 electrolytes”,  9th Annual 

Science Research Session (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL.  

 

Samanmali, V.G.C., and Madugalla, T.B.N.S, 
(2020),”Preparation of hematite 
nanoparticles using iron ores at buttala, sri 

lanka”, 9th Annual Science Research Session 
(ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 
 

Hansika, P.A.D.,  Perera, K.S., 

Vidanapathirana, K.P., and Zainudeen, 

U.L., (2020), “characterization of a Gel 

Polymer Electrolyte and Performance 

Assessment in Super Capacitor Using 

Electrochemical Impedance Spectroscopy”, 

9th Annual Science Research Session (ASRS), 

FAS, SEUSL. 
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Raafi, M.A.C.M., and Parry, D., (2020), “An 

agent based approach for detection of 

clinician activities:a feasibility study “, 9th 

Annual Science Research Session(ASRS), FAS, 

SEUSL. 

 

Aththanayaka, P.M.I.U., and Naleer, H 
M.M., (2020),“Sentimental analysis of 
comments in social media in sinhala – 
english code-mixed language using 
supervised learning techniques “, 9th Annual 
Science Research Session (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 
 

Mohamed, F., Zainudeen, A., 

and Amarasinghe,T., (2020),“classification of 

sri lankan adults into age groups with 

optimally different likelihoods of mobile 

phone adoption “, 9th Annual Science Research 

Session (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 
 

Hasaranga, D.K.S., and Naleer, 

H.M.M., (2020), “Image processing based on 

health assistant “, 9th Annual Science Research 

Session (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Rifaza, .F., Jahan, M.A.C.A., and Firdhous, 

M.F.M., (2020), “Traffic management system 

using air quality index “, 9th Annual Science 

Research Session (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Sujarajini1, V., and Laviprathan, S., 

(2020),“Travellers prophylaxis -an effective 

measure of malaria control”, 9th Annual 

Science Research Session (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Kalinga, J., and Safeena, M.I.S., (2020), 

“Estimation of Secondary Metabolites in 

Five Rare Medicinal Plants of Sri Lanka 

Using Methanol Extracts”, 9thAnnualScience 

Research Session-2020 (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Gunawardana, K.L.S.C., Safeena, M.I.S., and 

Wickramasinghe, D., (2020), “Antimicrobial 

activity of azadirachta indica and coscinium 

fenestratum against staphylococcus aureus 

and mrsa”, 9th Annual Science Research Session-

2020 (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

Perera, M.D.R., Paranavithana, T.M., Rizvi, 

E.M.J.M., Farhath, M.N.M., and Ratnayake, 

R.R., (2020), “Soil organic carbon dynamics 

& relationships with nutrient availability 

and physico – chemical parameters of paddy 

soil in batticaloa district, Sri Lanka”, 9th 

Annual Science Research Session-2020 (ASRS), 

FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Nuha, S.H.F., and Razmy, A.M., (2020), 

“Factors associated with the type of birth in 

the ashraff memorial hospital-kalmunai”, 9th 

Annual Science Research Sessions (ASRS), FAS, 

SEUSL. 

 

Akmal Jahan, M.A.C., (2020), “Quality 

analysis of enhancement filters in contact – 

based palm prints”, 9th Annual Science 

Research Sessions (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Ganem, M.J.S., and Nawas, M.F., (2020), 

“Effect of selected charcoals as adsorbent for 

the removal of dye particles from textile 

dyeing effluent”, 9th Annual Science Research 

Sessions (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Banu, M.N.F.N., Haroon, M.H., and Rifana, 

A.B.F., (2020), “Antibacterial activity of 

endophytic fungi-derived from momordica 

charantia”, 9th Annual Science Research Sessions 

(ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Safana, R.F., Haroon, M.H., and 

Kathirgamanathar, S., (2020), “Antimicrobial 

Activity of Esential Oil from Selected Plant 

of Citrus Latifolia”, 9th Annual Science 

Research Sessions (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Samarakoon, J. S. M. N. N., and Safeena, M. I. 

S., (2020), “Evaluation of antioxidant 

potential of twelve edible plants in Sri 

Lanka”, 9th Annual Science Research Sessions 

(ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Ahamed Baheej, M. A., Haroon, M. H., 

Siddiqui, H., Choudhary, M. I.,  and 
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Jayasinghe, U. L. B., (2020), “Synthesis and 

gallic acid- ester derivatives as potent 

inhibitors of immunomodulatory activity in-

vitro”, 9th Annual Science Research Sessions 

(ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Mohamed Mufassirin, M.M., and Mohamed 

Asjath, M.M., (2020), “Design and 

implementation of smart home energy 

consumption monitoring and controlling 

system using the internet of things (iot) and 

data analytics techniques”, 9th Annual Science 

Research Sessions (ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 

 

Subasinghe, H. C. S., and Ratnayake, A. S., 

(2020), “Upgrading ilmenite to synthetic 

rutile by ball milling induced 

sulphurisation reduction using commercial 

sulphur”, 9th Annual Science Research Sessions 

(ASRS), FAS, SEUSL. 
 

Sandaruwan, G.B.C., Adikaram, A.M.N.M., 
Madugalla, T.B.N.S., and Pitawala, 
H.M.T.G.A., (2020), “Grain size classification 
of sediments in a coastal current mixing 
prograding zone in southeast coast of sri 
lanka”, Postgraduate Institute of Science 
Research Congress, University of Peradeniya. 
 

Jaseetharan, T., Senadeera, G.K.R., and 

Dissanayake, M.A.K.L., (2020), “Efficiency 

Enhancement in Dye-Sensitized Solar Cells 

By Co-Sensitization With Cds Quantum 

Dots”, ISSN: l39l-8796 Proceedings of 7th 

Ruhuna International Science & Technology 

Conference.  

 

Rubiera Rodriguez, S., Mafaziya Nijamdeen, 

F., Jung, T.W.G., Hugé, J., and Dahdouh-

Guebas., (2020), “A social-ecological 

approach to understanding mangrove 

utilisation by local communities in sri 

lanka, vliz marine science day”, Oostende, 

Belgium, 18 March 2020. VLIZ Special 

Publication, 84: pp. 75 

https://www.vliz.be/en/imis?module=ref&refid=3

21901 

Jung, J., Fathima Mafaziya Nijamdeen, 

T.W.G., Rubiera Rodriguez, S., Hugé, J., 

Dahdouh-Guebas, F., and Berardi, A., (2020), 

“Understanding the effects of degradation 

of the local mangrove ecosystem for a 

coastal transition state community in sri 

lanka,” In: mees, j. et al. book of abstracts – 

vliz marine science day, Oostende, Belgium, 18 

March 2020. VLIZ Special Publication, 84: pp. 28 

https://www.vliz.be/en/imis?module=ref&refid=3

21901 

 

 
Book Chapters Published 
 

Safeena, M.I.S., and Zakeel, M.C.M., (2020), 
“Nanobiotechnology-Driven Management 
of Phytonematodes. In: Ansari R., Rizvi R., 
Mahmood I. (Eds) Management of 
Hytonematodes: Recent Advances and 
Future Challenges”, Springer, Singapore. 
https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-4087-5_1. 

 
Zakeel, M.C.M., and Safeena, M.I.S., (2020), 
”Metagenomic Insights In To Interactions 
Between Plant Nematodes And Endophytic 
Microbiome. In: Ansari R., Rizvi R., 
Mahmood I. (Eds) Management of 
Phytonematodes: Recent Advances and 
Future Challenges”, Springer, Singapore.   
https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-4087-5_5. 
 
Safeena, M.I.S., and Zakeel, M.C.M., (2020), 
“Strategies for the Management of Soil – 
Borne Pathogens and Crop Production 
under Saline Environment”, Plant Health 
under Biotic stress, Volume I: Organic Strategies, 
Springer ISBN: 978-981-13-6042-8. 

 
Safeena, M.I.S., and Zakeel, M.C.M., (2020), 
“Bio-Filmed Biofertilizer for Sustainable 
Agriculture”, Plant Health under Biotic stress, 
Volume II: Microbial Interaction Springer ISBN: 
978-981-13-6039-8. 
 
 
Books Published 
 
Sooriyapathirana, S.D.S.S., Ishan, M., 
Mafaziya, F., and Thilagam, J.D., (2020), 
“Biotechnology {a textbook in the local 
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language (tamil) for middle school children 
in sri lanka”, Published by National Science 
Foundation (NSF), Colombo, Sri Lanka. (978-
955-590-127-7) Training program  Oceanswell 
COVID 19 and fisheries project- Networking 
session on socioeconomic surveys in mangroves 
research, 21 August 2020.  
 

 
Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic 
Language 
 
Publications in refereed indexed journal 
 

Sarjoon, R.A., Razick, A.S., Fowsar, M., Anifa, 
M., and Rushana A., (2020). “Problems Faced 
by Muslim Converts in Sri Lanka: A Study 
Based on Anuradhapura District “, Journal of 
Politics and Law. 
 
Irfan, M.I.M., and Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020), 
“Learning from the Chinese Model of 
Development and Moulding China – Sri 
Lanka Relations”, Journal of Politics and Law, 
Vol. 13, No. 3, 2020, ISSN: 1913-9047, E-ISSN: 
1913-9035. 
 
Razick, A.S., Fowsar, M.A.M., and Mihilar 
A.K., (2020). “Factors Affecting Ethnic 
Harmony between Sinhalese and Muslim 
Communities in Post-war Sri Lanka: A 
Study Based on South Eastern University of 
Sri Lanka”, Canadian Center for Science and 
Education, Journal of Politics and Law. 
 
Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020). “Application of 
Outcome-Based Curriculum in Religious 
Studies: The Case of Madrasas in Sri 
Lanka”, J. Pol. & L. 
 
Nafrees, A.C.M., Roshan, A.M.F., Baanu, 
A.N., Shibly, F.H.A. and Kariapper, R.A.R., 
2020. An Investigation of Sri Lankan 
University Undergraduates' Perception 
About Online Learning During COVID-19: 
With Superior References To South Eastern 
University. Solid State Technology, 63(6), 
pp.8829-8840. 
 
Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020). “Application of 
Outcome-Based Curriculum in Religious 
Studies: The Case of Madrasas in Sri 

Lanka”. J. Pol. & L., 13, p.196. 

Nazar, M.C.A., (2020). “Factors Affecting the 
Effectiveness of Accounting Information 
Systems in Public Listed Companies in Sri 
Lanka”. Int. J. Adv. Multidiscip. Res, 7(9), pp.1-
6. 
 
Mahrool, F., Nazar, M.C.A. and Azee, A.A., 
(2020). “Corporate board and firm risk: An 
emerging market perspective. Farwis, M., 
Nazar, MCA, & Azeez, AA (2020). Corporate 
Board and Firm Risk: An Emerging Market 
Perspective”. International Journal of Financial 
Research, 11(6), pp.301-317. 
 
Mahrool, F., Siyam, M.M. and Nazar, M.C.A., 
2020. “Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) during COVID-19 Pandemic: The 
Case of Listed Companies on Colombo 
Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka.  
 
Farwis, M., Siyam, MM, Casim, M., & Nazar, 
A.(2020) Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) during Covid-19 Pandemic: The Case 
of Listed Companies on Colombo Stock 
Exchange in Sri Lanka”. International Journal 
of Innovative Science, Engineering and 
Technology, 7(12), pp.284-298. 
 
Irfan, M.I.M. and Fowsar, M.A.M., (2020), 
“Learning from the Chinese model of 
development and moulding China-Sri 
Lanka relations”. J. Pol. & L., 13, p.57. 
Publications in Non-indexed journals 
 
Jazeel, M.I.M., Nawastheen, F.M., Sifani, 
K.C.R., and Ponniah, K., (2020). “Teachers‟ 
Roles in Developing Self-Regulated 
Learning Strategies among Students of 
Puttalam Division in Sri Lanka”, Journal of 
Critical Reviews.  
 
Razick, A.S. and Nasrin, M.I., (2020), The 
Punishments Imposed on Non-Muslims in 
Islamic History are an Obstacle to 
Contemporary Social Harmony-A Review, 
International Journal of Research and Innovation 
in Social Science (IJRISS) |Volume IV, Issue 
VIII. 
 
Nafrees, A.C.M., Roshan, A.M.F., Baanu, 
A.N., Nihma, M.F. and Shibly, F.H.A., 2020, 
“Awareness of Online Learning of 
Undergraduates during COVID 19 with 
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special reference to South Eastern 
University of Sri Lanka”. Journal of Physics: 
Conference Series (Vol. 1712, No. 1, p. 012010). 
IOP Publishing. 
 
Cao, W., Wang, Q., Sbeih, A. and Shibly, 
F.H.A., (2020), Artificial intelligence based 
efficient smart learning framework for 
education platform.  Inteligencia 
Artificial, 23(66), pp.112-123. 
 
Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020). Servant leadership 
attributes of the mosques in Sri Lanka-An 
empirical analysis. International Journal of 
Arts, Humanities & Social Science. 
 
Nawastheen, F.M., Jazeel, M.I.M., Sifani, K.R. 
and Ponniah, K., (2020). “Teachers‟roles in 
developing self-regulated learning strategies 
among students of puttalam division in sri 
lanka”. Journal of Critical Reviews, 7(19), 
pp.5076-5084. 
 
Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020). “The integration of 
outcomes based educational model in 
degree programmes in Arabic and Islamic 
studies: the case of four state universities in 
Sri Lanka”. Journal of Critical Reviews. 
 
Sabrina, A.A.F. and Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020). 
“The comparison between the translation of 
Al-Hilali, khan and the translation of 
arberry of the holy Quran–(surah al-Fatihah 
and 16 verses from surah al-Baqarah)”. Sri 
Lankan Journal of Arabic and Islamic Studies, 
3(1) 2020. 
 
Shiyana, M.M. and Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020). 
“஧஬தாபநணம் கு஫ித்து முதல் 
தாபங்ே஭ின்ேருத்தாக்ேம்: ேிண்ணினா ஧ிபகதச 
஥ிவ஬ ஧ற்஫ின ஆய்வு”. Journal of KALAM, FAC, 
SEUSL. 
 
Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020), “Friday Sermon 
(Khutbah) in Character Building and Social 
Development in a Minority Context: The 
Case of Mosques in Sri Lanka.” Sri Lankan 
Journal of Arabic & Islamic Studies (SLJAIS), vol. 
3, no. 1, 2020, pp. 52–9. 
 
Nafrees, A.C.M. and Kariapper, R.K.A.R., 
(2020), “Information System to The 
Examination Application of Online 

Management Department”, State 
Universities in Sri Lanka. Journal of Critical 
Reviews, 7 (12), 4703-4712. 
 
Farwis, M., and Nazar, M.C.A., (2020). “The 
impact of gender diversity in board on 
corporate performance: empirical evidence 
from listed companies in Sri Lanka”. Jornal 
of KALAM, FAC, SEUSL. 
 
Razick, A.S., Mohammad Ibraheem, M.J., and 
Jahan, M.I.N., (2020). “The significance of 
Mahar in Muslim marriages in Sri Lanka: a 
study based on Anuradhapura district”, 
Journal of Critical Reviews. 
 
Jazeel, M.I.M., Fowzul, M.B., and Rakeeza, 
A.R.F., (2020). “The judgements of Quazi 
Courts in Sri Lanka: An analysis, இலங்கக 

கொழி நீதிமன்றங்களின் தீர்ப்பளிக்கும் முகறகம: ஒரு 

பகுப்பொய்வு]”, Muallim Journal of Social Sciences 
and Humanities. 
 
Shathifa, M.C.S., Hilmy, H.M.A., Hassan, R., 
and Mazahir S.M.M., (2020). “The Status of 
Shari'ah Supervisory Board (SSB) in 
Shari'ah Governance Structure”, IGI Global. 
 

 
Full Papers published in Conference 
Proceedings 
 
Shibly, F.H.A., Naleer, H.M.M., and Uzzal 
Sharma, (2020). “Classifying and Measuring 
Hate Speech in Twitter Using Topic 
Classifier of Sentiment Analysis”, 
nternational Conference on Innovative 
Computing and Communications (pp. 671-
678). Springer, Singapore. 
 
Shiyana, M.M., Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020), 
“஧஬தாபநணம் கு஫ித்து இபண்டாம் தாபங்ே஭ின் 
ேருத்து ஥ிவ஬: ேிண்ணினா ஧ிபகதச஥ிவ஬ ஧ற்஫ின 
ஆய்வு”, 7th International Sympossium-2020, FIA, 
SEUSL. 
 
Abdullah, M.M.A., Sharmina, A.M.F., 
Suhaila, M.H., and Mazahir, S.M.M., (2020), 
“gy;fiyf;fof K];ypk; khztpfspd; 
tpisahl;Lldhd <LghL: tpisahl;Lf;fs; 
njhlHghd ,];yhkpaf; fz;Nzhl;lj;ij 
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ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T”> 7th International 
Sympossium-2020, FIA,SEUSL. 
 
Hifra, M.F.F., and Nafees, S. M. M. (2020). 
“ehr;rPahjPT gpuNjr K];ypk; FLk;gq;fspy; 
fyg;G jpUkz eilKiwfs “,  7th 
International Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 

 
Umar Ali, M. I., Minnathul Suheera, M. Y., 
and Munawwara, M.Y. (2020). “Knowledge 
and practice of hospital waste management 
among health care workers: a sociological 

study on Nintavur”, 7th International 
Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Famees, M. F., and Minnathul Suheera, M. 
Y. (2020), “K];ypk;fspd; jpUkzKk; 
gz;ghl;L khw;wq;fSk;: gz;lhuntsp 
gpuNjrj;jpid ikakhff; nfhz;l XH 
r%ftpay; Ma;T”, 7th International 
Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Ilma, I. F., Shafira Banu, A. S., Mazahir, S. M. 
M., Sumeira, M. N. S., Hairiya, A. A. S., 
and  Afra, M. S. F., (2020). “r%fg; 
Gduikg;gpy; kj];jyq;fspd; gq;fspg;G: 
mspfk;ig gpuNjrj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa 
Ma;T“, 7th International Sympossium-2020, FIA, 
SEUSL. 
 
Mohamed Helfan, M. L., and Mazahir, S. M. 
M. (2020). “Gw;W NehahsHfisg; guhkupg;gjpy; 
fpof;F Gw;WNehahsH guhkupg;G epiyaj;jpd; 
gq;fspg;Gf;fs;: xU tpNrl Ma;T“, 7th 
International Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 

Siyana, A. K., and Nairoos, M. H. M., (2020). 
“Foe;ij tsHg;gpy; ngw;NwhHfspd; ,];yhkpa 
mwpTepiyAk; mjd; nry;thf;Fk; Njhg;g+H 
gpuNjrj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T “, 7th 
International Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Saujan, I., and Mazahir, S. M. M., (2020). 
“clYWg;G khw;wKk; ,];yhkpa gpf;`; 
epWtdq;fspd; gj;thf;fSk;: ,];yhkpa rl;l 
mbg;gilfis ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T“, 7th 
International Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Rifa Mahroof, S., (2020). “Students‟ beliefs 
and perceptions of teachers‟ code choice in 
the ESL classroom: a study conducted in 

Sammanthurai zone “, 7th International 
Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 

Nashmel, S.L.M., and Shathifa, M.C.S., (2020). 
“The reality of the Arabic language students 
at south eastern university of Sri Lanka in 
learning linguistics: a discriptive analitical 
study”, 7th International Sympossium-2020, FIA, 
SEUSL. 
 
Shiyana, M.M., and Nafess, S.M.M., (2020). 
“Post-maintenance rights for Muslim 
women in Sri Lanka “, 7th International 
Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Zunoomy, M.S., and Mazahir, S.M. M. (2020). 
“Muk;gfhy> etPdfhy jg;]PH E}y;fspy; 
“ck;kjd; t]jh" vd;gjd; tpsf;fq;fs;: XH 
xg;gPl;lha;T“, 7th International Sympossium-2020, 
FIA, SEUSL 
 
Sana Anjum, M.J.F., Aqeela, M.M.F., 
and Minnathul Suheera, M. Y., (2020), 
“,yj;jpudpay; Clfj;Jiwapy; ngz;fspd; 
gq;fspg;G“, 7th International Sympossium-2020, 
FIA, SEUSL 
 
Haleema, S. A., Naseeha, M. N. F., Aslam, M. 
F. M., and Farween, A. R. F. S., (2020). 
“Xl;lkhtb gpuNjr khw;Wj;jpwdhspfs; 
vjpHNehf;Fk; rthy;fs;: XH kjpg;gPl;lha;T”, 7th 
International Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Nawas, A. N. M., Sajidha, A. C. F., Munas, M. 
H. A., and Saujan, I. (2020). “ تحليل أخطاء استخدام

الكتابي لدى طلاب قسم اللغة العربية علامات الترقيم في التعبير 

 7th International ,“ بجامعة جنوب شرق سريلانكا
Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Israth, U., Habeebullah,M.T., and Mahsoom, 
A. R. M., (2020). “ الثنائية اللغة العربية استخدام المعاجم 

طلبة قسم اللغة العربية من جامعة  –والانجليزية لدى الطلبة 
 7th International ,“ جنوب شرق سريلانكا أنموذجا
Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Nathira Jahan, S., Roshan, A.M. F., Nafrees, 
A.C.M., and Mazahir, S.M.M., (2020). 
“Awareness of Islamic insurance and 
conventional insurance among Sri Lankan: a 
comparative study “, 7th International 
Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Shiyana, M.M., and Jazeel, M.I.M., (2020). 
“gyjhukzk; Fwpj;J ,uz;lhk; jhuq;fspd; 
fUj;J epiy: fpz;zpah gpuNjrepiy gw;wpa 
Ma;T“,7th International Sympossium-2020, FIA, 
SEUSL.  

http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5123
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5123
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5123
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5123
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5119
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5119
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5119
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5119
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5110
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5110
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5104
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5104
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5104
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5102
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5102
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5102
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5099
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5099
http://ir.lib.seu.ac.lk/handle/123456789/5099
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Hifra, M.F.F., and Nafees, S.M.M., 
(2020).  “K];ypk; FLk;gq;fspy; epyTk; fyg;G 
jpUkzq;fSf;F VJthd fhuzq;fs; kw;Wk; 
tpisTfs; : ehr;rpahjPT gpuNjr epiy gw;wpa 
Ma;T“, 7th International Sympossium-2020, FIA, 
SEUSL. 
 
Begum, M.S.S., Nafees, S.M.M., and Nasrin, 
M. I. (2020). “,];yhk; $Wk; ,j;jh 
Nfhl;ghLfSk;> eilKiwfSk;: mlk;gd; 
gpuNjrj;ij ikag;gLj;jpa Ma;T“, 7th 
International Sympossium-2020, FIA, SEUSL. 
 
Aliyar, A., Masliya, A.L., Helfan, M.L.M., 
and  Nafees, S.M.M.,(2020), “rHtNjr cwtpy; 
K];ypk; - K];ypky;yhNjhUf;F ]yhk; 
$Wjy;: kj;jpafhy ,];yhkpa 
mwpQHfSf;fpilapyhd fUj;J epiy - XH 
tpNrl Ma;T “, 7th International Sympossium-
2020, FIA, SEUSL. 

 
 

 
Faculty of Engineering 
 
Publications in refereed indexed journal 
 

Musa, M.A., Roslan, M.F., Ahmad, M.F., 
Muzathik, A.M., Mustapa, M.A., Fitriadhy, 
A., Mohd, M.H., Rahman, M.N.N., (2020), 
“The influence of ramp shape parameters on 
performance of overtopping breakwater for 
energy conversion”, Journal of Marine Science 
and Engineering. 
 
Thamboo, J.A., and Manicka Dhanasekar, 
(2020). “Assessment of the characteristics of 
lime mortar bonded brickwork wallettes 
under monotonic and cyclic compression”, 
Elsevier, Construction and Building Materials.  
 
Thamboo, J.A., Atheer Zahra, and Ali 
Jelvehpou,Manicka,(2020). “Interfacial 
transition zone modelling for 
characterisation of masonry under biaxial 
stresses”, Elsevier, Construction and Building 
Materials. 
 
Aslam Saja, A.M., Ms. Lafir Sahid, and 
Sutharshanan, M., (2020). “Implementing 
Sendai Framework priorities through risk-
sensitive development planning – A case 

study from Sri Lanka”, Elsevier, Progress in 
Disaster Science. 

Thamboo, J.A., Lakshani, M.M.T., and 
Jayathilaka, T.K.G.A., (2020). “Experimental 
investigation of the unconfined compressive 
strength characteristics of masonry mortars”, 
Elsevier, Journal of Building Engineering. 
 
Thamboo, J.A., Tatheer Zahra, and Remadevi 
Dhanasekar, (2020). “Development of design 
methodology for mortarless masonry 
system: Case study–a resettlement housing 
colony”, Elsevier, Journal of Building 
Engineering. 
 
Thamboo, J.A., (2020). “Material 
characterisation of thin layer mortared clay 
masonry”, Elsevier, Construction and Building 
Materials. 
 
Aslam Saja, A.M., Melissa Teo, Ashantha 
Goonetilleke, Abdul Ziyath, M., and Jagath 
Gunatilak, (2020). “Surrogate Measures to 
Assess Mobility of People as a Resilience 
Indicator in Disaster Management: An 
Exploratory Study in Southeastern Sri 
Lanka”, International journal of disaster 
resilience in the built environment, Emerald 
Publishing Limited. 
 
Mohamed, M.I.S., and Thamboo, J.A.,(2020). 
“Experimental and numerical assessment of 
the flexural behaviour of semi-precast-
reinforced concrete slabs”, Advances in 
Structural Engineering,  23 (9), 1865-1879. 
 
Zimar, A.M.Z., Nasvi, M.C.M., and Jayakody, 
S., (2020). “Geotechnical Characterization of 
Peats in Muthurajawela Region in the 
Western Coast of Sri Lanka”, Springer 
International Publishing, Geotechnical and 
Geological Engineering. 
 
Herath, H., Aslam Saja, A.M., Piyadasa, R., 
and Zarouk, Z., (2020). “An integrated 
approach to enhance community resilience 
in disaster response in Sri Lanka”, Journal of 
Geophysics.  
https://journal.geophysicsjournal.com/JofG/article/
view/301. 
 
Saja, A.M.A., Teo, M., Goonetilleke, A., 
Ziyath, A.M., Gunatilake, J., (2020),  
“Selection of surrogates to assess social 
resilience in disaster management using 

https://journal.geophysicsjournal.com/JofG/article/view/301
https://journal.geophysicsjournal.com/JofG/article/view/301
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multi-criteria decision analysis”, 
International journal of disaster resilience in the 
built environment. 
 
Chang, Y.T., Shih, T.K., Li, Y.H. and Kumara, 
W.G.C.W., (2020). “Effectiveness evaluation 
of iris segmentation by using geodesic active 
contour (GAC)”. The Journal of 
Supercomputing, 76(3), pp.1628-1641. 
 
 
Publications in Non-indexed journals 
 
Hinas, A., Ragel, R., Roberts, J., and 
Gonzalez, F., (2020). “A Framework for 
Multiple Ground Target Finding and 
Inspection Using a Multirotor UAS”, 
Multidisciplinary Digital Publishing Institute, 
Sensors. 
 
Thamboo, J.A., Bandara, J., Perera, S., 
Navaratnam, S., Keerthan Poologanathan, 
and Marco Corradi, (2020). “Experimental 
and Analytical Study of Masonry Subjected 
to Uniaxial Cyclic Compression”, Materials, 
Volume 13, Issue 20. 
 
Luhar, S., Suntharalingam, T., Navaratnam, 
S., Luhar, I., Thamboo, J., Poologanathan, K. 
and Gatheeshgar, P., (2020). “Sustainable 
and renewable bio-based natural fibres and 
its application for 3D printed concrete: a 
review”. Sustainability, 12(24), p.10485. 
 
Suja, A.C.A. and Rajapakse, R.L.H.L., (2020), 
Evaluation of topographic data sources for 
2D flood modelling: case study of Kelani 
basin, Sri Lanka. In IOP Conference Series: 
Earth and Environmental Science (Vol. 612, 
No. 1, p. 012043). IOP Publishing. 

 
 
Full Papers published in Conference 
Proceeding 
 

Zimar, A., Wijepala, U., Jayakody, S., 
Jayasinghe, J.M.N.D., and Jayasena, 
W.K.W.S., (2020). “Characterization of the 
properties of manufactured sand and 
natural river sand”, 7th International 
Symposium on Advances in Civil and 
Environmental Engineering Practices for 

Sustainable Development ACEPS - 2019At: 
University of Ruhuna, Sri Lanka. 
 
Thamboo, J.A., and Dhanasekar, M., (2020). 
“Response of brickwork wallettes of various 
bonding patterns under monotonic and 
cyclic compression” CRC Press, 17th 
International Brick and Block Masonry 
Conference. July 5-8 2020, Karkow, Poland.    
 
Thamboo, J.A., Zahra, T., Asad, M., and 
Dhanasekar, R., (2020). “Mortar-auxetic 
rendered drystack masonry walls under 
concentric and eccentric compression”, CRC 
Press, 17th International Brick/Block Masonry 
Conference, July 5-8, 2020, Kraków, Poland. 
 
Wickramasekara, W., Vidurshan, S., Thamboo, 
J.A., (2020), “Partial Safety Factors for 
Design of Reinforced Analyses Concrete 
Structures in Sri Lanka: Calibration using 
Reliability”, Society of Structural Engineers Sri 
Lanka: ANNUAL SESSIONS 2020. 
 
Ahamed, F. and Srikantha, P., (2020), 
“Optimal Decentralized Control of Islanded 
Microgrids via Cyber Interactions”. In 2020 
IEEE Power & Energy Society Innovative Smart 
Grid Technologies Conference (ISGT) (pp. 1-5). 
IEEE. 
 

Munas, F.R., Bandara, M.R.D.R., Muzathik, A. 
M., (2020), “Design and Simulation Analysis 
of Nozzle/Diffuser Micropump for 
Compressible Fluid Flow”, ICMESD, 315-318 
 
Pabasara, H.M.S., Fernando, K.D.D., 
Sandaruwan, R.B.L.N., Kumara, W.G.C.W. 
and Alahakoon, P.M.K., (2020), “Wearable 
walking robot model for children with 
disabilities”. In 2020 20th International 
Conference on Advances in ICT for Emerging 
Regions (ICTer) (pp. 268-269). IEEE. 
 
Mohamed, L.N., Rasanjalee, R.M.S.,  
Rumeshrajasegar, P., Hirshan, R., and 
Kumara, W.G.C.W.,  (2020), “Effects of 
Different Network Coding Techniques in 
Wireless Video Transmission”,Proceedings of 
the National Engineering Research Symposium 
(NERS 2020) 
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Vidushraj, C., Shanaz, A.L.F., Kumara, 
W.G.C.W., (2020), “Extracting Relevant 
Information from Online Job Posting 
Websites in Sri Lanka”, Proceedings of the 
National Engineering Research Symposium 
(NERS 2020). 
 
 
FACULTY OF TECHNOLOGY  
 
Publications in refereed indexed journal 
 
Muneeb, M.M., Davindran, R., and Fauziah, 
A., (2020). “Water quality assessment at 
Fraser‟s hill and pangkor island, malaysia 
using physico-chemical and biological 
methods”, The Malaysian Forester, 83 (2): 199-
214. 
 
Muneeb, M.M., Fauziah Abdullah, Lee Guan 
Sern Mohd Shukri Mohd Sabri, Nor Hidayah 
Mamat, Rafidah ISA, Sri Nurestri Abdul 
Malek, and Lee Guan Sern, (2020).“ Effect of 
Essential Oils Extracted from Chromolaena 
Odorata (L.) R. M. King & H. Rob. Against 
Macrotermes Carbonarius (Hagen, 1858) and 
Globertermes Sulphurous (Haviland, 1898)”, 
Serangga, Vol 25, No 1. 
 
 
Publications in Non-indexed journals 

 
Musthafa, M.M., Ahmed, A., Arun Kumar, R., 
Davindran Rajandram, Faiz, and Marikar, 
M.M.T., (2020).”Biotic and abiotic stress 
roles in drugs production through in vitro 
approaches in plants – a review”, 
Agricultural Science & Technology (1313-8820). 
 
Ahamed, M.Y.J., Muneeb, M., Musthafa., 
Faiz,M.M.T.,andMarikar.,(2020).“Challenges 
and Benefits of ERP System and Non-ERP 
System Integration in a Developing 
Country”, Global Journal of Management and 
Business Research, Vol 20, No 10-A. 
 
ABA Ahmed, T Lydia, MM Musthafa, RM 
Taha, FMMT Marikar, (2020)., “An efficient 
plant regeneration, detection and 
identification of secondary metabolites from 
propagate plants of Peperomia pellucida (L.) 
for mass cultivation”, Modern 
Phytomorphology 15, 6-13. 

MM C.M., Musthafa, M.M., Marikar, F.M.M.T., 
(2020), “Concept paper on Ethical Principles 
in University Teaching in Sri Lanka”, Sri 
Lanka Journal of Indigenous Medicine 5 (2), 402-
405. 
 
Hussain, T., Manzoor, F., Musthafa, M.M., 
Marikar, F.M., Babar, M.E., (2020), “Gazella 
bennetti (indian gazelle or chinkara) of 
Pakistan: genetic profiling and conservation 
priorities”, Revista Veterinaria 31 (1), 14-19. 
 
A Narmilan, RK, SS Nawaz, (2020), “Farmers‟ 
Intention to Use Precision Agriculture 
Technologies: A TAM Approach” Solid State 
Technology 63 (6), 14238-14248. 
 

Narmilan, A., Niroash, G., Sumangala, K.,  
(2020), “Assessment on consequences and 
benefits of the smart farming techniques in 
Batticaloa district, Sri Lanka”, International 
Journal of Research Publications (IJRP. ORG). 
 
Mufeeth, M.M., Mubarak, A.N.M., (2020), 
“Effect of background music tempo on the 
behavior of customers: in the case of 
supermarket business”, Journal of Bussiness 
Economocs.  
 

Mufeeth, M., Mubarak ANM, Ranaweera 
GKMMK, Nusrathali N, MR Roshana, Rifna 
Banu ARF and Kumara ADNT., 
(2020),“Characterizationof morphometric, 
physiological and biomass production in 
local maize (ZeamaysL.) Landraces of Sri 
Lanka”, Sri Lanka journal of Technology 
(SLJoT), FT, SEUSL. 
 
Mufeeth, M., Nusrathali, N., and Majeed, U. 
L. A., (2020), “Cost and benefits, marketing 
and profitability factors of registered seed 
paddy farmers”, SEUSL Journal of Marketing 
 
Narmilan, A., Niroash, G., and Puvanitha, N., 
(2020). “Assessment of Current Status on 
Smart Farming Technologies in Batticaloa 
District, Sri Lanka” Sri Lanka journal of 
Technology (SLJoT), FT, SEUSL. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-26-34.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-26-34.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-26-34.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-26-34.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-14-20.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-14-20.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-14-20.pdf
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Narmilan, A., and Puvanitha, S., (2020), 
“Mitigation Techniques for Agricultural 
Pollution by Precision 
Technologies with a Focus on the Internet of 
Things (IoTs)”, Agricultural Review 
 
Narmilan, A., and Niroash, G., (2020), 
“Reduction techniques for consequences of 
climate change by Internet of Things (IoT) 
with an emphasis on agricultural 
production: a review. International Journal 
of Science, Technology, Engineering and 
Management-A VTU Publication “, 
International Journal of Science Technology, 
Engineering and Management-A VTU 
Publication 
 
Santhirakumar, S., and Narmilan, A., (2020), 
“Impact of Environmental Factors on Trend 
of Milk Production: A Study Based in 
Batticaloa District, Sri Lanka”, Sambodhi 
Journal 
 
Rasmiya Begum, S. L., and Najim, M.M.M., 
(2020). “Assessment of Climate Extremes 
Based on SPI in WL1a Agro ecological Zone 
- A Case Study from Kuruwita, Sri Lanka” 
Sri Lanka journal of Technology (SLJoT), FT, 
SEUSL. 
 
Fathima Jemziya, M.B., and P. Sivarajah,( 
2020). “The Meat Consumption Pattern and 
Gender Differences; A Sri Lankan Urban 

Public Approach”, Sri Lanka journal of 
Technology (SLJoT), FT, SEUSL. 
 
 
Book Chapters 
 

Prasannakumar, N.R., Gopalkrishna, H.R., 
Kumara, A.N.D.T., and Guru, P.N., (2020), 
“Remote Sensing, Climate Change and 
Insect Pest: Can Biotic Interactions Be 
Explored? In: Chakravarthy A. (eds) 
Innovative Pest Management Approaches 
for the 21st Century”, Springer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LIBRARY 
 

Papers published in Index Journals 
 

Mashroofa, M.M., Mazuki Jusoh and 
Karuthan  Chinna, (2020). “Research trend on 
the application of “E-learning adoption 
theory”,A scientometric study during 2000-
2019, based on Web of Science and 
SCOPUS”, COLLNET Journal of Scien tometrics 
and Information Management,  Vol.13(2) 
December 2019, pp. 387-408, ISSN: 0973-7766. 
 
Mashroofa,M.M.,Mazuki Jusoh and Karuthan  
Chinna, (2020). “Does Gender Moderate the 
Behavior of Sri Lankan State University 
Lecturers in Using Virtual Learning 
Environment (VLE)”, TEST Engineering and 
Management, May – June 2020, ISSN: 0193-4120 
pp 8691-8710. 
 
Mashroofa, M.M., Mazuki Jusoh and 
Karuthan Chinna, (2020). “Bibliometric 
analysis on global e-learning literature in 
Web of Science database: with special 
reference to Sri Lankan, Context”, Library 
Philosophy & Practice. 
 
Mashroofa, M.M., Athambawa Haleem and 
Aboobucker Jahufer, (2020), “Moderating 
effects of Academic Position & Computer 
Literacy skills in E-learning portal usage: 
SEM application on Theory of Planned 
Behaviour”, Rupkatha Journal on 
Interdisciplinary Studies in Humanities. 
 
 
Abstracts published in Conference 
Proceedings 

 
Mohammed Sajeer, S.L. and Premadasa, PG., 
(2020). “Effectiveness of Applying 
Empowering Eight (E8) Model among the 
Public Library Staff in Ampara District”, 
NILIS Research Symposium 2020,National 
Institute of Library and Information 
Sciences,University of Colombo. 
 
Mashroofa, M.M., (2020). “Sustainability of 
Library and information Services during 
COVID-19 Pandemic: A Case of South 
Eastern University of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) 
Libraries”, NILIS Research Symposium 2020, 

http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-1-6.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-1-6.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-1-6.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-21-25.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-21-25.pdf
http://www.seu.ac.lk/sljot/publication/v1n1/SLJoT-2020-01(1)-21-25.pdf
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National Institute of Library and Information 
Sciences, University of Colombo. 
 
Rifaudeen, M.M., (2020). “Contribution of 
libraries in achieving the world mission: 
transforming our world - the 2030 agenda 
for sustainable development” with special 
reference to the goal of lifelong learning 
opportunities for all”, International Colloquium 
on“10 years IVLP Alumni experiences of 
international librarians. 
 
 
Other Departments / Units 

 
 

Abstracts published in Conference 
Proceedings 
 
Shajitha, S.H., and K. Perera, K., (2020), “The 
Estimation of Return Levels of Extreme 
Rainfall: A Case Study of Watawala”, 2nd 
International conference of Center for 
Environmental Studies - EMM2020, 
Postgraduate Institute of Science, University of 
Peradeniya. 
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11. Details of Knowledge Dissemination to the General Public during the 

Year-2020 
 

Faculty/ 
Division 

Category and Title of the Programme 
(workshops/ training programmes/field 
demonstrations/media programmes) 

Number 
particip
ated 

Target Group   

Conducting training programmes/ field demonstrations 

Arts and 
Culture 

Guest Speach for Two Days International 
Online Workshop on Mental Health 
Well-Being and Life Skills Education for 
Secondary School Teachers in Mozoram 
on the title “Mental Health – Issues and 
Strategies During Covid -19 Pandemic 
“Organized by Asia School of 
Psychology Association (InSPA) in 
collaboration with Directorate of School 
Education, Government of Mizoram  

350 
Secondary School 
Teachers in 
Mozoram   

Organizing exhibitions /Public performences 

Library 
International  
Webinar on Gender mainstreaming 

340 Global wide 
participants 

Participating Radio /TV/ other media programmes 

Library 
Pirai FM Radio programme on COVID -
19 Impacts on Women  

 General Public 

Arts and 
Culture 

The role and significance of Muslims' 
participation in constitution making 

1000 Public 

Other   

Arts and 
Culture 

Invited Guest Speach at an International 
Workshop on “Psychological 
contribution to Building Bridges Among 
Within Nations” to mark 13th UN 
Psychology Day and 4th Psychology Day 
in Nepal Jointly organized by The School 
of Psychology, Nepal, and Association of 
Psychologists, Nepal.  

300 

Academics, 
Psychiatrics, 
Psychologists, 
Counsellors & 
other 
professionals 

Keynote Speach at the International 
Conference on Community Psychology- 
St.Wlfred‟s P.G College, Jaipur, India –
“Counselling Programs in Educational 
Institutions”  

500 

Academics, 
Psychiatrics, 
Psychologists, 
Counsellors & 
other 
Professionals 

Keynote  Speach  at the First 
International Conference on Mental 
Health and Well-being among Children - 
Asia Pacific School Psychology 
Association (APSPA), National Institute 
of Education, Maharagama -  “Career 
Guidance and Counselling Services in Sri 
Lankan Schools” 

275 

Academics, 
Psychiatrics, 
Psychologists, 
Counsellors & 
other 
professionals 
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12. Details of Awards Received: 

Award 
category 

Name of the 
Award 

National/ 
Internatio
nal 

Descripti
on of the 
Award 

Name of the 
awardee and 
country 

Name/s of 
the recipient 

Research 
Faculty 
Writeup 
Scholarship 

Internatio
nal 

For 
excellent 
research 
writing to 
"A" 
conferenc
es and 
journals 

Queensland 
University of 
Technology-
Australia 

Dr.MAC 
Akmal Jahan 
Department 
of 
Mathematical 
Sciences           
FAS-SEUSL 

Teaching 

FHEA                   
(Fellowship in 
Higher 
Education 
Academy) 

Internatio
nal 

For 
excellent 
teaching 

Queensland 
University of 
Technology-
Australia 

Dr.MAC 
Akmal Jahan 
Department 
of 
Mathematical 
Sciences           
FAS-SEUSL 

        

 

Resource Person International 
Conference on Multidisciplinary 
Research – Albertian Knowledge 
Summit (AKS 2020) St.Albert‟s College 
(Autonomous), Ernakulam, India.  

150 

Academics, 
Postgraduate 
students & 
Administrators 

Resource Person – International 
Conference on Contemporary Global 
Challenges and Trends: Human Dignity 
at Crossroads – Department of 
Sociology, Manonmaniam Sundaranar 
University, Tirunelveli, Tamilnadu, India  

200 

Academics, 
Postgraduate 
students & 
Administrators 

Invited Guest Speach at an International 
Workshop “One Day International FDP 
on Managing Virtual Classroom” 
organized by PG and Research 
Department of Commerce, National 
College (Autonomous). 

350 
Academics & 
Postgraduate 
Students 

Invited Guest Speach at an International 
Workshop on  “Effective Teaching 
Skills” organized by Internal Quality 
Assurance Cell (IQAC),  
Sree Narayana Guru College 
K.G.Chavadi, Coimbatore Affiliated to 
Bharathiar University Reaccredited by 
NAAC & An ISO 9001:2015 Certified 
Institutions - 27.05.2020. 

280 

Academics, 
Administrators  & 
Postgraduate 
Students 
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13. Details of Overseas fellowships, Scholorships /Awards received for 

professional development (Seminar / Workshops / Staff Development / 

Training / Short cources) of Academic and administrative staff in 2020 

Faculty Designation 
Type of Program (seminar/ Workshops/ 
Staff Develpmmet/ shortcources ect) 

No. of 
staff 
recieved 

FMC 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr I,                 
Senior Lecture 
Gr II 

International Conference on “Consortium 
for Business, Marketing and Management” 
at  Research Department of Commerce, St. 
John‟s College Palayamkottai, Tirunelveli, 
Tamil Nadu 

4 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr I       
            

International Conference on 
“Contemporary Global Challenges and 
Trends: Human Dignity at Crossroads” at 
Department of Sociology, Manonmaniam 
Sundaranar University, Tirunelveli, Tamil 
Nadu. 

3 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr I,                 
Senior Lecturer 
Gr II 

Third Albertian Knowledge Summit  2020, 
an International Conference on “ 
Multidisciplinary Research” at  Department 
of Economics, St. Albert‟s College 
(Autonomous), Ernakulam. 

4 

Lecturer 
(Probationary) 

International Conference on “Consortium 
for Business, Marketing and Management” 
at Research Department of Commerce, St. 
John‟s College Palayamkottai, Tirunelveli, 
Tamil Nadu. 

1 

 Senior Lecturer 
Gr I, Lecturer 
(Probationary)  

“Global Economic Shift: Modus Operandi 
for Sustenance and Enhancement of 
Business in India” at St. Xavier‟s College, 
Tamil Nadu, India. 

2 

Professor, 
Senior Lecturer 
Gr I ,  
 

International Conference on “Dynamics of 
Management in Global Scenario and 
Seminar on Research Methodology 
Nuances” at Madurai Kamaraj University, 
Tamil Nadu, India. 

3 

Professor  
International Conference on Role of Micro 
Finance in Rural Empowerment at BWDA 
Arts & Science College, Tamil Nadu, India. 

1 

Professor  

International Conference 
on“SocioEconomicImpactonEntrepreneursh
ip and Business” at M.M.E.S. Women‟s Arts 
and Science College, Tamil Nadu, India. 

1 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr II 

The 7th Asia Connect meeting and 49th 
Asia Pacific Advanced Network Meeting 
and Conference at Nepal. 

1 

Dept. of 
ICT / FT 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.II in ICT 

Asia Pacific Internet Conference on 
“Operational Technologies (APRICOT)” at 

1 
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Melbourne, Australia 

Dept. of  
Social        
Sciences / 
FAC 

Lecturer in 
English 

International Conference on “Consortium 
for Business,  Marketing and Management” 
at  Research Department of Commerce, St. 
John‟s College Palayamkottai, Tirunelveli, 
Tamil Nadu 

1 

Lecturer in 
English 

Resource person in international 
Conference at St. Wilfred‟s P.G. College, 
Jaipur, India 

1 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.II 

Presented a research paper  at the 
International Conference on “Consortium 
for Business, Marketing and Management” 
at  Research Department of Commerce, St. 
John‟s College Palayamkottai, 

1 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.I 

Key Note Speaker at International 
Conference on Contemporary Researches in 
Engineering, Science, Management and 
Arts (ICCRESMA) powered by National 
Foundation for Entrepreneurship 
Development (NFED), Coimbatore, Tamil 
Nadu, India. 

1 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.I 

Address at the Engineering and 
Management Students on “Fostering 
Gender Equality an Diversity at workplace” 
at Sri Sairam Engineering College, Chennai, 
India 

1 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.I 

Key Note Speaker in the International 
Symposium on “Indian Constitution: A 
Panoptic View” conducted by the Sri GVG 
Visalakshi College for Woman, Venkatesa 
Mills Post, Udumalpet, India 

1 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.I 

Key Note speaker at the International 
Conference on Recent Innovations in 
Multidisciplinary Studies – RIMS 2020 
organized by St. Joseph‟s College, (Arts & 
Science), Kovur, Chennai, India 

1 

Dept. of 
Arabic 
Language, 
FIA 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.II 

 3rd International Conference on Innovative 
Computing and Communication (ICICC-
2020) at Shaheed Sukhdev College of 
Business Studies, University of Delhi, New 
Delhi, India 

1 

Senior Lecturer 
Gr.II 

International Conference on “Anthropology 
of Food and Health”, University Delhi, 
New Delhi, India 

1 

FE 

Lecturer   
Official visit to Manufacturer‟s factory site 
at Chester UK Limited, United Kingdom 

1 

Lecturer 
(Probationary)  

International forum on “ Telling Live 
Lesson from  Disasters” in Kobe, Japan 

1 

Lecturer 
(Probationary)   

The 09th International Conference on 
“Software and Computer Application 
(ICSCA 2020)” at University  Malaysia 
Pahang, Malaysia 

1 
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14. Academic and Administrative staff registerd for postgraduate degrees 

(Local and Forign in 2020) 

Faculty/ 
Department 

Name of Staff and 
Designation 

Postgradu
ate Degree 

Source of 
Funding 

Country 

FMC Mr. H.M. Nijam 
Senior Lecturer G.II in Accountancy 

Ph.D.  
AHEAD 
Project 

Australia 

FAS 
Mr. M.M. Mohamed 
Mufassirin  
Lecturer in Computer Science 

Ph.D.  
AHEAD 
Project 

Australia 

FAS Mrs. A.B. Fathima Rifana 
Lecturer (Prob.) in Chemistry 

Ph.D.  
AHEAD 
Project 

New 
Zealand 

FAS Mrs. I.B.K. Thomas 
Lecturer (Prob.) in Applied Biology 

Ph.D.  Self financing Sri Lanka 

FAS Ms. N. Thasajini 
Lecturer (Prob.) in Botany 

Ph.D.  Self financing Italy 

FE Mr. T. Jeyakaran 
Lecturer (Prob.) in Civil Engineering 

Ph.D.  

Scholarship by 
Thammasat 
University, 
Thailand. 

Thailand 

FT Mrs. Sujirtha N.V. 
Lecturer (Prob.) 

Ph.D.  
AHEAD 
Project 

New 
Zealand 

Library Mr. B.E.S. Bandara 
Assistant Librarian 

Master  SEUSL Sri Lanka 

 

 

15. Details of Academic, Academic Supportive and Administrative Staff who 

completed the relevant Postgraduate qualification in 2020 

Faculty/ 
Department/ 
Division 

Name of the Staff and  
Designation 

Postgraduate Degree 
Dration 
of the 
course 

Country 

FIA Ms.ARFS.Farween 
Senior Lecture Gr II 

M .Phill in Arabic 2years 

S
ri

 L
an

k
a 

FMC Mr.S.Izzath Nimsith 
Senior Lecture Gr II 

M.Com 2years 

General 
Administration 

Mr.I.L.Thasleen  
Deputy Register 

Master of Public 
Administration 

1year 

Mr.S.Sivakumar 
Deputy Register 

Master of Public 
Administration 

1year 
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16.  Details of Programmes, Seminars & Workshops 

Table 16.1: Details of the Programmes, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Faculties and 

Libraries of SEUSL in 2020. 

Llll 
 
 

Faculty 

Category and Title of the 
Programme (workshops/ training 
programmes/field demonstrations 
/ media programmes) 

Number 
participated 

Target Group   

Workshops 

    Library 

“Awareness Program on 
Scholarly Databases and Open 
Access Resources” 

31 Academic Staff of the 
Faculty of Islamic 
Studies &  
Arabic Languages 

Webinar on “Access to scholarly 
database for effective  Learning 
and research”  

48 

Live webinar “Access to scholarly 
Database for Effective Learning 
and Research  

158 
Special Degree 
Students and Academic 
Staff-SEUSL 

Using e-Resources to meet the 
needs of learning & research 

70 

Special Degree 
Students of Faculty of 
Islamic Studies & 
Arabic Languages 

Best Practices in Library Service; 
Academic Referencing: Citing 
and Referencing in Research  

35 
Academic Librarians & 
Researchers 

Rethinking Library Services : 
promoting the usage of eBooks to 
meet the needs of online learning 
& teaching  

24 
University Academics-
SEUSL 

Concept on establishing 
University Library Archive for 
reserving Special and Rare 
Collection Policy, Procedure 
Guidelines  

6 
Library Academics-
SEUS 

Workshop on 5S Application in 
Libraries  

25 All Library Staff-SEUSL 

Review  of  Library Activities and 
discussion on Modern Library 
Practices  

30 All Library Staff-SEUSL 

Arts and 
Culture 

International Webinar - 
Decolonizing Knowledge: 
Meaning, Problems and Prospects 

700 
University Students 
and Staff 

International Webinar - Framing 
A Literature Review: Where to 
begin? 

350 
University Students 
and Staff 

Covid-19: A Sociological and 
Medical Perspective 

200 
University Students 
and Staff 
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Conducting training programmes/ field demonstrations 

Library 
Electronic Resources, session 1 30 

Library Staff-SEUSL 
Electronic Resources, session 2 30 

Arts 
and 
Culture 

Conscious Raising Programme on 
Gender Equity, Equality (GEE) 
and Sexual & Gender based 
violence (SGBV) organized by the 
CGEE, SEUSL at FAC 

500 
Undergraduates from 
FAC & FIA 

Celebration the World Wetland 
Day at Pasikudah 

50 
3rd year Geography 
Students 

workshop on “Networking and 
Social Skills” was organized by 
the AHEAD ELTA ELSE, project 
of Faculty of Arts and Culture, 
SEUSL funded by World Bank 
under activity 1 

356 3rd year FAC Students 

Webinar on “Career Exploration 
& Effective Job Search 
Techniques” 

100 
Third and Fourth Year 
Students, FAC 

Webinar on "Entrepreneurship" 100 
First Year Students, 
Faculty of Arts and 
Culture 

Webinar on “Emerging Trends in 
the Job Markets for Fresh 
Graduates” 

100 

Webinar on “Soft Skills 
Development” 

100 Final Year Students, 
Faculty of Arts and 
Culture 

Webinar on Idea Sharing: 
Experience and Expectation 

100 

Organizing exhibitions /Public performances 

Arts 
and 
Culture 

Webinar on “Personality 
Development” 

100 
Second Year Students, 
FAC 

Other   

Library 

Coordinated Training Session on 
Oxford Journals  

198 SEUSL Staff & Students 

Coordinated Training 
Programme on Emerald Journals 

210 SEUSL Staff & Students 

Coordinated Training 
Programme on Taylor & Francis 
Database  

103 
All university 
Academics 
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Table 16.2: Details of the Programmes, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Career Guidance 

Unit (CGU) of SEUSL in 2020. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No Title of the programme 
No. of 
Participants 

Target group Date 

SOFT SKILLS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

Workshops 

1 

Emerging trends in the Job 
markets for fresh graduate 

70 

1st year  Students 

FT 22.11.2020  

2 59 FE 29.02.2020 

3 130 FAC 25.10.2020 

4 120 FMC 24.10.2020 

5 130 FIA 21.11.2020 

6 80 FAS 13.12.2020 

7 

Personality Development 

60 

2nd  year  Students  

FT 28.11.2020  

8 45 FE 15.12.2020 

9 62 FAC 01.10.2020 

10 90 FMC 07.11.2020  

11 151 FIA 24.10.2020 

12 78 FAS 06.12.2020 

13 

Career Exploration & 
Effective Job Search 
Techniques 

90 

3rd  & Final Year   
Students 

FT 15.11.2020  

14 77 FE 07.11.2020   

15 95 FAC 08.11.2020 

16 75 FMC 21.11.2020 

17 62 FAS 12.12.2020 

18 

Idea Sharing:  
Experience & Expectation 

85 

3rd  & Final Year   
Students  

FT  1.11.2020     

19 68 FE 07.12.2020 

20 62 FAC 28.11.2020 

21 85 FMC 22.11.2020 

22 90 FIA 31.10.2020 

23 59 FAS 12.12.2020 

24 

Entrepreneurship  
(Awareness programme) 

40 

1st year  Students  

FAC 07.11.2020   

25 150 FMC 
31.10.2020 & 
15.11.2020   

26 95 FIA 08.11.2020 

27 Soft Skills Development   53 

3rd & 4th year  
Students   

FAC 21.11.2020 

28 Soft Skills Development   53 FMC 15.11.2020  

29 Soft Skills Development   116 FIA 22.11.2020  

30 Soft Skills Development 85 FAS 06.12.2020 

31 Internship preparation 85 
3rd & 4th year  Students  
/FMC 

06.12.2020 
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Table 16.3: Details of the Programmes, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Staff Development 
Centre (SDC) of SEUSL in 2020. 

 

Sponsored Activities of SDC 

 
 

Table 16.4: Details of the Programmes, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Student Socities 

incollaboration with Students Support Services and Welfare Unit (SSS&W) of SEUSL in 2020 

A. Local Workshop/ Seminar/ Training Programme/ Short cources 

S/N Programme 
No of 
Participant/s 

Target group 

01.  Postgraduate Opportunities 56 SEUSL staff members 

02.  Induction Programme 2019 (Batch – IV) 17 
Probationary Academic 
Staff – Batch 04 

03.  
Official Language Proficiency Examination 
(TAMIL) Level - I/ II/III/IV" – 2019/2020 
(Phase - I) 

18 
All categories of staff who 
speak Sinhala 

04.  Functional English 40 
Executive, Management 
Assistants and allied 
grade staff 

05.  
Official Language Proficiency Examination 
(Sinhala) Level - I/ II" - 2019/ 2020 

60 
Academic & Executive 
Staff 

06.  
Official Language Proficiency Examination  
( Sinhala) Level - iii 

48 
Management Assistants & 
allied grade staff 

07.  
Training Course (Level-IV) – 2019 Sinhala 
Language 

43 Primary Level staff 

S. No. Title of the Programme 
Number 

Participated 
Date 

01 FIA food Fiesta 2020, organized by FIA 50 07.01.2020 

02 
Programme for “Sathbudu Wanthanawa” – relegius program, 

organized by union FAS 
105 17.01.2020 

03 Annual Cricket match, organized by Hindu Society 50 19.01.2020 

04 Cricket tournament organized by Tamil Sangam 150 25.01.2020 

05 
“Yadamaka Abiman 2020” – Musical Programme, organized 

by Faculty of Technology 
75 30.01.2020 

06 Interfaculty Art & Cultural Competition, organized by FAC 600 
22.01.2020- 

03.02.2020 

07 E-Ablaze 2020 - final event, organized by FE 300 

26.01.2020

- 

29.01.2020 

08 Beach Cleaning Programme 2020,  organized by FE 180 

09 Gaming Competition 2020,  organized by FE 210 

10 Kite Festival 2020,  organized by FE 170 

11 Musical Concert 2020, organized by FE 250 

12 Cricket tournament, organized by FMC 500 01.02.2020 

13 
Annual Cultural Programme 2020, organized by Hindu 

Society 
300 01.02.2020 

14 Youth parliament Election 1500 02.02.2020 

15 Pirith Function,  organized by Student Union - FMC 500 06.02.2020 

16 Ruby tournament – Agni “7s” , organized by FE 150 08.02.2020 

17 Agni trophy–2020 – Cricket tournament,  organized by FE 300 22.02.2020 

18 Friendship Cricket match 2020, organized by FMC 400 14.02.2020 

19 Dharma Deshana, organized by FE 500 15.02.2020 
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17. Details of Project Expenditure  
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2017 

Design, Construction 

and Commissioning of 

Building Complex for   

Technology Studies 

Grant GOSL 443,624,004.30 418,069,484.69 100* 

2019 

Design, Construction 

and Commissioning of 

the Building Complex 

for Staff Quarters  

(Academic/ Non 

Academic) at SEUSL, 

Oluvil 

Grant GOSL 272,100,000.00 81,164,893.65 25 

     *Completed in 2019 

 

18. Details of Financial Progress  

18.1 Income 

(Rs. Million) 

 
  Notes: 

 (1) "Government Grant" refers to treasury grant received for Recurrent Expenditure, Capital 

Expenditure, Mahapola & Bursaries.  

 (2) "Other Income" refers to Income from interests, fees, sales and miscellaneous receipts and 

generated income from extension programmes & other activities too. 

 

18.1.1 Generated Income (Extension Programmes and Postgraduate Studies) 

 

year Government Grant (1) Other Income (2) Total 

2019 1,891.85 33.84 1,925.69 

2020 1,731.33 24.82 1,756.15 

Subject 
Collection in 2019 

(Rs.) 
Collection in 2020 

(Rs.) 

Undergraduate Studies  26,141,600.00 18,779,600.00 

Diploma Programmes 3,947,550.00 2,053,680.00 

Certificate Programmes -- -- 

Postgraduate Studies 8,111,050.00 5,136,250.00 

Total 38,200,200.00 25,969,530.00 



Annual Report 2020 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka         

 

 

88 

18.2 Recurrent Expenditure of Major Programmes 
                                                                                                             (Rs. Million) 

Year 

General 
Administration 
& Staff 
Services 

Academic 
Services 
(2) 

Welfare 
Service
s (3) 

Maintenance 
Services 

Others  
(1) 

Total 
Recurrent 
Expenditure 

2019 536.05 890.90 106.82 79.49 27.16 1,640.42 

2020 380.37 991.76 90.51 83.74 19.35 1,565.73 

(Excludes Depreciation) 

    Notes:  

(1) "Others" refers to expenditure on External Examinations, Ancillary Activities, Extension Courses, Physical 
Education,  etc.  

(2) "Academic Services" includes Teaching Resources as well. 
(3) "Welfare Services" includes expenditure incurred on Mahapola & Bursaries too. 

   

18.2.1  Recurrent Expenditure on Academic Services 

           (Rs. Million) 
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194.06 153.74 159.22 100.95 148.46 67.93 49.25 17.30 890.90 

2
0

2
0 

215.82 171.81 172.27 101.71 172.07 85.58 52.78 19.70 991.76 

 
 

18.3 Capital Expenditure 
               (Rs. Million) 

Year 
Construction 

Lands, 
Equipments, 
Furniture, 
Library Books, 
Periodicals & 
Vehicles 

Rehabilitation 
& 
Maintenance 
of Capital 
Assets 

Other 
Capital 
Projects 
(1) 

Total Capital 
Expenditure 

Government Grant 

2019 26.46 315.13 69.81 193.79 605.19 

2020 53.37 46.00 38.34 4.33 142.04 

Note: 

(1) "Other Capital Projects" refers to grants for Technology stream, postgraduate research, 
knowledge enhancement & institutional development, staff development, etc  
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  18.4 Expenditure (Except Depriciation and Mahapola Bursary) 

Subject 
Provision in. Expenditure in  Savings / Excess Rs. 

2019 (Rs) 2020(Rs) 2019(Rs) 2020(Rs) 2019 (Rs)  2020(Rs) 
Recurrent 
Except 
Project 

1,295,000,000 1,453,500,000.00 1,560,067,389.00 1,508,898,708.00 (265,067,389.00) (55,398,708.00) 

Capital 
Except 
Project 

320,000,000 190,500,000.00 417,478,771.84 142,039,422.19 (97,478,771.84) 48,460,577.81 

Total 1,615,000,000 1,644,000,000.00 1,977,546,160.84 1,650,938,130.19 (362,546,160.84) (6,938,130.19) 

  

19. Financial Performance Analysis – 2020 

 19.1 Cost per student (Recurrent and Capital expenses) 

Faculty 
No. of Students Cost per Student (Rs.) 

2019 2020 2019 2020 

Arts and Culture 1,176 1,183 421,905.40 396,524.94 

Management and 
Commerce 

1,264 1,277 378,520.91 348,629.51 

Applied Sciences 686 769 488,988.39 438,104.81 

Islamic Studies and 
Arabic Languages 

1,220 1,274 339,638.65 293,928.29 

Engineering 452 441 585,349.34 604,265.35 

Technology 460 614 404,555.69 353,480.56 
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20. Annual Accounts – 2020 

       

      South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Annual Statement of Accounts 2020 

 

CERTIFICATE OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER ON 

ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 

 

The  Annual  Statement  of  Accounts  of  the  South  Eastern  University  of  Sri 

Lanka for the Financial Year Ended 31st December 2020 has been prepared in the 

form and manner specified by the University Grants Commission in terms of section 

106 and 107 of the University Act No. 16 of 1978 and in terms of the Finance  Act  No.  

38  of  1971  and  has  been  rendered  to  the  Auditor  General together with the 

notes and schedules referred to in the Statement of Financial Performance and 

Financial Position.  

Financial    rules    and    procedures    prescribed    by    the    University    Grants 

Commission  have been complied with  and the systems of control have been 

maintained  as  far  as  practicable  to  ensure  propriety  of  transactions  and 

efficiency in expenditure.  

To the best of my knowledge, the statements in respect of the year  2020 has been 

prepared satisfactorily and exhibits a true and fair view of the financial position of 

the University.  

 

 

 
Prof.M.M.M. Najim  

Vice Chancellor  

(Accounting Officer)  

26.02.2021 
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                                                                                        SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31st  DECEMBER 2020 

    
 

  Note 
2020                        

Rs.   
  

 2019                        
Rs.   

ASSETS 
 

 
 

 
Non Current Assets 

 
 

 
 

Property, Plant and Equipment 01 5,355,318,145    5,619,937,357  

Work in Progress 02 81,164,894   449,530,688  

Investments 
 

 
 

 

Financial Assets 03 25,904,408   35,284,825  

Total Non Current Assets   5,462,387,447   6,104,752,870  

    
 

Current Assets 
   

 

Inventories / Stocks 04 9,114,679   11,093,403  

Accounts Receivables 05 68,685,451   65,461,313  

Fixed Deposit - SFA Programmes 03 123,323,017   113,592,229  

Interest Recievable  03 631,399   933,153  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 06 118,094,461   27,142,547  

Total Current Assets   319,849,007   218,222,645  

TOTAL ASSETS   5,782,236,454   6,322,975,515  

    
 

FUNDS & LIABILITIES 
   

 
Funds 

   
 

Restricted Fund 07 3,474,626   2,424,736  

Capital Grant 08 5,214,063,009   5,767,3 69,201  

Reserves 
 

 
 

 

Accumulated Fund / General Reserve 09 (502,486,976)   (422,634,545) 

Revaluation Reserves   510,537,790   450,200,000  

Self Financing Programme Funds   33,164,654   31,357,123  

Total Equity and Reserves   5,258,753,103   5,828,716,514  

Non Current Liabilities 
   

 

Provision for Gratuity 10 391,361,307   336,598,036 

       

    391,361,307   336,598,036  

Current Liabilities 
   

 

Accounts Payables 11 113,233,742   125,913,531  

Accrued Expenses   18,888,302   31,747,435  

    132,122,043   157,660,965  

TOTAL FUNDS & LIABILITIES   5,782,236,454   6,322,975,515  

These Annual Statement of Accounts have been prepared and presented in compliances with Sri Lanka 
Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued by the Institute of Charted Accountants of Sri 
Lanka and in terms of Sections 106 (1) and 107 (1) (b) of the Universities Act No: 16 of 1978 and section 
13 (6) of the Finance Act No: 38 of 1971. 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE   

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  DECEMBER 2020 

          
  Note 

 2020    

Rs.   
  

 2019 

Rs.   

Income 

    Recurrent Grant   1,453,500,000  1,289,000,000  

Mahapola & Bursary Grant   56,829,400   80,348,500  

Amortization of Capital Grant   539,397,322  534,673,990  

Other Income                                         12 24,822,561  33,843,705  

Self Finance Programme Income 13 28,939,200  36,999,746  

    2,103,488,483  1,974,865,941  

    

 

Expenditure 
   

 

Personal Emoluments   1,252,015,829     1,117,054,909  

Traveling and Subsistence   475,186   3,088,599  

Supplies   22,997,254    33,363,316  

Maintenance   14,037,282   16,235,594  

Contractual Services   119,757,914   163,168,545  

Other Recurrent Expenses   28,454,779    32,594,246  

Depreciation   544,110,206    535,225,174  

Gratuity   71,160,465    194,562,179  

         

Financial Assistance to Students   56,829,400                       80,348,500 

Self Finance Programme Expenses 14 13,318,989                       21,266,912 

    2,123,157,303                 2,196,907,975 

Excess of Income over Expenditure   (19,668,820)   (222,042,034)                 

         

Prior Year Adjustment   3,614,286   (7,614,197) 

    

 

Net Surplus / (Deficit) for the period   (16,054,534)   (229,656,231) 

 

 
 

 

                                



Annual Report 2020 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka         

 

 

93 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  DECEMBER 2020 

      2020   2019 

   Rs.     Rs.  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities  

 

  

Surplus / (Deficit) from Ordinary Activities (16,054,534) 

 

(229,656,231) 

Adjustments  

 

  

Interest for the year (9,735,771) 

 

(8,499,474) 

Depreciation in prior year adjustments - 

 

8,127,931  

Settlement of Provision of  Legal Cases - 

 

(3,830,000) 

Distribution of Income 

Sale of unserviceable Articles 

6,061,802 

(866,070) 

 

6,626,684 

  

Non - Cash Movements  

 

  

Depreciation  544,110,206 

 

535,225,174  

Provision for Gratuity 54,763,271 

 

190,218,264  

Amortization of Capital Grant (539,397,322) 

 

  

Prior Year Adjustments (3,450,751) 

 

(534,673,990) 

Net Surplus/(deficit) from the Ordinary Activities 35,430,831   (36,461,642) 

    

 

 

Increase / Decrease in Accounts Receivables (3,224,138) 

 

17,751,194  

Increase / Decrease in Inventory 1,978,725 

 

(624,580) 

Increase / Decrease in Current Liability (25,538,922) 

 

46,831,331  

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 8,646,496   27,496,304  

Cash Flows from Investing Activities   

 

 

Acquisition of Fixed Assets (146,034,070) 

 

 (656,617,822) 

Deposit in Fixed Deposit (31,559,909) 

 

(32,428,677) 

Withdrawal of Fixed Deposit/ Interest 41,237,707  32,357,576 

Sale of unserviceable Articles 866,070 

 

- 

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (135,490,202)   (656,688,924) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities   

 

 

Government Grant for Capital Expenditure 221,000,000 

 

522,500,000  

Restricted Fund 1,049,891 

 

769,829  

Utilization of SFA Fund (4,254,271) 

 

(912,703) 

 

 

 

  

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 217,795,619   522,357,126  

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 

Equivalents 90,951,913  (106,835,494) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Period 27,142,547  133,978,041  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 118,094,461  27,142,547  
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SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  DECEMBER 2020 

        

Description 
Capital Grant 

spent and 
unspent 

Restricted 
Fund 

Gift and 
Donations 

Revaluvation  
Serplus 

Accumulated 
Fund/ General 

Reserve 

Funds 
SFAs 

Total 

Balance as at 31 December 2019       2,147,827,686        2,424,736         3,619,541,514   450,200,000       (422,634,545)  31,357,123     5,828,716,514 

Net Movements in Capital Grant 
Spent & Unspent 

         221,000,000                      -                           -                            -                                -                      -         221,000,000 

Amortization of Capital Grant        (593,841,050)                        -      (180,538,956)                         -             234,982,684                   -      (539,397,322) 

Deficit /Surplus on Revaluation                               -                      -                       -         60,337,790                            -                   -        60,337,790 

Changes in Restricted Fund                             -           1,049,891                        -                            -                                -                      -             1,049,891 

Depreciation in Prior year Adjustments                    -                             -                        -                         -       (298,780,580)                           -   (298,780,580)         

Net Movement in Donation                             -                         -                 73,814                         -                                -                      -                 73,814 

Distribution from Current year SFAs 
Income 

                            -                         -                           -                            -                                -       6,061,802          6,061,802 

Utilization of SFA Fund                             -                         -                           -                            -                                -     (4,254,271)      (4,254,271) 

Surplus/Deficit for the period                             -                         -                           -                            -           (16,054,534)                   -        (16,054,534) 

Balance as at 31st December 2020 1,774,986,636        3,474,626 3,439,076,373       510,537,790       (502,486,976)  33,164,654   5,258,753,103 
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Accounting Policies 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

1.1. General Information 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) is established under the Universities Act No 16 of 

1978, and located in the Eastern Province, Ampara District, Oluvil in Sri Lanka. 

 

1.2. Principal activities and nature of operations 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is one of the National universities mainly operates on  

Government  funds  and  promoting  higher  education  and  research  in  the  field  of Engineering, 

Social Sciences, Applied Sciences, Islamic and Arabic Languages, Commerce and Management and 

Technology.  

 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1. Statement of Compliance 

The  Statement  of  Financial  Position,  Statement  of  Financial  Performance,  Statement  of 

Changes  in  Equity  and  the  Statement  of  Cash  Flows  together  with  the  accounting policies  

and  notes  have  been  prepared  in  compliance  with  the  Sri  Lanka  Public  Sector Accounting  

Standards  (SLPSAS)  issued  by  the  Institute  of  Chartered  Accounts  of  Sri Lanka  and  the  

requirements  of  the  Universities  Act  No  16  of  1978  and  subsequence amendments   thereto.   

The   Annual   Statement   of   Accounts   comprises   the   financial statements of the year 2020. 

2.2. Basis of Measurement 

The financial statements of SEUSL have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical 
cost convention unless stated otherwise. 

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency 

The  financial  statements  are  presented  in  Sri  Lankan  Rupees  (SLR),  which   is  the functional 

currency and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest rupees unless stated 

otherwise. 

2.4. Comparative Information 

The  comparative  figures  have  been  re-arranged  where  necessary  to  conform  to  the 

presentation  in  the  current  year.  Also the last year figures shown for comparison purpose. 

2.5. Use of Estimates and Judgments 

The  presentation  and  preparation  of  financial  statements  in  conformity  with  SLPSASs 

requires  management  to  make  judgments,  estimates  and  assumptions  that  affect  the 

application of the accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and   

expenses.   Actual   results   may   differ   from   these   provisional   estimates   and judgmental 

decisions. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

effects on that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 

current and future periods. 
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

Accounting Policies 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

(a) Recognition and Measurement 

Property, Plant & Equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.   The cost of property,  
plant  &  equipment  is  the  cost  of  purchase  or  construction  together  with  any incidental expenses 
thereon. 

(b)  Cost 

The cost of property, plant & equipment comprise its purchase or construction cost and any directly 
contributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. 
 

(c)  Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on the straight line basis at the 
following rates per annum in order to write off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful      
lives.Depreciation is provided on pro rata basis on the asset purchased/constructed/disposed of during 
the year. 
 

Buildings     5% 
Furniture & Fittings    10% 
Lab & Teaching Equipment   20% 
Motor Vehicles     20% 
Water Supply Networks    10% 
Library books & Periodicals   20% 
Cloaks      20% 
Roads      20% 
Electricity Transmission Networks   10% 
Intangible Assets     20% 
Others       20% 

 
Land 

Lands consist of around 224 acres at various locations as follows. 

Oluvil 178.98  acres 
Samanthurai 6.72 acres 
Malwatta 35.25  acres 
Weeramunai 3.00 acres 
Mountlavinia APC 17.64 perch  

 

Land is valued at fair value in year 2011, as determined by the Valuation Department, Uva Provincial 

Office. Meanwhile, Mountlavinia APC land is valued in 2016.  

 (d)Revaluation of the Property, Plant, &Equipments 

The lands of the university have been revalued as at 31st December 2011 and recognized to the books of 
accounts. 
On  the  request  of  SEUSL  the  Government  Valuation Department  revalued  the  Buildings which 
had been fully depreciated in the books of Accounts and the revalued amounts have been incorporated 
into the accounts with effect from 01st January 2020. 
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On the recommendation of the Audit and Management Committee and with the approval of the 
University Council, three teams were assigned to re-value the Furniture, Equipment and Sports 
Equipment which were already fully depreciated. Accordingly the revalued amount of Equipment  and  
Sports  Equipment  have  been  incorporated  to  the  accounts  with  effect  from 01st July 2020 with the 
approval of the University Council. 

The  revaluation  of  Furniture  is  yet  to  be  completed  and  the  re-valued  amount  will  be 
incorporated into the accounts, with the approval of the University Council. 

 
(„e) Disposal of Unserviceable Articles 
By following the relevant chapters and subsequent amendments of the Establishment Code of the  
University  Grants  Commission,  a  total  number  of  1,153  fully  depreciated  unserviceable items were 
sold by auctioning to the employees of SEUSL with the approval of the university Council. 

 

3.2. TAX 

(a) Income Tax 

University is not liable to pay income tax on its‟ net income according to the prevailing tax rules. 

(b) Payee Tax 

University currently remits payee tax after deducting from monthly salaries of the liable employees for 

income tax which is not a part of the University expenditure. Hence, Payee tax is not disclosed in the 

accounts of the University. 

3.3. INVENTORIES 
Inventories  of  the  University  have  been  physically  verified  and  valued  at  cost  as  at  31st 

December   2020.   The   cost   incurred   in   bringing   inventories   to   its   percent   location,   are 
accounted on FIFO basis. 
 
3.3.1 

Stock verification as at 31.12.2020 was carried out by the Board of Survey appointed by the Vice 
Chancellor (Accounting Officer), SEUSL. 

 
The Physical quantities were verified and values were calculated. The certified values of the stock at the 
Main Store at the SEUSL/Oluvil premises, Maintenance (Sub Store) at SEUSL/ Oluvil premises and the 
sub store at the Faculty of the Applied Science, Sammanthurai were verified and the values are taken in 
the Books of Accounts. 
 
3.4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Trade  and  other  receivables  are  stated  at  the  amount  they  are  estimated  as  per  SLPSAS  01 that 
is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date. No provision has been made for bad 
and doubtful receivables. 
 
3.4.1 BOND VIOLATION AND LOAN OUTSTANDING 
There is an outstanding loan balance amount of Rs.  29,058.00  from  an  academic  staff  and Bond  
Violation  aggregating  amount  of  Rs. 1,388,219.43  from  two  academic  staff  who  have vacated their 
post. 
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Action taken to recover the above stated outstanding 

i.             Action has been taken to recover the outstanding from the UPF balance 
ii.            Legal action has already been taken 
 

3.5. INVESTMENTS IN FIXED DEPOSITS 
 

Investments in Fixed Deposits are stated at present value (SLR). 
 

3.6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents disclosed in the statement of financial position and the cash flow statement 
comprised balances of current and saving accounts and the cash in hand. 
 

 
3.7. LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 

 
All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements and adequate  
provisions  are  made  for  liabilities  which  are  known  to  exist  but  the  amount  of which cannot  be 
determined accurately. 
 
Obligations  payable  on  demand  or  within  one  year  of  the  balance  sheet  date  are  treated  as 
current liabilities in the balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are 
treated as non-current liabilities in the balance sheet. 
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3.7.1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 
Below given schedule shows the list of ongoing Court cases as at 31.12.2020. 
As we are unable to estimate the compensation at this point of time, no provision has been made in the 
accounts, which might incur in future. 

 

     Case No Court Details Details of Cases Foreseen Outcome 

49110/PC/17 Magistrate Court 
Akkaraipattu 

Students Violent Activities – 
Admin Block 

No financial issue 

B/10486/PC/18 Magistrate Court 
Akkaraipattu 

Students Violent Activities – 
Admin Block 

No financial issue 

LT/BT/362/2018 Labour Tribunal, 
Batticaloa 

Termination of Employment 
filed 

May be needed to pay 
his remuneration back 
(Period from  
02.10.2017) 

DCA/M/1251/19 District Court 
Akkaraipattu 

Bond Violation May be needed to pay 
Legal fee 

CA 
(Writ)Application 
No.464/2019 

Court of Appeal, 
Colombo 

Against Vacation of Post May be needed to pay 
Legal fee for AG‟s 
Department 100,000/= 

CA 
(Writ)Application 
No.301/2019 

Court of Appeal, 
Colombo 

Institute of Engineers Sri Lanka, 
Recognition for Faculty of 
Engineering students 

May be needed to pay 
Legal fee for AG‟s 
Department 100,000/= 

SC/ FR 
Application No. 
146/2019 

Supreme Court, 
Colombo 

Challenging Lecturer 
Appointment for Economic 

May be needed to pay 
Legal fee for AG‟s 
Department 100,000/= 

SC (Spl) L.B. No. 
228/2019 

Supreme Court, 
Colombo 

Appeal against the dismissal of 
Writ Application by Court of 
Appeal 

May be needed to pay 
Legal fee for AG‟s 
Department 100,000/= 

SC/FR Application 
No. 298/2019 

Supreme Court, 
Colombo 

Challenging recruitment for the 
Post of Lecturer - Economic 

May be needed to pay 
Legal fee for AG‟s 
Department 100,000/= 

LT/44/707-708- 
709/2020 

Labor Tribunal, 
Ampara 

03 - day payment workers 
lodged complaints for 
reinstatement 

May be needed to pay 
Legal fee 

 

3.8. GRATUITY 
 

Provision for gratuity was made in accordance with gratuity Act No 12 of 1983. The Gratuity liability is 
not externally funded nor actually valued but provisioned.  The  gratuity  fund Account  is  shown  
under  the  Non-Current  liabilities  in  the  Statement  of  financial  position, based on half month  salary 
as of the last month  on financial year of all employees for each completed year of service, commencing 
from the first year of service. 
 

3.9. UNIVERSITY PROVIDENT AND EMPLOYEES‟ TRUST FUND 
 

Employees of the University are eligible for University Provident Fund (UPF) contributions and 
Employees‟ Trust Fund (ETF) contribution in line with respective status and regulations. The University  
contributes  the defined  percentages (15%) and (3%) of gross emoluments of employees  to  an  
approved  employees‟  provident  fund  and  to  the  employees  trust  fund respectively, which are 
operated extremely. 
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3.10. ACCOUNTING FOR GRANT 
 

Grants that compensate the University for Expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the Income  
Statement  in  the  same  period  in  which  the  expenses  are  recognized.  Grants that compensate the 
University for the Cost of as asset are recognized in the Income Statement on a systematic basis over the 
useful life time of the related asset. 
 
3.11. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
All  material  commitments  and  contingent  liabilities  are  considered  and  where  necessary 
adjustments or disclosures are made in the financial statements. 
 
3.12. DISCLOSE OF ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF THE UNIT 
 
Center for External Degrees and Professional Learning (CEDPL) 
 
Accounts  of  Center  for  External  Degrees  and  Professional  Learning  have  been  prepared 
separately and also incorporated with the University Accounts. 
 

Postgraduate Unit (FMC, FAC, FT) 
 

Accounts of Postgraduate Units (FMC, FAC, and FT) have been prepared separately and also 
incorporated with the University Accounts. 
 
Incorporation of University Units Accounts 
 
When  preparing  the  Financial  Statements  of  the  University,  amount  of  Rs.  9,903,150.03 Receivable  
from  Centre  for  External  Degrees  &  Professional  Learning  (CEDPL)  and  Post Graduates Units 
(FMC, FAC & FT) and Rs. 13,000,000.00 payable to CEDPL are set off. 
 

 
3.13. INCOME STATEMENT 

 

3.13.1. REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
university and that it can be reliably measured. 
 

(a) Enrolment fees from students are recognized as revenue on receipt. 
(b) Fees on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational and activities are   

recognized as revenue on completion of such activity. 
(c) The fees on fee-levying courses recognized to the income statement based on the stage of 

completion of each courses as at the year end. Lecture fees and payments which  are  
related  to  future  periods  are  shown  in  the  Balance  Sheet  as  income received in 
advance under the Reserve & Restricted funds. 
 

(d) Interest income is recognized on accrual basis. 
 

(e) Revenue  from  grant  is  recognized  when  control  of  the  contribution  or  right  to 
receive the contribution is confirmed. 

 
(f) Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt 

 
(g) Other income is recognized on accrual basis. 
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3.13.2. EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION 

 
Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of direct association between 
cost incurred and the earning of specific items of the income. All expenditures incurred in the 
running of the university and maintaining the capital assets have been charged to revenue in 
arriving at the surplus/ deficit for the year. Expenses on examinations, seminars, courses, and 
other  educational  activities  are  recognized  in  the  income  statement  on  completion  of  
such activity. 

 
3.14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

 
The  materiality  of  events  occurring  after  the  Balance  Sheet  date  has  been  considered  
and appropriate adjustments, wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts. 
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                                                                   Note 01 - Property, Plant, Equipment & Human Resource Development 

 

For the Year ended 31st December                       
    

Schedule  

  
   Cost as at   
01.01.2020  

 Addition   Disposal  
  

   Cost as at 
31.12.2020 

 Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 
31.12.2019  

             
Depreciation 
for the Year 

2020  

 
Accumulated 
Depreciation 

as at 
31.12.2020  

 Net Value 
as at 

31.12.2020  

Land 1.01 450,330,000 - - 450,330,000 - - - 450,330,000 

Buildings 1.02 5,145,103,054 441,280,026 6,793,853 5,579,589,228 1,237,274,356 256,310,293 1,493,584,649 4,086,004,579 

Furniture 1.03 502,887,595 16,248,137 - 519,135,732 198,114,429 44,732,838 242,847,267 276,288,465 

Equipment 1.04 1,431,641,418 52,666,270 57,004,044 1,427,303,643 819,966,980 188,498,672 1,008,465,651 418,837,992 

Books and Periodicals  199,860,154 585,682 - 200,445,837 165,906,968 13,493,272 179,400,240 21,045,597 

Vehicles 1.05 114,363,388 - - 114,363,388 103,660,826 5,664,384 109,325,210 5,038,178 

Softwares 1.06 5,265,505 1,323,000 - 6,588,505 1,216,247 1,266,956 2,483,203 4,105,302 

Road 1.07 158,629,534 51,097,869 - 209,727,402 150,135,971 17,619,812 167,755,783 41,971,619 

Telephone & Network 1.08 47,672,367 - - 47,672,367 44,068,859 3,603,508 47,672,367 - 

Electricity Transmission Networks 1.09 50,192,158 - - 50,192,158 18,632,431 4,543,842 23,176,273 27,015,885 

Water Supply Networks 1.10 3,164,401 10,718,214 - 13,882,615 7,204,132 1,388,262 8,592,394 5,290,221 

Cloak 1.11 3,690,803 - - 3,690,803 3,690,803 - 3,690,803 - 

Academic Publication/International 
Symposium 

 18,323,463 612,880 - 18,936,343 10,846,059 2,498,590 13,344,649 5,591,694 

Competency Building of Academics  23,123,326 3,193,452 - 26,316,778 17,255,587 2,252,321 19,507,908 6,808,870 

Quality Assurance & Accreditation  10,007,913 546,045 - 10,553,957 2,041,276 2,078,673 4,119,949 6,434,008 

Research &Academic Development  568,000 - - 568,000 56,800 113,600 170,400 397,600 

Attending International Conference  149,100 - - 149,100 14,910 29,820 44,730 104,370 

Final Year Projects  76,808 - - 76,808 7,681 15,362 23,042 53,766 

Total  8,165,048,986 578,271,575 63,797,897 8,679,522,664 2,  780,094,313 544,110,206 3,324,204,519 5,355,318,145 
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For the Year ended 31st December Shedule 
2020 2019 

 Rs  Rs 

Note 02 -  Work in Progress       

3 Store building for Department of 
Technology    -        418,069,485  

Improvement Of Cricket Ground   -             1,566,276    

Road to Boys Hostel and Staff quarters   - 2,882,229 
New Computer Lab for Dept. Of 
Mathematical Science   - 552,698 

New Quarters for Academic& Non 
Academics   81,164,894 26,460,000                                   
                

               81,164,894          449,530,688 

Note 03 - Financial Assets       

Fixed Deposits  3.01            25,904,408            35,284,825 

    
            

25,904,408 
               

35,284,825    

Fixed Deposit - SFA Programmes       

Centre for External Degrees & 
Professional Learning 

  
             

117,776,172 
             

108,422,086  

Postgraduate Unit - FMC                5,410,768              5,043,881 

Postgraduate Unit - FAC                   136,078                 126,262  

    
             

123,323,017 
             

113,592,229 

Interest Recievable from FD     
 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka                  199,687                           - 

Centre for External Degrees & 
Professional Learning               369,574                 933,153 

Postgraduate Unit – FMC                    60,614                           - 

Postgraduate Unit – FAC                      1,524                           - 

    
                    

631,399 
                   

933,153 

Note 04 -  Inventories/Stocks       

Stores Advance Account - Supplies 4.01              5,742,079              7,218,387  

Stores Advance Accounts - Maintenance 4.02              3,372,600              3,875,016  

                 9,114,679            11,093,403  
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SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

Notes to the Accounts 

For the Year ended 31st December Shedule 2020 2019 

  
 Rs  Rs 

Note 05 – Accounts Receivable    

Security Deposits 5.01              5,253,929             5,253,929  

Distress Loan 5.02            28,111,787            28,021,591  

Staff Loan 5.03                   62,050                   59,670 

Vehicle Loan 5.04                 176,000                 376,000  

Computer Loan 5.05                515,500                 592,000  

Motor Cycle Loan 5.06                 349,016                 489,090   

Festival Advance 5.07 292,500            518,750 

Salary Advance 5.08                   40,359                 337,498  

Special Advance 5.09                     7,600                                          400 

Bond Violation 5.10 20,062,089              15,351,801  

Mahapola Scholarship Advance 5.11 -                       5,000  

Miscellaneous Advance 5.12 -                   616,025  

Postal Franking Machine Advance 

 

32,188                     51,122  

Research Advance 5.13  129,000                     50,000 

Library Books –( Periodicals Advance) 5.14 -                     72,820  

Dues to SEUSL 5.15 10,399,940                8,344,042  

Dues  from CEDPL 

 

8,840,335                7,168,477  

Salary Receivable 5.16  3,253,494                3,748,863  

Dues from -MA and MBA  1,059,015                  547,872    

Dues from PGU-FOT   3,800                               -   

Inter Units Transaction set off   (9,903,150) (6,143,637)                                    
  

                  

 

             

                 68,685,451             65,461,313   

Note 06 - Cash & Cash Equivalents       

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 7000  1696   10,233,836             2,016,672 

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 7000  1700   34,665,004             2,413,799  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 9000  1704   7,826,004             1,704,773 

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 0000  1708   211,773                281,273  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 5000  1715   17,351,344             2,680,981  

Peoples Bank - 064 1001 7000  0025   1,080,065                212,194  

Peoples Bank - 004 1001 5021  0926   -                  71,169  

Peoples Bank - 064 1001 6000  0950   367,973             1,188,591  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 6000 1692 (CEDPL)   28,937,824             5,549,197  

Peoples Bank  - 228 10014004 2429 (CEDPL)   16,300                  16,300  

Peoples Bank  - 228 1001 2003 2544 (FMC)   14,346,142          10,603,378  

Peoples Bank  - 228 1001 5004 0340 (FAC)   2,368,721                404,221  

Peoples Bank - 228 1001 6005 2714 (FT)  689,475                                - 

              118,094,461          27,142,547  
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SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

Notes to the Accounts 

For the Year ended 31st December Shedule 2020 2019 

   Rs  Rs 

Note 07 - Restricted Funds       

Memorial Price Funds 7.01 248,000                248,000  

Short ICIT Course   434,454                434,454  

Scholership for Foreign Students   474,600                294,600  

UNDP Grant   165,078                165,078  

Asia Foundation Research Grant   21,074                170,773  

Centre for Gender Equity   511,421                511,421  

FOE/Earth Bricks Testing   -                        410  

Awareness programme for students by UGC   600,000                600,000  

Sediment Survey & Geomorphology Survey  1,020,000 - 

  3,474,626             2,424,736 

    

    

Note 08 - Capital Grant        

Capital Grant Spent 08.01 1,696,026,058     2,147,827,686 

Capital Contribution – MRR 08.02 99,871,217        104,770,589  

Capital Grant Spent – IRQUE 08.03 80,705,973          89,032,833  

Capital Contribution – Kuwaith fund 08.04 1,970,681,385     2,067,356,900  

Capital Contribution – MOHE 08.05 1,149,815,100     1,206,221,462  

Capital Grant-Unspent   78,960,578                                -    

Donation 08.06 138,002,698        152,159,731  

    5,214,063,009     5,767,369,201  

Note 09 - Reserves       

Accumulated Fund   (422,634,545)   (1,717,375,358) 

Net in Amortization & 

Depreciation ( Prior years adjustment)   (63,797,897)     1,524,397,044 

Net surplus/Deficit for the period   (16,054,534)      (229,656,231) 

    (502,486,976)      (422,634,545) 

Revaluation Reserves 09.01 510,537,790        450,200,000 

    510,537,790        450,200,000 

Self Financing Programme Funds       

Faculty Development Fund - CEDPL- FAC   6,435,938 5,181,785 

Faculty Development Fund - CEDPL - FMC   835,205 3,205,762 

Faculty Development Fund - PGU - FAC  71,082 58,754 

Faculty Development Fund - PGU - FMC  2,282,845 1,951,358 

Faculty Development Fund - PGU - FT   2,000 -  

Research & Publication Fund - CEDPL - FAC   6,100,899 5,339,462 

Research & Publication Fund - CEDPL - FMC   2,691,502 2,409,194 

Research & Publication Fund - PGU - FAC   106,623 88,131 
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SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

 Notes to the Accounts 

For the Year ended 31st December Shedule 2020 2019 

   Rs  Rs 

Self Financing Programme Funds 

Cont… 
   

Research & Publication Fund - PGU - FMC          3,424,267 2,927,036 

Research & Publication Fund - PGU - FT        1,200 - 

CEDPL Development Fund  9, 611,282 8,800,777 

PGU Development Fund - FMC            1,564,270 1,365,487 

PGU Development Fund - FAC              35,541 29,377 

PGU Development Fund - FT  2,000 - 

    33,164,654          31,357,123  

Note 10 - Gratuity       

Provision for Gratuity 10.01 391,361,307        336,598,036 

    391,361,307        336,598,036 

Note 11 – Accounts Payables       

Refundable Deposit -Science Lab  11.01 657,800                745,800 

Refundable Deposit -Library 11.02 163,400                181,100  

Refundable Deposit- Hostel  11.03 3,328,600             2,728,900  

Refundable Deposit - Contractors 11.04 211,500                114,000  

Refundable Deposit - Suppliers 11.05 581,000                522,000  

Retention Money - Contractors 11.06 24,491,391          16,659,673 

Retention Money - Supplier 11.07 11,385,214          10,035,839 

Dues from SEUSL 11.08 22,838,376          67,186,220  

Received in Advance - SFA Programme   62,146,095          37,269,800  

Payables from SFA Programmes   430,366                470,199  

Inter Units Transaction set off   (13,000,000)         (10,000,000) 

    113,233,742        125,913,531 

    

Note 12 -  Other Income       

Registration Fees   4,203,940             4,020,155 

Examination Fees   380,675                319,780  

Interest   3,344,245             4,094,519  

Rent   2,671,568             2,663,045  

Sales   2,638,937                970,284  

Fines   2,024,042             6,173,956  

Miscellaneous Income   9,559,154          15,601,967  

    24,822,561          33,843,705  
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SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA 

 Notes to the Accounts 

For the Year ended 31st December Shedule 2020 2019 

   Rs  Rs 

Note 13 -  Self Finance Programme Income       

Centre for External Degrees & Professional 

Learning   23,366,466          27,996,860 

Postgraduate Unit - FMC   5,392,750             8,808,386  

Postgraduate Unit - FAC   143,984                194,500  

Postgraduate Unit - FT  36,000 - 

    28,939,200          36,999,746  

        

Note 14 -  Self Finance Programme 

Expenses 
      

Centre for External Degrees & Professional 

Learning 
  8,478,024          11,524,416 

Postgraduate Unit - FMC   4,748,972             9,545,259  

Postgraduate Unit - FAC   58,174                197,238 

Postgraduate Unit - FT  33,819 - 

    13,318,989          21,266,912 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Annual Report 2020 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka         

 

 

108 

21. Report of the Audior General – 2020 
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22. Observations to the Report of the Auditor General 
 
 

SEUSL/VC/AR/2020/02 
            
04.08.2021 
 

 
Auditor General, 

National Audit Office, 

Colombo. 

  
Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the South 

Eastern University of Sri Lanka for the year ended 31 December 2020 in 

terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. 

 
This has reference to your audit report dated 20th July 2020. We give below 
our observations for the queries raised in the report. 
 

1.  Financial Statements  
  
1.1 Opinion  

 
1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion 
 

(a)  As per the section 5.5.2 of the Commission Circular 04/2016, dated 

01st March 2016, which states that the amount utilized (not the 

amortized amount) should be deducted from the development fund 

(Respective Vote) and credited to the differed revenue account.  

However, for the better presentation of the Financial Statements, as 

suggested in the audit query, action will be taken to spread out the 

capital expenditure amount and to recognize the utilized amount as 

the income of the year over the assets life time. 

 
(b) Due to the limitation of the fund received from the General 

Treasury, all the procurements are made on a priority basis. 

Likewise, the procurement of the Laboratory Equipment mentioned 
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in the query was also procured based on the requirement and 

necessity of the user departments assuming those will be utilized 

upon delivery and installation. Further, the warranty periods of 

equipment commence from the date of delivery by the supplier.  

As the usual practice followed in procurement of equipment, these 

items were also installed along with other machineries ready for 

use and, the depreciation was calculated accordingly. 

It is the responsibility of the Head of the User Department and 

Dean of the faculty to make sure the equipment purchased are used 

for the practical sessions of the students. If the equipment is not 

used, it is the inefficiency of the Dean of the faculty. 

 
(c) As per the section 5.5.2 of the Commission Circular 04/2016, dated 

01st March 2016, which states that the amount utilized (not the 

amortized amount) should be deducted from the development fund 

(Respective Vote) and credited to the differed revenue account.  

However, for the better presentation of the Financial Statements, as 

suggested in the audit query, action will be taken to spread out the 

capital expenditure amount and to recognize the utilized amount as 

the income of the year over the assets life time. 

 
(d) Revaluation of assets was done for the first time by the University. 

In that process the Office equipment and Sports items mentioned in 

the query were also revalued for the first time in the year 2020. 

Accordingly, Fixed Assets Register in the package was updated 

with the revalued amount in the same year. However, due to an 

error in coding by the software supplier, there was a calculation 

mistake that had taken place in the calculation of the depreciation 

of the said revalued assets. Therefore, actions will be taken to 
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incorporate the difference in the amount of Rs. 3.3 Mn in the 

financial year 2021. 

 
(e) Financial statements of the AHEAD Project is maintained 

separately by the Operational Technical Secretariat (OTS) in SEUSL 

and sent to the Operations and Monitoring Support Team (OMST) 

in Colombo. However, action will be taken to incorporate the 

figures on annual basis as stated in the letter quoted in the audit 

query, after getting the information from the OTS. 

 
1.3 Other information included in the University‟s 2020 Annual Report. 

 
1.4 Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with 

Governance for the Financial Statements 
 
1.5 Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement 
 
2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
2.1  
2.2.2  

(i). In the year 2020, earned fund balances and bond violation amounts 

were only deposited in the fixed deposits.  

However, action will be taken to get the concurrence and prior 

approval of the Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Education (Line 

Ministry), University Council and the Finance Committee as stated 

in the Audit Query and referred circulars therein, before 

depositing those in the FD. 

 
(ii). As a common practice, the arrival and departure of academic staff 

are not maintained in the public University system in Sri Lanka. 

Further, the University system is facing challenges in 

implementing this system to the academic staff even though this 

matter is continuously raised by the audit queries. 
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2.3 Other Audit Observations 
 
(a)   

Name/Description Amount Status 

Distress Loan   

Imthiyas ARM 29,058.00 Action has been taken to institute 

legal action against Mr. ARM. 

Imthiyas to recover the loan 

balance. 

Sheham AM 49,984.00 Action has already been taken to 

recover the other balance 

Festival Advance   

R. Jeyakanthan 10,000.00 Action has already been taken to 

recover the other balance 

Salary 

Receivables 

1,874,776.00 Action has already been taken to 

recover the other balances (8 

Employees) 

Contractors and 

Institutions 

242,990.00 Action already has been taken to 

recover the stated receivables. 

Bond Violation   

ARM. Imthiyas 1,043,137.22 Legal action against Mr. ARM. 

Imthiyas is already taken to 

recover the Bond Value and other 

dues. 

MMM. Mahir 345082.21 Action has been taken to recover 

the bond violation amount of Mr. 

MMM Mahir from UPF Fund 

ARS. Jesmy 6,124,246.24 SEUSL has communicated with 

ARS. Jesmy and taking various 

actions to recover the bond 

violation amount. 

TOTAL 9,719,274.00  

 
(b) Actions has been taken either to pay the retention balances or 

transfer the unclaimed due amount remaining for more than two 



Annual Report 2020 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka         

 

 

121 

years in to the University Revenue with the recommendation of the 

relevant sections 

 
(c) Most of the equipment procured have been used for the intended 

purposes. Being a newly established Faculty, the Department had 

planned to secure the required space and equipment 

simultaneously, given the circumstances and urgency. Due to the 

limitations in securing the capital fund for the expansion of space, 

commissioning of some of the equipment had to be delayed. 

 

(d)    

 The bids were invited by National Competitive Bidding method 

(NCB) to purchase the following 04 items at the total estimated 

value of Rs. 45 million by requesting Rs. 900,000 bid security to 

cover the bid of the given 04 items and with the bid bond validity 

period up to 01.11.2016. Details are given below. 

 

S.No 
Name of 

Items 

Estimated 
Amount 
Rs. (Mn) 

Bid 
Security 
Value as 
per the 
Estimated 
Amount 
(2%) 

Amount 
of actual 
bids 
received 
(Exclusive 
of VAT) 

Bid 
Security 
Value as 
per the 
Actual 
Bids 
Received 

Awarded to 

01. 

CNC 
Vertical 
Milling 
Machine 

12 240,000 12,333,000 246,660 
Samson 
Engineer‟s 
(PVT) Ltd. 

02. 
CNC 
turning 
Centre 

10 200,000 11,225,000 224,500 
Samson 
Engineer‟s 
(PVT) Ltd. 

03. 

CNC 
Machine 
EDM 
Solid 

10 200,000 10,128,000 202,560 

CMC 
Engineering 
Expert 
GMBH 

04. 

CNC 
Machine 
Wire 
Cut 
EDM 

13 260,000 11,054,000 221,080 
API Traders 
(PVT) Ltd. 

 Total 45 900,000 44,740,000 894,800  
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 Accordingly, bids were received from 08 suppliers for the 

above 04 items and subsequently all such received bids were 

opened on 08.07.2016. 

 

 Since we had some internal delays such as conducting TEC 

(TEC members were experts from other established 

Universities) and DPC meetings, we requested all the suppliers 

on 26.10.2016 to submit an extension of the above bid security 

validity period up to 30.11.2016 and during this period we 

conducted TEC and DPC meetings on 18.11.2016 and 24.11.2016 

respectively and had sent the letter of awarding on 25.11.2016 to 

selected 03 suppliers as given in the above table.  

 

 However, CMC Engineering Expert GmbH had not submitted 

the extended bid bond and instead, they had sent us a letter 

stating that, they are unable to proceed with the above 

mentioned tender since their supplier has increased the prices.  

 

 Subsequently, based on the letter of CMC Engineering Expert 

GmbH, we had arranged a TEC meeting to discuss and 

recommend regarding this matter and accordingly, TEC 

recommended to award to the next substantially responsive 

bidder. However, due to non- availability of funds at this point 

of time and the bid validity period was expired, this 

procurement was not further processed. 

 

 We did not have sufficient time to recover the bid bond of Rs. 

202,560 relating to the supply of CNC machine EDM Solid for 

the bid value of Rs. 10,128,000 from CMC Engineering Expert 
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GmbH due to the expiry of the bond and not receiving the 

extension of the bid bond. 

 
Since the validity of the above bid was expired on 31.10.2016, we 

could not go ahead with the same bids. Hence, the bids were re-

invited on 20.06.2018 under National Competitive Bidding by 

giving sufficient opportunities for competitors. The price 

difference is mainly due to the country of origin and the country 

of manufacture of the newly purchased machine which is a 

European product and the country of origin and the country of 

manufacture (the above one is from Taiwan). Normally, 

performance of these type of European products of similar 

specification is considerably higher than the Taiwan, Asian and 

Chinese products. Apart from that, during the period of 02 

years, the price has also affected due to the inflation and price 

fluctuation of the country. 

(e) Water supply, drainage and gas supply works are in progress, 

hopefully it can be completed by mid of December, 2021   

 

 

Prof. M.M.M.Najim 

Vice Chancellor 

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka 

 

 

 

Cc. Senior Assistant Internal Auditor 


